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Company Overview
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oOh!media is a pioneering 
media company changing 
the face of the Out of Home 
industry in Australia and New 
Zealand. 

Our extensive network of 
more than 35,000 digital and 
static asset locations includes 
roadsides, retail centres, 
airports, train stations, bus 
stops, office towers, and 
universities.

Company 
Overview

We believe that Out of Home 
is so much more than an 
advertising channel. We 
play an integral role in the 
communities in which we 
operate by creating engaging 
environments that aim to 
inform, entertain and inspire 
citizens; and we contribute to 
the funding of important public 
infrastructure. This is reflected 
in our company purpose of 
making public spaces better.

Investing heavily in 
technology, we are leaders 
in the use of sophisticated 
data techniques to enable 
clients to maximise their media 
spend through unrivalled and 
accurate audience targeting.
Listed on the ASX, we employ 
around 800 people across 
Australia and New Zealand, 
with 2023 revenue of $634 
million.
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Road  

Billboard advertising is 
the original ‘Unmissable’, 
delivering national impact, 
dominance and scale. 
Billboard versatility delivers 
on a range of objectives 
including product launches, 
brand awareness, elevation 
and fame, call to actions, 
proximity and path to 
purchase. 

oOh!’s 3,850+ classic and 
digital billboard advertising 
sites include some of the most 
sought after, iconic locations 
from across the country, with 
unrivalled national coverage 
delivering diverse audience 
segments at scale.

Street 

With 3,700+ classic poster-
format and 3,200+ digital 
sites, oOh!’s Street Furniture 
delivers captivating roadside 
and bus shelter advertising 
locations nationwide, 
offering flexibility and scale 
for precision targeting to the 
right audience at the right 
location during their daily 
journeys.

Retail

oOh! Retail is Australia’s 
largest shopping centre 
advertising network, offering 
multi formats in over 500+ 
retail centres, reaching 12 
million unique shoppers every 
month. 

Rail

oOh!’s train station 
advertising is Australia’s 
largest; connecting with 
11.5 million commuter 
journeys each week in 20 
CBD and inner city stations 
throughout Melbourne. 
Train station advertising 
communicates brand 
awareness to professional, 
affluent commuters on their 
daily journeys through digital 
portraits, large formats and 
WOW wall animations.  

Our Rail advertising platform 
makes brands Powerfully 
Unmissable by combining 
cost-efficient reach, 
unmatched coverage, 
unbeatable connection 
frequency and smart 
behavioural targeting 
across diverse Rail audience 
segments at scale.

Fly

Airport advertising is the 
smart way to engage with 
Australia’s difficult to reach, 
affluent business audience 
at scale as they travel 
around the country through 
a combination of digital, 
static, video pre-rolls, WIFI and 
activations.

oOh! airport advertising 
impacts every stage of 
the passenger’s journey, 
comprising multiple networks 
across 16 Cities, 20 Terminals, 
16 Qantas Lounges and 
Qantas Inflight Entertainment.

Office

oOh! office advertising 
empowers brands to target 
CBD professionals while 
they are at work, reaching 3 
million professionals through 
5,000+ full-motion digital 
screens in over 600 prominent 
Australian office towers.
 
Through smart behavioural 
targeting, we’re able to 
scale professional audiences 
in high dwell, high-frequency 
captive environments to 
deliver efficient reach and 
superior engagement.

Study 

oOh! university advertising 
is the simplest and most 
powerful way to connect with 
students on their turf across 
Australia at scale.  

Covering more than 100 
Uni and TAFE campuses 
nationwide, our Study 
network reaches over 1.4 
million students with 220 
content-enriched digital 
screens and 120 static panels 
in student hubs on campus.
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Financial Overview
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For the year ended 31 
December 2023 (CY23) Out 
of Home (OOH) continued 
its strong performance as a 
growth advertising medium 
and was the fastest growing 
media segment, according 
to the Standard Media Index 
(SMI).

oOh! remains well positioned 
to leverage this structural 
growth and continues to focus 
on profitable market share, 
delivering a 7% increase in 
revenue on the prior year to 
$633.9 million. 

Financial 
Overview

The Group’s balance sheet 
remains strong with gearing 
at 0.6x adjusted EBITDA, and 
together with strong cashflow 
generation, this enabled the 
Company to deliver a full year 
dividend of 5.25 cents per 
share, fully franked, up 17 per 
cent on the prior year. 

As the market leader across 
Australia and New Zealand, 
oOh! remains strongly 
positioned  to capitalise on 
the structural medium-term 
growth of Out of Home, which 
is forecast to continue to take 
share from other forms of 
media.

Revenue 
$633.9 million

Adjusted EBITDA 
$130.2 million

Adjusted NPAT  
per share

10.0 cents per share

Reported NPAT
$34.6 million

7%

6% 10%

2%
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Chair Review
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Overview 
 
Out of Home was once again 
the fastest growing media 
segment in 2023.

As the category leader oOh! 
continued to capitalise on 
this growth, with disciplined 
implementation of our stated 
strategy to create a more 
digital, and digitised, business. 
We were pleased to be able 
to increase revenue whilst 
retaining margin.

This was especially pleasing 
in the area of contracts where 
we were able to continue 
our disciplined approach 
to renewals whilst securing 
new commercial contracts 
with greenfield digital sites 
which will deliver $30 million 
in annualised revenue upside 
from mid-2024.   

Our financial position remains 
strong which has again 
enabled enhanced returns to 
shareholders.

Summary of Financial 
Results 
 
Total revenue for CY23 was up 
7% to $633.9 million. 

We saw increases across all our 
key formats including continued 
double-digit growth in Road and 
further recovery in Fly.

This translated to an adjusted 
gross profit of $280.8 million, 
which was up 2% on the prior 
year.

Adjusted EBITDA was up 2% 
to $130.2 million, reflecting 
increased revenue, partially 
offset by increased fixed rent and 
lower rental abatements in CY23 
compared to the prior year. 

Adjusted Net Profit After Tax was 
$55.0 million compared to $56.2 
million for the prior year. 

On a statutory basis, the Group 
reported a 10% increase in NPAT 
of $34.6 million for CY23.

A detailed explanation of the 
financial results is contained 
within the Operating and 
Financial Review.

Chair Review

Adjusted NPAT per share
10.0 cents per share

full year dividend 
5.25 cents per share  

(fully franked)

17%

6%
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oOh!’s financial position 
remains strong as the 
Board ensures the 
Company remains well 
capitalised to continue 
our growth investments 
in key initiatives while 
delivering returns to 
shareholders.

Tony Faure 
Chair
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 1 Source: Morgan Stanley Research

Board

There were no changes to the 
Board during CY23. 

Our Board comprises seven 
directors which we think is 
appropriate in terms of size but 
more particularly in relation to the 
mix of skills and experience each 
director brings to the Board and 
to the Company.

I want to acknowledge and 
thank my fellow directors for their 
support and contribution to the 
Company over the year.

Summary and 
Conclusion

oOh!’s results in CY23 demonstrate 
our ongoing capacity to 
capitalise on the structural growth 
in Out of Home, together with 
the continued innovation and 
transformation across our network 
to deliver market-leading solutions 
for our clients.

I want to acknowledge and thank 
our people at oOh! for their focus 
and dedication during the year.

I also wish to thank our 
shareholders for your continued 
support of the Company.

Capital Management 
and Dividend

oOh!’s financial position remains 
strong as the Board ensures 
that the Company remains well 
capitalised in order to continue 
our investments in key growth 
initiatives whilst delivering ongoing 
returns to shareholders.

During the year we completed 
the on-market share buyback 
programme, having bought back 
59,864,587 shares for a total of 
$82.4 million over the course of 
the programme at an average of 
$1.37 per share.

Following the completion of 
this, adjusted earnings per share 
increased by 6% to 10.0 cents per 
share.

The Board continues to assess 
capital management initiatives.
The completion of the buyback 
increased net debt as at 31 
December 2023 to $83.8 million 
compared to $32.9 million as at 
31 December 2022. However, net 
debt has reduced by 25% from 30 
June 2023. 

The gearing ratio (net debt 
/ Adjusted EBITDA) as at 31 
December 2023 was 0.6 times.  
The Company’s target is to 
maintain gearing not exceeding 
1.0 times in the short term.  

Our policy is to pay dividends of 
40-60 per cent of adjusted Net 
Profit.

For CY23 adjusted Net Profit was 
$55.0 million. The Board declared 
a final dividend of 3.5 cents per 
share, fully franked, bringing the 
full year dividend to 5.25 cents per 
share, fully franked, an increase 
of 17% on the prior year and 
representing a 51% payout ratio. 

Strategic Progress 
 
We continue to make good 
progress executing our growth 
strategy.

Our focus remains to leverage 
the unique scale and diversity 
of our network to capitalise on 
the opportunities the continued 
structural growth of Out of Home 
presents, in particular the shift of 
advertising spend from free-to-air 
TV to OOH.

This includes focusing on profitable 
market share, and diversifying into 
new adjacent revenue streams 
to deliver long-term sustainable 
earnings growth.

A good example of this is our 
reooh business which launched 
in October to capitalise on 
opportunities in retail media, 
a sector forecast to grow to 
approximately $3 billion by 20271.
 
reooh won two long term 
contracts in its first few months 
of operation with a further major 
Australian retailer signing on for a 
pilot programme in Q1 CY24. 
Cathy’s CEO report provides 
further details of this and other 
strategic initiatives.
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Revenue increased across all our 
formats with Road once again 
being the stand-out, delivering 
14% growth on the prior year.
 
Adjusted gross profit increased by 
2% to $280.8 million, representing 
an adjusted gross margin of 44.3% 
(CY22: 46.2%). The decline in 
adjusted gross margin was driven 
primarily by an increase in fixed 
rents relating to the renewal of 
some larger contracts during 
late CY22, and from higher rental 
abatements received in the prior 
year.  Gross margin was also 
impacted by a higher proportion 
of revenue in CY23 from the (lower 
margin) Fly and Rail formats. 
Despite this, the gross margin result 
for oOh! was higher than any 
period from CY19 to CY21.

In an inflationary environment, 
we remained disciplined on 
operational expenditure with 
underlying cost growth of 2%, 
reflecting predominantly labour 
cost inflation which was partially 
offset by lower marketing 
expenses.

CEO’s
Report
Introduction 
 
oOh! delivered a strong 
financial result for CY23 with 
increased revenue and 
earnings growth leading 
to improved returns for 
shareholders.

As Out of Home continues to 
be the fastest growing media 
segment, we continued to 
implement our strategy to 
leverage this growth while 
also developing new revenue 
opportunities.

Our progress in CY23 reflects 
the contribution of our people 
right across our business who 
continue to deliver results for 
our clients which translates to 
returns for our shareholders.

Financial Report 
 
Out of Home’s appeal to 
advertisers as a cost-effective 
advertising medium grew strongly 
during the year, continuing the 
segment’s out-performance and 
the structural growth opportunity 
compared to traditional media.
Standard Media Index reported 
that Out of Home achieved 
agency media revenue growth 
of 15%, capturing 14.5% of 
advertising agency media spend 
for the year, up from 12.3% in the 
prior year and representing Out of 
Home’s highest ever level share of 
agency media spend. 
This growth compares to a 
broader decline for total 
advertising agency spend of 3%, 
with traditional media such as 
television declining by 14% and 
radio declining by 6%.  

oOh! remains well positioned to 
leverage this structural growth and 
we continue to focus on profitable 
market share, delivering a 7% 
increase in revenue on the prior 
year to $633.9 million. 

Revenue increased 
across all our formats 
with Road once 
again being the 
stand-out, delivering 
14% growth on the 
prior year.
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Adjusted EBITDA increased by 2% 
to $130.2 million. 

Adjusted NPAT was $55.0 million 
compared $56.2 million for the 
prior year. 

The Group reported a 10% 
increase in statutory NPAT of $34.6 
million for CY23. 

Further information on the 
Company’s financial results is 
contained in the Operating and 
Financial Review.

Disciplined Contract renewal

We continued our disciplined 
approach to contract renewals 
while maintaining a diverse lease 
maturity profile. Our focus remains 
on maximising network revenue 
while achieving sustainable 
margin and earnings growth and 
returns on capital.

During CY23, we successfully 
retained 75% of large contracts 
expiring during the reporting 
period.

Approximately $137 million or 
23% of CY23 revenue is attached 
to contracts that expire in CY24 
which represents a 26% reduction 
in near term expiry compared to 
the prior year. Meanwhile over 
50% of CY23 revenue is attached 
to contracts that expire after three 
years.

At the same time, we continue 
to develop new revenue 
opportunities to further enhance 
the diversity and scale of our 
metropolitan and suburban 
network. During the year, we 
successfully secured three 
new contracts (Sydney Metro, 
Sydney Metro Martin Place and 
Woollahra Council) representing 
approximately $30 million in 
annualised revenue upside from 
mid-2024. These contracts also 
provide significantly enhanced 
coverage across the key Sydney 
CBD and inner metropolitan 
market.

oOh! delivered revenue 
growth across all formats

oOh! reported 10% increase 
in statutory NPAT

10%

7%
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Update On Strategy 

Our strategy is focused on three 
main areas: leading Out of Home 
to a digital first future; capturing 
audience attention in public 
spaces at scale; and making 
it easier for our customers to 
achieve better outcomes. We 
continued to make solid progress 
in each of these pillars over the 
course of the year.

Leading Out of Home to a 
digital first future 

We are focused on growth 
through asset digitisation and also 
through increased digitisation of 
trading and automation.

We continued to digitise assets 
in premium locations across our 
network with digital revenue as 
a percentage of total revenue in 
CY23 increasing to 67% from 64% 
in the prior year.

We launched over 680 new digital 
sites and panels into the market, 
representing an increase of 43% 
on the prior year. 

We now have more than 10,000 
digital sites across our Billboard, 
Airport, Retail, Street Furniture, Rail 
and Office networks, and we are 
constantly evolving and adding 
more digital assets to what is 
already the largest digital footprint 
in the country.

Capturing audiences in public 
spaces at scale

The increasing digitisation in Out 
of Home is leading to new levels 
of innovation and creativity 
which is inspiring advertisers to try 
new ideas in the medium. It also 
opens up new ways for OOH to 
participate in other addressable 
markets.

These include 3D anamorphic – full 
motion video 3D billboards which 
are high investment creative 
opportunities for advertisers.

During the year we launched 
oOh!dimensions which represents 
Australia’s only truly national 
3D Anamorphic offering. We 
successfully delivered 50 3D 
anamorphic campaigns during 
the year; up 28% on the prior year. 
We launched one of the largest 
airport billboards in the southern 
hemisphere ‘Queen Victoria’ at 
Melbourne’s Tullamarine Airport. 
This new landmark joins oOh!’s 
‘The King’ at Sydney Airport and 
‘Big Morety’ at Brisbane Airport 
as three of Australia’s largest and 
most premium Out of Home digital 
sites, with a combined reach 
of more than 11% or 1.3 million 
people on the eastern seaboard 
over a 28-day period.
 

Making it easier for customers 
to achieve better outcomes
 
We continue to work 
collaboratively with advertisers 
to demonstrate the unique 
advantages of Out of Home 
while also providing exclusive 
opportunities to evaluate and 
attribute sales results compared to 
the rest of their category. 

During the year we launched 
oOh!outcomes which provides 
advertisers and agencies with 
behaviour-based data across 800 
buyer segments mapped to every 
one of oOh!’s 35,000 sites. 
Leveraging our exclusive Out of 
Home agreement with Unpacked 
by Flybuys, and the partnership 
with Westpac DataX, oOh! has the 
capability to tap into consumer 
behaviour across more than 12 
million customers.

oOh!outcomes is the most 
extensive reporting suite available 
in Out of Home, making it easier 
to measure the direct effect 
Out of Home campaigns has on 
performance when Out of Home 
plays a role.

During the year 114 campaigns 
were measured using 
oOh!outcomes.

reooh growth opportunity

In addition to these pillars, we 
continue to pursue innovative and 
diversified revenue opportunities 
which complement our market-
leading expertise in Out of Home. 

One example of this innovation is 
the successful launch of our retail 
media business, reooh, during the 
year. 

reooh is an Out of Home solution 
designed specifically for major 
retailers to fast-track the growth 
of their retail media businesses by 
offering a digital OOH network 
as part of their integrated retail 
media offering.

The retail media market is 
projected to be worth $3 billion in 
Australia by 2027.

This presents a new annual 
recurring revenue profile for oOh! 
with long-term service revenue 
contracts with major businesses 
in a rapidly growing and material 
category.

We successfully secured two long 
term contracts with retail clients 
during the year, with a further  
major Australian retailer signing on 
for a pilot programme in Q1 CY24.

digital revenue as a 
percentage of total revenue

increase in oOh! 3D 
anamorphic campaigns

67%

28%
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We continued to digitise 
assets in premium 
locations across our 
network with digital 
revenue as a percentage 
of total revenue in CY23 
increasing to 67% from 
64% in the prior year.
Cathy O’Connor 
Managing Director  
and CEO
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Sustainability 

‘Making Public Spaces Better’ is 
our company’s purpose which 
describes the impact that we 
aspire to have in the community.  
We continue to implement a 
range of initiatives to support this 
purpose.

In CY23, we became the first 
media company in Australia 
to use Ecobanner – a fully 
recyclable, closed loop capable 
and PVC free material that is also 
highly durable. 

Summary 

Our results in CY23 demonstrate 
the ongoing structural growth in 
Out of Home and we continue to 
successfully leverage the diversity 
and scale of our portfolio to 
deliver results for clients and for 
our shareholders.

We remain well-placed to 
leverage the continued expected 
growth in Out of Home while 
also developing innovative and 
diversified revenue opportunities 
which complement our market-
leading OOH expertise.  

Our focus remains on building 
sustainable growth across the 
business and I wish to thank 
shareholders for your continued 
support.

We also reinforced our 
commitment to building out a 
strategy for a decarbonisation of 
our business. For example, more 
than 9,500 advertising panels in 
our operational control across 
Australia and New Zealand have 
already been converted to 
renewable energy, including solar 
and GreenPower (or equivalent), 
an increase of 3,300 over the past 
12 months. In addition, all 17 of 
oOh!’s depots and offices are 
running on renewable energy. It 
follows the net-zero certification 
of oOh!’s New Zealand operations 
during the year. 

We also launched a new 
partnership with not-for profit 
organisation, Greening Australia to 
support nature conservation.

Further details on our 
commitments and progress are 
available in our Sustainability 
Report. 
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Operating and 
Financial Review 
Introduction

oOh!media revenue 
growth 7%, outperforming 
broader media market 
- continued focus on 
profitable market share 
and building sustainable 
growth.

Adjusted NPAT 
per share

Adjusted 
EBITDA

Reported NPAT

Revenue

6%

2% 10%

7%
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For the year ended 31 December 
2023 (CY23) Out of Home (OOH) 
continued its strong performance 
as a growth advertising medium 
and was the fastest growing 
media segment, according to the 
Standard Media Index (SMI).

The OMA reported that Out of 
Home experienced double-digit 
revenue growth in CY23 of 12% 
on the prior year. After excluding 
the impact of the City of Sydney, 
OMA revenue grew by 8%.

Separately, SMI reported that 
Out of Home achieved agency 
media revenue growth of 15%, 
capturing 14.5% of advertising 
agency media spend for the 
year, up from 12.3% in the prior 
year and representing Out of 
Home’s highest ever level share 
of agency media spend. This was 
against a broader decline for total 
advertising agency spend of 3%, 
with traditional media such as 
television declining 14% and radio 
declining 6%.  

oOh! remains well positioned to 
leverage this structural growth and 
continues to focus on profitable 
market share, delivering a 7% 
increase in revenue on the prior 
year to $633.9 million. Revenue 
growth was led by a double-digit 
increase in oOh!’s Road segment. 

Adjusted Earnings Before 
Interest, Tax, Depreciation and 
Amortisation (EBITDA) increased 
by 2% to $130.2 million. Adjusted 
Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) was 
$55.0 million compared to 
adjusted NPAT of $56.2 million for 
the prior year. 

The Company continues its 
disciplined approach to contract 
renewals while maintaining a 
diverse lease maturity profile.  
Approximately $137 million or 
23% of CY23 revenue is attached 
to contracts that expire in CY24 
while over 50% of CY23 revenue is 
attached to contracts that expire 
after three years. Additionally, the 
Company successfully renewed 
75% of large contracts that 
expired in CY23.

At the same time, oOh! continues 
to develop new revenue 
opportunities to further enhance 
the diversity and scale of its 
metropolitan and suburban 
network. During the year oOh! 
successfully secured three 
new contracts (Sydney Metro, 
Sydney Metro Martin Place and 
Woollahra Council) representing 
approximately $30 million in 
annualised revenue upside from 
mid-2024. These contracts also 
provide significantly enhanced 
coverage across the key Sydney 
CBD and inner metropolitan 
market.

oOh! has also identified and 
continues to pursue innovative 
and diversified revenue 
opportunities which complement 
the Company’s market-leading 
expertise in Out of Home. The 
Company successfully launched 
reooh during the year, which 
provides retail clients with a 
turnkey in-store media screen 
network, delivering an annualised 
recurring revenue stream to 
oOh!. The Retail Media market 
is projected to reach $3 billion 
by 2027, according to Morgan 
Stanley.

The Group’s balance sheet 
remains strong with gearing at 0.6x 
adjusted EBITDA, and together 
with strong cashflow generation, 
this has enabled the Company to 
deliver a full year dividend of 5.25 
cents per share, fully franked, up 
17 per cent on the prior year.  

As the market leader across 
Australia and New Zealand, 
oOh! remains strongly positioned 
to capitalise on the structural 
medium-term growth of Out 
of Home, which is forecast to 
continue to take share from other 
forms of media.  

The Group will continue to 
leverage this growth with a focus 
on pursuing profitable market 
share opportunities. Innovating 
its offering will build additional 
and complementary revenue 
opportunities to deliver sustainable 
growth over the medium term. 
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Group Financial Results

Revenue Increased By 7% Driven By Continued Strong Double-Digit 
Performance In Road

Out of Home’s appeal to advertisers as a cost-effective advertising medium grew strongly during the year, 
continuing the segment’s out-performance and the structural growth opportunity of Out of Home compared 
to traditional media. 

oOh!’s revenue growth for the year was 7% to $633.9 million, with all formats experiencing revenue growth, 
including continued strong double-digit growth in Road and further recovery in Fly.

A$m unless specified CY23 CY22 Variance ($) Variance (%)

Revenue 633.9 592.6 41.3 7%

Gross profit 417.8 422.8 (5.0) (1%)

Gross profit margin (%) 65.9% 71.3% (5.4 ppts)

Total operating expenditure (140.0) (136.9) (3.2) 2%

Underlying EBITDA 277.7 285.9 (8.2) (3%)

Other income & non-operating items 0.5 2.1 (1.6) (77%)

EBITDA 278.2 288.1 (9.8) (3%)

EBITDA margin (%) 43.9% 48.6% (4.7 ppts)

Depreciation and amortisation (182.8) (200.7) 17.8 (9%)

EBIT 95.4 87.4 8.0 9%

Net finance costs (43.1) (41.2) (1.9) 5%

Profit/(loss) before tax 52.2 46.2 6.1 13%

Income tax expense (17.6) (14.6) (3.0) 20%

Net profit/(loss) after tax 34.6 31.5 3.1 10%

EPS (cps) 6.3 5.3 1.0 19%

Adjusted EBITDA 130.2 127.1 3.1 2%

Adjusted EBITDA margin (%) 20.5% 21.4% (0.9 ppt)

Adjusted NPAT 55.0 56.2 (1.2) (2%)

A$m unless specified CY23 CY22 Variance ($) Variance (%)

Road 218.4 191.1 27.3 14%

Street Furniture and Rail 197.7 196.5 1.2 1%

Retail 145.2 142.9 2.3 2%

Fly 43.7 33.8 9.9 29%

City and Youth 17.7 17.4 0.3 1%

Other 11.3 10.8 0.4 4%

Total 633.9 592.6 41.3 7%

32   •   oOh!media   •   Annual Report 2023



Revenue By Format
Road

The Group’s Road (billboard) 
division maintained its strong 
performance, continuing its 
solid result from the prior year.  
Revenue for CY23 increased 
by 14% to $218.4 million.  
Momentum also continued 
into the second half with 2H 
revenue up 16% compared to 
the prior corresponding half.

Revenue in the segment was 
well ahead of CY19 levels, 
with CY23 revenue up almost 
50% as oOh! continues to 
innovate its product offering 
to leverage the diversity and 
scale of its metropolitan and 
suburban network to drive 
market share gains in the 
segment. 

oOh! added 56 digital 
locations to its metropolitan 
and regional roadside 
billboard portfolio during 
the period, including 17 sites 
through its agreement with 
EI Media, and now has over 
250 large format digital signs 
across Australia. 

Retail

Revenue in the Retail format 
increased by 2% to $145.2 
million compared to the 
prior year.  Revenue growth 
was softer in the second 
half, following a strong prior 
corresponding half.  oOh! 
expanded its Retail digital 
footprint by adding 380 new 
digital panels to over 44 new 
and upgraded centres. oOh! 
is continuing to increase the 
penetration of digital panels in 
Retail through the conversion 
of classic panels, which will 
allow the Company to close 
the performance gap on its 
competitors.

Street Furniture  
and Rail

Revenue in Street Furniture 
and Rail increased by 1% 
to $197.7 million. Revenue 
declined in the first half, 
impacted by the introduction 
of a competitor’s significantly 
expanded City of Sydney 
offering in September 2022. 
Revenue increased by 
4% in the second half on 
the prior corresponding 
half, despite a continued 
impact from the new City 
of Sydney offering, due to a 
stronger performance from 
the Australian Rail product 
and New Zealand’s Street 
Furniture recovering from a 
challenging H1.
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Fly

The continued recovery in 
air travel reflected strong 
revenue growth in the Fly 
category, which increased 
by 29% to $43.7 million on the 
prior year. Revenue growth 
in percentage terms was 
stronger in the first half when 
compared to the prior period 
which was impacted by the 
COVID Omicron variant, 
which reduced air travel.  
Additionally, growth was 
softer in the second half with 
the launch of the Qantas 
Chairman’s Lounge in the 
prior corresponding half.

With Fly revenue at 66% of 
CY19 revenue, there is still 
further upside in this format in 
the near to medium term.

Other

The Other category primarily 
includes revenue from the 
Cactus Imaging, POLY and 
reooh businesses.  

City and Youth 
(Previously Locate)

City and Youth predominantly 
includes the Company’s 
office tower advertising 
format and has been 
renamed from Locate, 
following the divestment 
of the Café and Venue 
businesses in January 2023. 

Revenue in the City and 
Youth format was steady on 
the prior year at $17.7 million. 
Revenue in the second 
half grew 10% on the prior 
corresponding half reflecting 
the continued return of 
audiences to Central Business 
District office environments.  
Adjusting for the sale of the 
Café and Venue business, 
revenue on a like for like basis 
in the format increased by 9% 
on the prior year. 

The City and Youth segment 
has a predominantly variable 
rent profile which ensures 
it continues to be a highly 
valuable segment for oOh!.  
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Balanced Portfolio

oOh! maintains a diverse portfolio of assets across a 
variety of formats and remains focused on digital and 
data-led innovation in the sector.  The digitisation 
of assets in premium locations across its network 
continues and digital revenue as a percentage of 
total revenue in CY23 was 67%, compared to 64%  
for CY22.

The Company continues its disciplined approach to 
contract renewals while maintaining a diverse lease 
maturity profile. 

Approximately $137 million or 23% of CY23 revenue 
is attached to contracts that expire in CY24 which 
represents a 26% reduction in near term expiry 
compared to the prior year.  Meanwhile over 50% of 
CY23 revenue is attached to contracts that expire 
after three years. 

Earnings Commentary - Continued 
Cost Discipline Within Inflationary 
Environment

Unless specified, the commentary below relates to 
statutory results in respect of CY23 and the prior year 
(CY22).

The 7% increase in revenue translated to a statutory 
gross profit of $417.8 million, down 1% on the prior 
year.  Gross profit and gross margin were impacted 
by the reclassification of leases from fixed rent to 
variable rent, and higher variable rent costs.

Gross profit on an adjusted basis increased by 2% to 
$280.8 million representing an adjusted gross margin 
of 44.3% (CY22: 46.2%).  

The decline in adjusted gross margin was driven 
primarily by an increase in fixed rents relating to the 
renewal of some larger contracts during late CY22, 
and from higher rental abatements received in the 
prior year. Gross margin was also impacted by a 
higher proportion of revenue in CY23 from the (lower 
margin) Fly and Rail formats. Despite this, the gross 
margin result for oOh! was higher than any period 
from CY19 to CY21.

In an inflationary environment, oOh! remains 
disciplined on operational expenditure which 
increased by 2% on the prior year to $140.0 million on 
a statutory basis. On an adjusted basis, operational 
expenditure was $150.6 million, up 3%. Underlying 
cost growth (excluding one-off adjustments) was 2%, 
reflecting predominantly labour cost inflation which 
was partially offset by lower marketing expenses. 
One-off adjustments included costs associated with 
make-good on non-renewed leases.

Adjusted EBITDA increased by 2% to $130.2 million, 
reflecting increased revenue, partially offset by 
increased fixed rent and lower rental abatements in 
CY23 compared to the prior year.

Adjusted EBITDA margin was 20.5% compared to 
21.4% in CY22.

Reported underlying EBITDA declined by 3.0% to 
$277.7 million, reflecting the decline in gross margin 
outlined above.

Adjusted depreciation and amortisation increased 
on the prior year which was primarily related to a $1.7 
million increase in amortisation of intangible software 
in CY23. 

As a result, adjusted EBIT of $71.1 million was up 1% on 
the prior year. 

Net finance costs (on an adjusted basis) increased by 
$0.8 million, with an increase in costs from higher net 
debt following the completion of the share buyback, 
and higher interest rates partially offset by gains from 
interest rate derivatives.

Adjusted NPAT was $55.0 million compared to 
adjusted NPAT of $56.2 million for the prior year. 

Following completion of the on-market share 
buyback, adjusted earnings per share increased by 
6% from 9.4 cents per share to 10.0 cents per share.

The Group reported a 10% increase in statutory NPAT 
of $34.6 million for CY23.
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Full Year Dividend Up 17%  
Fully Franked

The Group’s policy is to pay dividends of 40-60 per 
cent of adjusted NPAT. 

For CY23 adjusted NPAT was $55.0 million. The Board 
declared a final dividend of 3.5 cents per share, fully 
franked, bringing the full year dividend to 5.25 cents 
per share, fully franked, an increase of 17% on the 
prior year and representing a 51% payout ratio.

The record date for entitlement to receive the 
final dividend is 29 February 2024 with a scheduled 
payment date of 21 March 2024.

Capital Management

On 8 June 2023 the Group advised it had completed 
its on-market share buyback programme, having 
bought back 59,864,587 shares for a total of $82.4 
million over the course of the programme at an 
average of $1.37 per share.

The Board continues to assess capital management 
initiatives. 

Free cash flow, or net cash flow before financing and 
acquisitions, declined $22.3 million mainly as a result 
of increased capital expenditure and a $18.2 million 
catch up payment of CY22 income tax during 1H 
2023, partially offset by working capital movements. 

Capital expenditure for CY23 was $39.7 million, 47% 
ahead of the prior year which was impacted by 
significant delays in tenders and renewals.

Cashflow Generation

A$m unless specified CY23 CY22 Variance ($) Variance (%)

Adjusted EBITDA 130.2 127.1 3.1 2%

Net change in working capital and non-
cash items

(3.7) (14.9) 11.2 (75%)

Income tax paid (31.9) (8.3) (23.6) 284%

Interest paid (6.4) (6.4) - 0%

Net cash from operating activities 88.2 97.5 (9.3) (10%)

Capital expenditure (39.7) (27.0) (12.7) 47%

Other (2.2) (1.9) (0.3) 16%

Net cash flow before financing and 
acquisitions

46.3 68.6 (22.3) (33%)

Capital expenditure remains focused on enhancing 
the Group’s digital OOH capability and oOh! 
launched over 680 new digital sites in key locations 
during the year.

Capital allocation will continue to be aligned to 
revenue growth opportunities and concession 
renewals.
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Financial Position Remains Strong

The Group’s financial position remains strong. 
The completion of the on-market share buyback 
increased net debt as at 31 December 2023 to $83.8 
million compared to $32.9 million as at 31 December 
2022. However, net debt has reduced by 25% from 30 
June 2023.

The gearing ratio (net debt / Adjusted EBITDA) as at 
31 December 2023 was 0.6 times. The Company’s 
target is to maintain gearing not exceeding 1.0 times 
in the short term. This gearing ratio excludes the 
impact of AASB 16 which is not seen as debt for the 
purposes of applying the banking covenants.

A$m unless specified CY23 CY22 Variance ($) Variance (%)

Borrowings 115.4 72.9 42.5 58%

Cash and Cash equivalents 31.6 40.0 (8.4) (21%)

Net Debt 83.8 32.9 50.9 155%

Leverage Ratio (Net Debt/Adjusted EBITDA) 0.6x 0.3x 0.4x n/a

The Group maintains total facilities under its banking 
syndicate of $350 million with $150 million of interest 
rate derivatives until October 2025 in place, which 
were taken out in October 2018. 
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Tony Faure  
 
Chair and Independent  
Non-executive Director 

Tony was appointed to the Board of oOh!media 
Limited on 28 November 2014 and appointed Chair 
on 22 September 2017.

Tony was also a Director of the parent company of 
the oOh!media group (since February 2014).

Skills and experience: 

Tony has deep experience in traditional and digital 
media and marketing, having run both small and 
large companies. Tony is passionate about ideas 
that use technology to push limits and create 
new experiences for consumers. Tony has held the 
positions of Chief Executive Officer of ninemsn and 
Chief Executive Officer and Founder of Home Screen 
Entertainment, and positions at Yahoo! including 
Regional Vice President, South Asia and Managing 
Director of Yahoo! Australia and New Zealand. Tony 
was also an advisor to the Board of seek.com.

Other public directorships (current and recent): 

Tony is currently the Chair of ReadyTech Holdings 
(since 2019).

Catherine O’Connor  
 
Chief Executive Officer and  
Managing Director 

Catherine (Cathy) was appointed as Chief Executive 
Officer effective 1 January 2021 and as Managing 
Director effective 11 January 2021. 
 
Skills and experience: 

Before joining oOh!media Cathy spent 12 successful 
years at the helm of Nova Entertainment.

Cathy helped transform Nova into a multi-platform 
entertainment business, spending 17 years in total 
with the company. Prior to that she held several 
management roles at Austereo, after starting her 
career in radio advertising sales at 2SM and 2GB.

She is leading the strategic evolution of oOh!’s 
business model at a time of rapid change, 
capitalising on the Company’s significant investments 
in data, audience insights, content and creative to 
target sustained growth.

Cathy is Chair of the Sony Foundation, and previously 
served on the Commercial Radio Australia Board. 
Her numerous career achievements include a 
Telstra NSW Business Women’s Award for the Private 
Sector, a Centenary Medal for Service to Australian 
Society in Business Leadership, and induction into the 
Commercial Radio Hall of Fame.

A Graduate of the Institute of Company 
Directors, Cathy also holds a Bachelor of Arts in 
Communications from University of Technology 
Sydney.

Board of 
Directors 
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David Wiadrowski 
 
Independent Non-executive 
Director and Chair of the 
Audit, Risk & Compliance 
Committee

David was appointed to the Board of oOh!media 
Limited on 29 November 2019. 
 
Skills and experience: 

David is an experienced Non-executive Director 
currently serving on three ASX listed companies 
and brings strong commercial acumen and skills 
to the Board. David was a partner of PwC for more 
than 25 years, holding a number of leadership roles 
in Australia and overseas including five years as 
Chief Operating Officer of the firm’s largest business 
consisting of 160 partners and 1,800 staff.

Throughout his career at PwC, David continually 
developed deep expertise in the technology, 
entertainment and media sectors. He was the lead 
audit partner for major clients including Network Ten, 
Seven West Media, APN News & Media and APN 
Outdoor.

David holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the 
University of New South Wales, is a Graduate of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors’ and is a 
Fellow of the Chartered Accountants of Australia and 
New Zealand.

David is a Board member of the Cambodian 
Children’s Fund Australia Limited.

In addition to his outstanding financial credentials, 
David brings strong commercial acumen to the 
Board, derived from his extensive experience at PwC 
and his board roles.

Other public directorships (current and recent): 

David is currently a Non-executive Director and Chair 
of the Audit and Risk Committee of Life360 Inc (since 
2019) and Non-executive Director and Chair of the 
Audit Committee of Car Group Limited (formerly 
carsales.com) (since 2019). David was appointed as 
a Non-executive Director of IPH Limited in November 
2023. 

David was previously a Non-executive Director and 
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee of Vocus 
Group Limited (2017 – 2021).

Philippa Kelly  
 
Independent Non-executive 
Director and Chair of the 
Talent & Culture Committee

Philippa was appointed to the Board of oOh!media 
Limited on 18 September 2019.
 
Skills and experience: 

Philippa has more than 25 years’ experience in 
property, investment management and finance, with 
a background in law and investment banking.

Philippa has extensive board and executive 
experience across the retail, commercial and 
residential land lease property sectors, including 
significant expertise in corporate transactions, 
capital raisings and IPOs, funds management, asset 
management and acquisition and divestments. She 
was formerly Chief Operating Officer of the Juilliard 
Group, one of Melbourne’s largest private property 
owners. Previously she was Head of Institutional Funds 
Management of Centro Properties Group (now 
Vicinity Centres).

Philippa holds a Bachelor of Laws from University 
of Western Australia and a Graduate Diploma of 
Applied Finance & Investment from FINSIA. She is a 
fellow of the AICD and FINSIA and a member of Chief 
Executive Women.

Philippa is also an independent Director of 
AustralianSuper and Chair of its Investment 
Committee and a Non-executive Director of Hub 
Australia and River Capital. 

Other public directorships (current and recent): 

Philippa is currently Chair of Lifestyle Communities 
Limited (ASX:LIC), and was Deputy-Chancellor of 
Deakin University until December 2021.
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Timothy Miles
 
Independent Non-executive 
Director and Chair of the 
Technology & Transformation 
Committee

Timothy (Tim) was appointed to the Board of 
oOh!media Limited on 16 May 2019.

Skills and experience: 

Based in Auckland, Tim has significant experience, 
both internationally and in New Zealand, notably in 
technology and digital development.

Tim has held senior leadership roles including as 
Chief Executive Officer of Spark Digital, Managing 
Director of listed agricultural services group PGG 
Wrightson, Chief Executive Officer of Vodafone New 
Zealand and Chief Executive of Vodafone UK and 
Group Chief Technology Officer of Vodafone plc. 
Tim has also held senior roles at IBM, Data General 
Corporation and Unisys Corp. Tim holds a Bachelor of 
Arts from Victoria University of Wellington.

Tim is currently the Chair of the Gut Cancer 
Foundation and Mahi Tahi Towers Company and is 
a Non-executive Director of Nyriad Inc. (previously 
Nyriad New Zealand, since 2018).

Other public directorships (current and recent): 

Tim is currently a Non-executive Director and Chair of 
HR and Remuneration of Genesis (NZE, since 2016).

Tim was formerly the Chair of Centurion GSM (a 
joint venture between Vodafone NZ and Millennium 
Group – ceased May 2022).

Andrew Stevens
 
Independent Non-executive 
Director

Andrew was appointed to the Board of oOh!media 
Limited on 25 September 2020.

Skills and experience: 

Andrew was Managing Director of IBM Australia 
and New Zealand from 2011 to 2014, having 
joined IBM when the company acquired 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting (PwC) and 
previously holding senior roles including Managing 
Partner, Growth Markets for IBM’s Global Business 
Services where he was responsible for the 
performance of the operations in Asia Pacific, Latin 
America, Central Europe, the Middle East, and Africa.

Andrew holds a Master of Commerce and Bachelor 
of Commerce from the University of New South Wales 
and is a Fellow of Chartered Accountants Australia 
and New Zealand.

Andrew is currently the Chair of Industry Innovation 
and Science Australia and is the Data Standards 
Chair for the Consumer Data Right in Australia and is 
a Non-executive Director.

Other public directorships (current and recent): 

Andrew is currently a Non-executive Director of 
Stockland Group Limited (since 2017).

Board of Directors continued
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Joanne Pollard  
 
Independent Non-executive 
Director

Joanne (Joe) was appointed to the Board of 
oOh!media Limited on 24 August 2021.

Skills and experience: 

Joe has domestic and international experience in the 
telecommunications, media, marketing and sports 
industries. Over a 30 year executive career, Joe was 
Group Executive of Media and Marketing at Telstra 
and Chief Executive Officer of Ninemsn and Publicis 
Mojo. She spent 10 years at Nike Inc as Global 
Director of Media, Digital and Content and then 
Chief Marketing Officer at Nike Japan. She has held 
various leadership roles in sales, media, digital and 
content at Nine Entertainment Co. and Mindshare 
in Australia & Hong Kong. Joe is a member of the 
Australian Institute of Company Directors and Chief 
Executive Women.

Joe is a director at Greencross Limited and a 
member of its Audit and Risk Committee. She 
was previously a non-executive director of Nine 
Entertainment Co., AMP Bank Limited, Michelle 
Bridge’s 12WBT, I-Select, the Interactive Advertising 
Bureau, RACAT Group and Australian Association of 
National Advertisers. 

Other public directorships (current and recent): 

Joe is currently a director of Endeavour Group 
(ASX:EDV), Chair of People, Culture and Performance 
Committee and member of its Audit, Risk and 
Compliance Committee. She is a Non-executive 
Director of Washington H Soul Pattinson (ASX:SOL) 
and is a member of its Audit, Risk, and People 
Committees.

Maria Polczynski 
 
Company Secretary (resigned  
effective 28 February 2023)

Maria was previously General Counsel and Company 
Secretary of oOh!media Limited and resigned as 
Company Secretary on 28 February 2023.  Maria 
has over 30 years’ legal and leadership experience 
including as the senior legal officer of Bendigo and 
Adelaide Bank and partner of Sydney-based law firm, 
Henry Davis York (now part of Norton Rose Fulbright). 
Maria holds a Bachelor of Jurisprudence/Bachelor of 
Laws from the University of New South Wales and a 
Master of Laws from University of Technology Sydney.

Christopher Roberts 
 
Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company  
Secretary (appointed as Joint Company Secretary  
on 28 February 2023)

Christopher (Chris) was appointed as Chief Financial 
Officer and Joint Company Secretary effective 1 
August 2022 and 28 February 2023 respectively. 
Previous to this, Chris was oOh!’s Group Commercial 
Finance Director and has held a variety of senior 
finance-related roles during his prior 6 years with the 
company, including acting CFO and acting Chief 
Commercial Operating Officer. Chris is a Chartered 
Accountant and has an Executive MBA with the 
Australian Graduate School of Management.

Melissa Jones 
 
Joint Company Secretary (appointed as Joint 
Company Secretary on 28 February 2023) 

Melissa was appointed as Joint Company Secretary 
effective 28 February 2023. Melissa is the General 
Manager of Company Matters, Link Group’s 
company secretarial and governance team. Melissa 
holds a Bachelor of Law (Hons) and has over 20 
years’ experience as a lawyer and governance 
professional.  Melissa was previously a Company 
Secretary of oOh!media Limited between February 
2018 and February 2020. 
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Directors’
Report

Tony Faure 
Chair

Introduction 
 
The Directors of oOh!media 
Limited (oOh!media or the 
Company) present their report 
of oOh!media Limited and its 
controlled entities for the year 
ended 31 December 2023.

The Directors and Company 
Secretaries who held office at 
any time during or since the end 
of the financial year ended 31 
December 2023, together with 
their qualifications, experience 
and further details, are set out on 
the previous pages, which form 
part of this report.

The Directors’ Report has been 
prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Corporations 
Act 2001 (Cth). The information 
below forms part of this Directors’ 
Report.

Corporate Structure 
 
oOh!media Limited is a public 
company limited by shares that 
is incorporated and domiciled 
in Australia and listed on the 
Australian Securities Exchange.

Principal Activities 
 
oOh!media is a leading Out of 
Home media company, offering 
advertisers the ability to create 
deep engagement between 
people and brands across one of 
the largest and most diverse Out 
of Home location-based portfolios 
in Australia and New Zealand.      
oOh!media’s portfolio includes:

•	 large format digital and 
classic roadside screens;

•	 large and small format digital 
and classic signs located 
in retail precincts such as 
shopping centres;

•	 large and small format digital 
and classic signs in airport 
terminals, lounges and in-
flight;

•	 digital and classic street 
furniture signs;

•	 digital and classic format 
advertising in public transport 
corridors including rail; and

•	 digital and classic signs in 
high dwell time environments 
such as universities and office 
buildings. 

oOh!media also provides 
advertising creative and printing 
services.

oOh!media is a 
leading Out of Home 
media company, 
offering advertisers 
the ability to create 
deep engagement 
between people 
and brands.
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Operating & Financial 
Review
 
The consolidated profit/(loss) 
attributable to the owners of the 
parent entity for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2023 was 
$34,617,000 (2022: $31,516,000). 

A review of operations and results 
of the Group for the year ended 
31 December 2023 is set out in the 
Operating and Financial Review, 
which forms part of this Report. 
 

Significant Changes In 
The State Of Affairs
 
There have been no significant 
changes in the state of affairs of 
the Company during CY23.

Likely Developments & 
Expected Results 
 
The Group’s prospects and 
strategic direction are discussed 
in various sections of this Report. 

Further information about likely 
developments in the operations 
of the Group and the expected 
results of those operations in future 
financial years has not been 
included in this Report because 
disclosure of the information 
would be likely to result in 
prejudice to the Group. 

Risk Management 

Governance
 
The Company pro-actively 
manages risks such as strategic 
risk, operational risk, governance 
and compliance risk and financial 
risk. The Board has mechanisms in 
place to ensure management’s 
objectives and activities are 
consistent with risk management 
direction by the Board including 
governance structures requiring 
Board approval of:

•	 the Group’s strategic plan 
and operational objectives;

•	 the Group’s policies regarding 
governance, conduct and 
other risks;

•	 the Group’s annual financial 
forecasts and operating 
budgets;

•	 all contracts and agreements 
which exceed the level of 
delegation to management 
in the Delegated Authority 
Policy approved by the Board; 
and

•	 all project developments 
which exceed the level of 
delegation to management 
in the Delegated Authority 
Policy approved by the Board.
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Key Risks 
 
The Company considers the following as being the most relevant risks to the business achieving its strategic, 
operational and financial targets:

Business Element Description of risk and the Company’s mitigation

External economic 
conditions

The Company operates in Australia and New Zealand. Several advertiser customers are global 
organisations whose media expenditure decisions can be affected by economic conditions in 
other jurisdictions. A general disruption to or downturn in macroeconomic factors such as consumer 
confidence, or the media industry specifically, may reduce revenues. This may have a significant 
impact on operating profit as a large proportion of the Company’s costs have a fixed component. 
The Company positions its operations to balance the opportunity of delivering outcomes for 
investors from stronger economic conditions as well as mitigating the impact of economic 
downturns given the cyclical nature of the media market. The Company maintains a portfolio of 
assets which is diversified across several Out of Home segments and across central business district, 
transport, metropolitan (including suburban) and regional areas in Australia and New Zealand. 
A significant proportion of arrangements with commercial partners include rent that varies with 
revenue in a period. The Company maintains debt financing facilities with liquidity headroom 
above expected operational needs.

Shifting audience 
patterns

Out of Home audiences were impacted by mandatory stay at home orders / restricted movement 
orders by governments in Australia and New Zealand during 2020 and 2021 as a result of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. This has led to an increase in working from home versus traveling to the office, 
supported by advancements in virtual meeting technology. Given the concentration of assets in 
CBD areas and particularly in office and rail environments – an elongation of working from home 
patterns will impact Out of Home audiences and revenues in the office and rail environment in 
particular versus the pre COVID-19 environment. The Company’s diversity of its assets into suburban 
and regional areas is a partial mitigant to this risk.

Meeting the 
evolving needs of 
advertisers

Growth in Out of Home advertising will be dependent on oOh!media’s continued ability to adapt 
to changes in the media landscape, including meeting evolving customer advertising requirements 
and competitive and legislative changes. The Board oversees key changes in the media landscape 
and the appropriateness of management’s response to such changes. oOh!media has developed 
a diversified portfolio to mitigate this risk, with diversity and scale across a number of different 
environments that deliver return on investment for advertisers. oOh!media has also invested in 
audience data, verification, scalable systems and operating models to manage this risk into the 
future.

Business partners oOh!media is dependent on concession contracts with commercial partners to maintain and 
manage its lease and licence portfolio, media agencies to represent this portfolio to their advertiser 
clients, and customers who desire the portfolio to advertise their goods and services. Many 
concession contracts require oOh!media to participate in competitive processes ahead of or at 
each renewal. Loss or weakening of relationships with media agencies, a change in the size or 
structure of the media agency market, or loss of relationships with key customers could impact 
the Group’s future operating and business performance. oOh!media has developed a diversified 
portfolio of relationships with numerous individual commercial partners and with different contract 
maturity dates to mitigate the impact of losing individual concession contracts, and has invested in 
data and insights to give agencies and customers more focus and reach for their desired audience 
using oOh!media’s unique portfolio.
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Business Element Description of risk and the Company’s mitigation

Business Continuity oOh!media’s ability to continue normal business operations may be adversely affected by a 
range of external and internal risks, including but not limited to: inability of employees to access 
key technology operating systems, access by employees to maintain, post and clean physical 
advertising assets across Australia and New Zealand and severe widespread reductions in 
audiences for oOh!media’s advertising assets across Australia and New Zealand resulting in a 
significant short term loss of revenue, as occurred in CY20 and CY21 due to COVID-19 pandemic 
government restrictions on public movement. oOh!media has deployed resources and strategies 
to mitigate specific risks: Work, health, safety and environmental (WHSE), IT and Cyber Security, 
Regulatory and Governance, all of which could give rise to a Business Continuity risk – refer to 
specific risk sections in this report. The Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee of the Board annually 
reviews oOh!media’s Business Continuity plans. The Company’s advertising assets are diversified 
across numerous environments (road, airports, street furniture, shopping centres, rail), geographically 
diverse locations across Australia and New Zealand and the majority of oOh!media’s revenues 
are from national advertisers who use multiple audience environments. As a result, oOh!media has 
limited business continuity concentration risk for localised advertising assets. Business continuity risk 
could arise as a result of widespread sustained impact to assets and audiences. The Company 
maintains debt financing facilities with liquidity headroom above expected operational needs, 
operates with rent structures which include a significant element of rent which varies with revenue 
and in certain key commercial arrangements fixed rent relief in the event of a pandemic.

Acquisitions & 
integration

Acquisitions may not deliver projected benefits or value, and integrations may not be successful, 
resulting in interruptions to the achievement of business strategy. oOh!media has deep experience 
managing business integrations and where appropriate, appoints full time project managers to 
assist with the management and delivery of integration programs. As required, oOh!media regularly 
reports against the performance of the integration and the new business to the Board.

Regulatory & 
Governance Description of risk and the Company’s mitigation

Regulatory The Group operates in an industry which is subject to specific regulatory risk, planning development 
regulations for deployment of the Group’s assets and regulatory changes with respect to advertising 
content on the Group’s assets. oOh!media engages proactively with regulatory and industry bodies 
regarding development of regulation and in ensuring compliance by the Group’s activities.

Governance The Group recognises stakeholder expectations regarding governance for an enterprise of its 
scale and operating as a publicly listed entity. A significant failure to meet expected standards 
of governance would impact the reputation and business outcomes for the Group. oOh!media 
engages professional in-house and where required, external, governance experts to assist its 
corporate, finance, legal and operations functions to provide advice and support, and to manage 
and review governance processes and systems.

ESG Expectations from advertisers, governments, landlords, employees, shareholders and other 
stakeholders with regards to the Company’s ESG profile continue to evolve. The Company formally 
established an ESG function in 2022 and enhances the in-house capabilities through specialist 
consulting services where appropriate.

IT & Cybersecurity Description of risk and the Company’s mitigation

IT security & 
resilience

Failure to appropriately address security risks around external threats to the digital network, IT 
systems and data (including personal information) could result in system suspension, loss of control or 
failure, the potential loss of intellectual property or a personal information data breach. oOh!media 
has developed a Cyber Security Strategy and processes. Activities in relation to managing Cyber 
Security risk are overseen by a Cyber Security Steering Committee comprising of executives leading 
the operational functions in addition to the IT executive leadership. Cyber risk management 
activities are reported regularly to the Board and its Committees, including the Technology 
& Transformation Committee. The business does not acquire nor retain private information of 
individuals other than employees.
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People & Capabilty Description of risk and the Company’s mitigation

WHSE Work, health, safety and environmental (WHSE) risks could occur causing physical injury or death to 
employees or others, damage to property or the environment, damage to reputation and involve 
regulatory breach. oOh!media has a dedicated Wellbeing, Safety and Environment function, 
complemented by a management system that is rigorously enforced. This team conducts quality 
assurance on providers to ensure compliance with policies, induction, licensing requirements, 
insurance and WHS policies. oOh!media has a Group-wide induction and new site training program 
for workplace, health and emergency measures and conducts third party independent audits of its 
work, health & safety and environmental systems to identify any areas for continuous improvement. 
Strategy and processes, policies and activities in relation to managing WHSE are overseen by a 
WHSE Steering Committee comprising of executives leading operational functions across the Group. 
WHSE risk management activities and all incidents are reported to and considered regularly by the 
Board.

Culture, employee 
retention & 
succession

The Company has a vibrant and professional culture which embraces colleagues as individuals 
as well as contributors. This culture has enabled the Company to grow to be the largest Out of 
Home operator in Australia and New Zealand. Business structure and employee capability may not 
continue to evolve to meet the growing changes and complexity in the products, market, agencies 
and emerging digital environment. This failure may negatively impact the ongoing relevance 
and performance of oOh!media within the market. As the business evolves, structure, culture and 
capability is carefully assessed to ensure it aligns to the business strategy and has the agility to 
adapt to new favourable opportunities. oOh!media has Group-wide onboarding and subsequent 
structured and on the job learning programs, an informal mentoring program, and recognition 
programs beyond remuneration. The Talent & Culture Committee of the Board works closely with 
the CEO and Chief People & Culture Officer on the design and implementation of the Company’s 
culture programs, reviewing results and the Company’s response and action to regular culture 
surveys.
Employee retention and succession planning enables the Group’s consistent performance and 
delivery of its strategy and competitive success. Significant loss of employees and particular 
capabilities over a short period could impact the Company’s ability to operate effectively or 
achieve its revenue targets. oOh!media undertakes short-term and long-term succession and 
organisational planning for key roles. Retention and succession activities and outcomes are 
regularly reviewed by the Board.

Matters Subsequent To Reporting Date 
 
Since the end of the financial year, and after the 
approval of these consolidated financial statements, 
the Board has declared a fully franked dividend of 3.5 
cents per ordinary share, amounting to $18,857,000 
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 (31 
December 2022: $17,433,000). This dividend is payable 
on 21 March 2024. The financial effect of this dividend 
has not been brought to account in the consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2023 and will be recognised in subsequent financial 
reports. 

No other matter or circumstance at the date of this 
Report has arisen since 31 December 2023 that has 
significantly affected or may affect:

•	 the operations of the Group in future financial 
years;

•	 the results of those operations in future financial 
years; or

•	 the Group’s state of affairs in future financial 
years.

Environmental Regulation 
 
The operations of the consolidated entity are not 
subject to any particular or significant environmental 
regulation under the law of the Commonwealth 
of Australia or any of its states or territories, or New 
Zealand. The Group has not incurred any significant 
environmental liabilities. 

For further information see the Sustainability Report. 

Proceedings On Behalf Of The 
Company 
 
No proceedings have been brought on behalf of 
the Group, nor have any applications been made 
in respect of the Group under section 237 of the 
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).
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Directors’ Meetings 
 
The record below shows the number of directors’ 
meetings held during the year, the number of 
meetings the directors were eligible to attend and 
the number of meetings attended.

H – number of meetings held during the period the Director was a member of the Board/Committee.

A – number of meetings attended by the Director during the period the Director was a member of the Board/Committee. 

In addition, Board sub-committees were convened from time to time during the period to support the Board in execution of its responsibilities.

Director Board Meetings
Audit, Risk & 

Compliance Committee
Talent & Culture 

Committee

Technology & 
Transformation 

Committee

H A H A H A H A

Total meetings 12 4 6 4

Tony Faure 12 12

Philippa Kelly 12 12 6 6 4 4

Timothy Miles 12 11 4 4 4 3

Cathy O’Connor 12 12

Joe Pollard 12 12 6 6

Andrew Stevens 12 12 4 4 4 4

David Wiadrowski 12 12 4 4 6 6

1 Reflects Non-executive Director tenure only, as at 31 December 2023.
2 This is inclusive of the CEO.

Board Skills, Experience & Diversity 
 
The Board, together with the Talent & Culture 
Committee, reviews the skills, experience and 
diversity represented by Directors on the Board and 
determines whether the composition and mix of 
these factors remain appropriate for the Company’s 
strategy, subject to limits imposed by the Constitution 
and the terms served by existing Non-executive 
Directors. 

The results of the 2023 self-assessment of the Directors’ 
skills and experience are shown on the matrix below. 
The results represent those Directors who confirmed 
their expertise or experience in the relevant area.

The Board has an average tenure of 4 years and 
7 months1, representing a good balance of deep 
corporate knowledge and new perspectives. During 
2023, the Board  had a male:female ratio of 4:32. This 
represents 42.8% women Directors, in excess of the 
minimum 30% recommended by the ASX Corporate 
Governance Council for ASX 300 companies. 

We are confident the current Board composition 
provides a strong combination of skills, experience 
and diversity to allow oOh!media to execute its 
long-term strategy to drive sustainable growth and 
maximise shareholder value.

Rounding Of Amounts 
 
ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ 
Reports) Instrument 2016/191 (Instrument) issued by 
the Australian Securities and Investments Commission 
(ASIC), relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in 
the Directors’ Report applies to the Company.

Amounts in the Directors’ Report have been rounded 
off in accordance with the Instrument to the nearest 
thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the nearest 
dollar, unless otherwise stated.
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Leadership
Sales, Marketing, 

Media & Advertising

Digital, 
Technology 

& Data

Strategic 
Vision & 
Direction

Commercial 
Property  
& Assets

Finance 
& Capital 

Management

Health, Safety 
& Sustainability

Risk 
Management

Culture & Talent

Commercial Property & Assets

Experience in commercial property, leasing and 
asset / inventory management, including in multi-site 
deployments. 

Leadership

Successful leadership of a large organisation, 
including executive oversight and governance of  
a listed company. 

Culture & Talent

Experience in overseeing and assessing people, 
including corporate culture, leadership assessment 
and workforce and succession planning and in 
setting remuneration frameworks and executive 
incentives. 

Risk Management

Experience in risk management and strategy, 
including risk culture and appetite and systematic risk 
identification, assessment, controls and monitoring. 

Digital, Technology & Data
Experience in technology strategies, information, 
data security and innovation and in digital media 
creation, sourcing and distribution.

Sales, Marketing, Media & Advertising

Experience in marketing and sales execution within 
the advertising and media sector across traditional 
and digital media channels. 

Finance & Capital Management

Experience in financial accounting and reporting 
and debt and equity capital management, including 
investor relations. Experience in capital allocation 
across business operations. 

Strategic Vision & Direction

Experience and acumen in developing, 
implementing and delivering strategic business 
objectives. 
 
Health, Safety & Sustainability

Experience overseeing and assessing environmental, 
social and workplace health and safety initiatives, 
including the sustainability of relevant processes. 
Experience monitoring internal and external 
processes, including mental health, physical well-
bring, supply chain, emissions and modern slavery 
risks.

Expert

Generalist

Advanced

Notes: The matrix 
above shows 

the Board skills 
composition at the 
date of this Report

Board Skills Matrix
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a.	 As a result of the IFRS IC agenda decision – IAS 38 Intangible Assets, the Group has changed its accounting policy, retrospectively 
adjusting the accounting for customisation costs for cloud computing arrangements. Refer to Note 2 of the FY21 Financial Statements.

b.	 As a result of the IFRS Interpretation Committee (IC) agenda decision, the Group has changed its accounting policy, retrospectively 
adjusting the deferred tax accounting for Brands. Refer to Note 10 of the 2020 Financial Statements.

c.	 CY19 basic earnings / (loss) per share have been adjusted to reflect the Group’s capital raising during 2020. Refer to Note 29 of the 2020 
Financial Statements.

Shareholder returns per share reflect:

•	 the issuance of:

	– 71,709,994 additional fully paid ordinary shares issued in July 2018 to assist in financing the acquisition of 
the share capital of Adshel on 28 September 2018;

	– 315,101,745 additional fully paid ordinary shares issued in April 2020 as part of the equity raising 
announced on 26 March 2020;

	– 6,857,593 additional fully paid ordinary shares in March 2021 to fulfil obligations under the Company’s 
employee incentive plans, upon 2020 short term incentives being issued as equity rather than cash; 
and

•	 the cancellation of :

	– 17,561,913 during CY22 as part of the on-market share buy-back;

	– 42,302,674 during CY23 as part of the on-market share buy-back.

Net profit amounts have been calculated in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards.  
Dividends for CY23 were fully franked.

Corporate Governance 

oOh!media’s most recent Corporate Governance 
Statement is available on oOh!media’s website 
under https://investors.oohmedia.com.au/investor-
centre/?page=governance. 
 

Shared Issued & Exercise of Rights 
Ordinary shares of oOh!media Limited

At 31 December 2023, there were 4,182,863 
performance rights on issue (2022: 6,230,659). In 
2023, 3,191,012 performance rights vested under the 
Long-Term Incentive Plan and 351,248 performance 
rights lapsed. These shares were allocated from the 
Employee Share Trust.

Shareholder Returns

The total number of fully paid shares on issue at 31 

December 2023 is 538,781,286 (2022: 581,083,960). 

Directors’ Interests In Shares, Rights 
and Options of the Company 

The relevant interests of each Director in the equity 
of the Company and related bodies corporate as at 
the date of this Directors’ Report are disclosed in the 
Remuneration Report.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Adjusted NPAT 54,983 56,216 12,689 (8,509)a 52,352

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company ($’000) 34,617 31,516 (10,288) (36,183)a 13,668b

Basic earnings per share (cents) 6.3 5.3 (1.7) (7.1)a 5c

Dividends – interim paid and final declared ($’000) 28,286 26,368 5,986 Nil 26,566    

Dividends per share – interim paid and final declared (cents) 5.3 4.5 1.0 Nil 11.0

Share price – closing at balance date ($) 1.66 1.259 1.69 1.66 3.64

Free Cash Flow per share (cents per share) 8.4 11.5 8.7 16.4 14.5

Return on invested capital (%) 15.66% 14.92% 9.12% 6.11% 12.09%
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Dividends 

The following fully franked dividends have been paid to date:

The Company’s policy is to pay dividends of 40-60 per cent of Adjusted Underlying net profit after tax, as 
AASB16 does not have a cash impact and there is no cash replacement cost for the acquired intangibles. 
The Board declared a fully franked final dividend of 3.5 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year 
ended 31 December 2023. This dividend is payable on 21 March 2024. The financial effect of this dividend 
has not been brought to account in the consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
December 2023 and will be recognised in subsequent financial reports. The financial effect of this dividend is 
outlined in Note 34 of the financial statements. 

The Company’s Dividend Reinvestment Plan did not operate for any dividends paid during CY23 and will 
not operate for the Final 2023 dividend.

Dividends paid during 2023 Amount per share (cents) Total paid ($)

Final 2022 dividend (paid 23 March 2023) 3.00 17,432,519

Interim 2023 dividend (paid 21 September 2023) 1.75 9,428,658

Dividends paid during 2022 Amount per share (cents) Total paid ($)

Final 2021 dividend (paid 24 March 2022) 1.00 5,986,459

Interim 2022 dividend (paid 23 September 2022) 1.50 8,935,744

Indemnification & Insurance Of 
Directors And Officers 
 
The Company, to the extent permitted by law, 
indemnifies each Director, alternate Director and 
Executive Officer of the Company on a full indemnity 
basis against all losses, liabilities, costs, charges and 
expenses incurred by that person as an Officer of the 
Company or one of its related bodies corporate. 

The Company, to the extent permitted by law, may 
purchase and maintain insurance, or pay, or agree 
to pay, a premium for insurance for each Director, 
alternate Director and Executive Officer of the 
Company against any liability incurred by that person 
as an Officer of the Company or its related bodies 
corporate, including a liability for negligence or for 
reasonable costs and expenses incurred in defending 
or responding to proceedings, whether civil or 
criminal and whatever their outcome. 

The Company may enter into contracts with a 
Director or former Director agreeing to provide 
continuing access to board papers, books, records 
and documents of the Company that relate to the 
period during which the Director or former Director 
was a Director. The Company may arrange that its 
related bodies corporate provide similar access to 
board papers, books, records or documents. 

Insurance Premiums 
 
The Company has paid insurance premiums in 
respect of Directors’ and Officers’ Liability insurance 
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and since the 
end of that year. Such insurance contracts insure 
against certain liability (subject to specific exclusions) 
of persons who are or have been Directors, alternate 
Directors or Executive Officers of the Company 
or in that capacity to the extent allowed by the 
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). The terms of the policies 
prohibit disclosure of the liability and premium paid.
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Non-Audit Services 
 
During the year, KPMG, the Company’s auditor, 
performed certain other services in addition to 
its statutory duties. 

The Board has considered the non-audit 
services provided during the year by the auditor, 
and, in accordance with the advice received 
from the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee, 
is satisfied that the provision of those non-
audit services during the year by the auditor 
is compatible with, and did not compromise, 
the auditor independence requirement of the 
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) for the following 
reasons: 

•	 all non-audit services are subject to 
corporate governance procedures, 
including oOh!’s Non-Audit Services Policy, 
adopted by the Group and have been 
reviewed by those charged with the 
governance of the Group throughout the 
year to ensure they do not impact the 
integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

•	 the non-audit services provided do not 
undermine the general principles relating 
to auditor independence as set out in 
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including Independence 
Standards) as they did not involve the 
auditor reviewing or auditing its own work, 
acting in a management or decision-
making capacity for the Group, acting as 
an advocate to the Group or jointly sharing 
the risks and rewards. 

Details of the audit and non-audit service fees 
paid or payable to the Company’s auditor 
during the year are disclosed in Note 31 of the 
financial statements.
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Audit and assurance services
2023

$ 
2022

$
2021

$

KPMG Australia

Audit and review of Financial Statements 871,261 673,770 601,002

Other assurance services 2,050 131,087 171,991

Total audit and assurance services 873,311 804,857 772,993

Other services
2023

$ 
2022

$
2021

$

KPMG Australia

Taxation compliance and advisory services 158,477 473,978 213,407

Total other services 158,477 473,978 213,407

Total auditor’s remuneration 1,031,758 1,278,835 986,400

Other Information 
 
The following information, contained in this Annual Report, forms part of this Directors’ Report:

•	 Operating and Financial Review

•	 Board of Directors

•	 Audited Remuneration Report

•	 Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration
 
This Report is made in accordance with a resolution of Directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of 
the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

Signed on behalf of the Directors.
  

 
 
 

Tony Faure 
Chair 
 
19 February 2024, Sydney
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Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under 

Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 

To the Directors of oOh!media Limited 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of oOh!media Limited for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2023 there have been: 

i. no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

KPMG Kristen Peterson 

Partner 

Sydney 

19 February 2024 

KPM_INI_01 

PAR_SIG_01 PAR_NAM_01 PAR_POS_01 PAR_DAT_01 PAR_CIT_01 
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Remuneration Report

08
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Chair’s 
Letter

Philippa Kelly 
Chair, Talent &  

Culture Committee

During CY23, oOh!media sought 
to capitalise on the growth of the 
Out of Home (OOH) sector against 
other media. The team secured 
significant tender wins that bring
immense value to the business 
and demonstrate the growth 
enabled by oOh!media’s
digital first network strategy. 

These strategically important wins 
include:

•	 new digital and motion 
enabled screens for Sydney 
Metro and the Southwest line;

•	 the landmark Martin Place 
integrated station precinct; 
and

•	 the inaugural out of home 
contract for Woollahra 
Council.   

Our remuneration focus during 
CY23 was on the implementation 
of a range of changes designed 
to ensure a stronger link between 
incentives and performance 
based outcomes.

Dear Shareholders,  
 
On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to 
present the oOh!media Remuneration Report 
for the year ended 31 December 2023. 

This focus rewards achievement of 
the Group’s growth strategy and is 
aligned with shareholder returns. 
These included:

1.	 Introduction of an equity-
based deferral scheme 
reflecting market practice to 
increase equity participation 
in executive remuneration 
and to further align executive 
reward to shareholder 
interests;

2.	 Focus on executive pay mix 
to reflect a greater proportion 
at risk through short and long 
term incentives; and 

3.	 Re-weighting of incentive 
metrics towards driving 
continued growth.
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Short-Term Incentives
 
Short-term incentive company 
performance measures were 
expanded in CY23 to reflect an 
increase in weighting for EBITDA 
and revenue. Changes were 
designed to focus on driving 
continued profitable growth. 
When reviewing the results, the 
Board carefully scrutinised the 
drivers and quality of the results, 
and in particular compared the 
company’s market share relative 
to the Out of Home share of 
media growth.   

As a result, the outcomes for the 
four CY23 measures are outlined 
below: 

•	 Target: 45% achieving 
adjusted underlying EBITDA1  
at 20.4% of revenue for CY23 
Outcome: 98.9%

•	 Target: 30% achieving CY23 
revenue budget  
Outcome:  Nil – the Board 
exercised its discretion to 
reduce achievement of this 
measure down from 60% to nil

•	 Target: 15% maintaining or 
growing Out of Home market 
share from the end of CY22 
Outcome: Nil

•	 Target: 10% achieving 
strategic priorities to deliver 
digital platform initiatives 
Outcome: 100% 

Achievement against the 
corporate measures resulted 
in 54.5% of the potential full 
corporate scorecard for CY23 
being awarded.

The company performance 
measures for the STI will be 
further refined for 2024. Individual 
component measures will 
be simplified with a focus on 
continuing to deliver the growth 
strategy.

1 �Adjusted underlying EBITDA referred to in Note 
4 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Long-Term Incentives 
 
The CY21 Long-term incentive (LTI) 
plan partially vested in February 
2024, resulting in 61% of the full 
allocation vesting. Details of the 
outcomes can be found on page 
71 of this Report. 
 
The LTI has remained largely 
unchanged over the last three 
years.  While measures remain 
aligned to business priorities, in 2024 
we will introduce a refinement to 
the index against which the relative 
total shareholder return (TSR) metric 
is assessed to ensure it is more 
directly comparable to media 
companies in the ASX 300 than the 
current ASX 200 index (excluding 
Financials, Industrials, Materials, Oil, 
Gas and Consumable Fuels).

The bulk of the investor base for 
oOh!media is invested in the small 
capitalisation part of the ASX and 
is the basis on which their fund 
management performance is 
measured. As a result commencing 
in 2024, we will adopt the ASX 
Small Ordinaries Industrials Index 
(ASX:XSI).
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Non-executive  
Director Fees 

Following an external 
benchmarking exercise  
Non-executive Director fees 
were increased in CY23, the first 
increase since 2019. Fees will 
remain unchanged for CY24.

Summary 

Our approach to remuneration is 
to deliberately align remuneration 
with performance and to incentivise 
growth through a significant 
component as at-risk variable pay. 

We are confident the outcomes 
this year are consistent with the 
performance of oOh!media and the 
experience of our shareholders, while 
also recognising our critical need 
to attract, motivate and retain our 
executives in order to progress our 
strategic objectives and deliver the 
best outcomes for all shareholders.

In conclusion, I want to take the 
opportunity to thank the entire 
oOh!media team for their continuing 
commitment and support throughout 
2023.  

 

Philippa Kelly  
Chair, Talent & Culture Committee
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Non-executive Directors

Tony Faurea Chair and Independent Non-executive Director

Philippa Kelly Independent Non-executive Director

Timothy (Tim) Miles Independent Non-executive Director

Joanne (Joe) Pollard Independent Non-executive Director

Andrew Stevens Independent Non-executive Director

David Wiadrowski Independent Non-executive Director

Executives

Catherine (Cathy) O’Connor Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director (CEO)

Christopher (Chris) Roberts Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

1. List of KMP 
 
The key management personnel (KMP) for 2023 are the Non-executive Directors and two Executive roles with 
specific responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the material activities of oOh!media, namely 
the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. There is also an Executive 
Leadership Team that supports the KMP.

Reporting Principles 
 
The Remuneration Report refers to a range of non-IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards) 
financial information including adjusted underlying EBITDA. oOh!media believes this non-IFRS financial 
information provides useful insight to users of this Report in measuring the financial performance and 
condition of oOh!media. The Remuneration Report has been prepared on a basis consistent with the 
Consolidated Financial Statements and accordingly includes total remuneration details for the year ended 
31 December 2023.

This Report sets out the Group’s approach to its remuneration philosophy and on-going refinements of the 
incentive structure introduced to further align with shareholder value.

The information in this Report has been audited as required by section 308 (3C) of the Corporations Act 
2001 (Cth).

a.	 From 2023, the Board considers Tony Faure to be an Independent Non-executive Director.
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Component Performance Measure At Risk Portion Link to Strategic Objectives

Fixed Annual 
Remuneration (FAR)
Salary and other 
benefits including 
Superannuation.

Not applicable. Not applicable. To attract and retain talented 
people.

Short-Term Incentive 
(STI)

Delivered in cash 
(67%) and deferred 
equity (33%).

Most employees are 
eligible to participate 
in the STI program. 
Participants must 
be employed by 1 
October in the year 
to be eligible that 
year1.

Executive KMP have a 
weighting of 70%  
organisational and 30% 
individual performance.

Organisational performance 
is assessed against four 
measures:

a.	 45% adjusted underlying 
EBITDA Margin 
Achieve adjusted 
underlying EBITDA Margin 
of 20.4% of revenue for 
CY23.

b.	 30% Revenue 
Achievement 
Achieve CY23 revenue 
budget.

c.	 15% maintaining Out of 
Home Market Share 
Share of the total 
Australian and New 
Zealand Out of Home 
market2. The base is 
no adverse change in 
market share from the 
end of CY22 for Australia 
and New Zealand.

d.	 10% achievement 
of Strategic Priorities 
including delivery of 
Digital first platforms 
resulting in business 
efficiencies. 

Individual performance  
100% measures are set 
with line management 
and subject to overriding 
discretions and consistency 
calibrations.

CEO: Target3 35% of FAR
Maximum 53% of FAR

CFO: Target3 36% of FAR
Maximum 54% of FAR

Adjusted underlying EBITDA 
Margin is used as a company 
performance measure to 
reward profitable growth. 

The Revenue Achievement 
measure is intended to reward 
growing oOh!’s revenue and 
more broadly leading Out of 
Home share of media growth.

The Market Share measure 
complements the Revenue 
Achievement measure, to 
ensure that revenue growth is 
not simply due to sector growth, 
by requiring oOh! to maintain 
or grow position as a market 
leader in the Out of Home 
market.

The Strategic Priorities measure 
ensures that oOh! capitalises 
on delivery of Digital platform 
initiatives that enable value-
added features and business 
agility. 

The first three measures each 
include the opportunity for a 
greater than 100% STI target 
award for overachievement, 
but the Strategic Priorities 
measure does not.

All of the measures allow for a 
reduced award for a shortfall in 
achievement that is still above 
minimum thresholds.

Subject to overriding Board 
discretion, no allocation applies 
for underachievement below 
the stated minimum thresholds.

For further detail see page 67.

2. Remuneration Philosophy And Framework – At A Glance 
 
This Remuneration Report explains the Board’s approach to executive remuneration, the performance 
measures and link to strategy. oOh!media’s remuneration principles are to guide practices that are market 
competitive, performance related, fair, and easily understood. 

The overarching objective of our remuneration framework is to attract, retain and motivate the right talent 
for our diverse workforce. Executive incentives are “at-risk” and reward achievement of oOh!media’s annual 
financial outcomes and strategic goals, as well as long-term growth in shareholder value. 
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Component Performance Measure At Risk Portion Link to Strategic Objectives

Long-Term Incentive 
(LTI)

A grant of 
performance rights 
by invitation to a 
defined set of senior 
leaders as approved 
by the Board and 
aligned to long-term 
shareholder value 
creation.

There are three LTI 
performance hurdles, each 
measured over a 3-year 
performance period and 
each representing 1/3 of the 
award (at grant).

The first is based on a 
Cumulative Free Cash Flow 
per share (FCF), being 
calculated as:

(operating cash flow CY23-
CY25 less capital expenditure 
and finance lease liabilities 
paid over CY23-CY25) / 
weighted number of issued 
shares4.

The second hurdle is based 
on a Return on Invested 
Capital (ROIC), being 
calculated as: (CY25 adjusted 
underlying EBITDA) / invested 
capital5.

The third hurdle is based on 
Relative Total Shareholder 
Return6 (TSR) assessed against 
a defined comparator 
group from the ASX 200 
index (excluding Financials, 
Industrials, Materials,
Oil, Gas and Consumable 
Fuels).

CEO: 62% of FAR 
(at grant)
CFO: 52% of FAR
(at grant)

Aligns the interests of Executive 
KMP and other key employees with 
shareholders by focusing on long-term 
growth. The purpose of oOh!media’s 
LTI Plan is to provide an incentive to 
attract, retain and motivate eligible 
employees whose present and 
potential contributions are important to 
the success of oOh!media by offering 
them a chance to participate in the 
future performance of the Company. 
All selected measures are objective 
and transparent.

FCF aligns incentives with shareholder 
interests by measuring and rewarding 
oOh!media’s ability to generate cash 
flow on a per share basis.

The ROIC hurdle rewards employees for 
generating shareholder returns relative 
to the deployment of the Company’s 
capital.

Relative TSR6 measures performance 
against peers and reflects investor 
returns generated by the Company 
compared to a broad index of 
other investment opportunities for 
shareholders.

The number of rights that vest is a 
percentage of those targeted, based 
on the outcome of the three hurdles 
over the performance period of CY23 
to CY25.

For further detail see page 68.

1.	 This is subject to Board discretion in exceptional circumstances.
2.	 For Australia this is measured principally using the Outdoor Media Association CY22 data and for New Zealand the figures are provided 

by the Out of Home Media Association Aotearoa (OOHMAA).
3.	 “Target STI” represents the amount payable at 100 percent achievement of STI measures outlined on page 67. Maximum STI is 

available on reaching a: set value above the Revenue budget, growing OOH market share and EBITDA margin and achievement of 
individual performance measures

4.	 “Weighted number of issued shares” refers to having regard to the weighted shares on issue from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025.
5.	 “Invested capital” refers to the Average of the opening and closing balances of invested capital for CY25. Fixed costs are fixed rent 

obligations previously realised in cost of goods sold and OPEX pre AASB16 resulting in an Adjusted Underlying EBITDA result. Invested 
capital is total equity plus net debt.

6.	 Relative TSR is calculated as aggregate dividends paid during the 3-year performanceperiod plus the share price movement from the 
beginning to end of the performance period.
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3.	  Executive Remuneration Framework - In Detail

3.1 Pay Mix 
 
The following charts show the remuneration mix (FAR, STI at maximum and LTI (face value at 
grant)) as a percentage of total remuneration for Executive KMP in CY23. 

Pay Mix of CEO at Maximum 
Opportunity (in %)

Pay Mix of CFO at Maximum 
Opportunity (in %)

3.2   Fixed Annual Remuneration (FAR) 
 
Fixed annual remuneration is made up of salary and other benefits including superannuation and is 
periodically benchmarked to ensure it remains market competitive. The Superannuation rate was 10.5% 
from 1 January – 30 June 2023 and then 11% from 1 July – 31 December 2023.

FARSTI LTI

29%
25%

25% 26%

46% 49%

Consistent with oOh!media’s remuneration philosophy and framework, annual adjustments for Executives 
in 2023 have focused on re-weighting towards at-risk components to align with the desired pay mix for Total 
Target Remuneration, with fixed remuneration at 50%, short-term incentives (STI) 25%, and long-term incentives 
25%. The current median at-risk target for executives in 2023 is 20% for STI and 18.5% for LTI.
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Purpose and 
Overview

To reward the achievement of annual performance targets aligned with oOh!media’s business 
strategy and objectives which deliver sustainable stakeholder outcomes, delivered in cash (67%) 
and deferred equity (33%).

STI Funding The pool to fund STI rewards is determined by the Group’s financial performance before  
specific items.

Weighting of STI 
Measures

The Executive KMP STI is weighted 70% to company performance and 30% on individual 
performance.

STI Opportunity 
(at target and at 
maximum)

STI outcome is capped at 150% of the target. % of FAR

CEO 35% at target
53% at maximum

CFO 36% at target
54% at maximum

Weighting Measure

Company 
Performance 
Measures 
(70% of the STI)

45% 1. EBITDA Margin measure

100% target is achieved if Adjusted Underlying EBITDA margin is 20.4% of revenue. 
A partial amount is awarded if the Adjusted Underlying EBITDA margin threshold of 
18.4% of CY23 revenue is achieved.

Achievement greater than target is pro rated and capped at 150% for 
achievement 2% or greater than target.  

EBITDA Margin STI % is

<18.4% nil

18.4% [Threshold] 50%

18.4% - 20.3% [Below Target] pro rata increase from 50-100%

Budget 20.4% [Target] 100% of target payout

20.4% - < 22.4% [Above Target] pro rata increase from 100-150%

> 22.4% [Maximum] 150%

30% 2. Revenue budget measure

100% of the target is met if the Company achieves its CY23 revenue budget, 
$656.9m.

No payout is awarded if the company achieves less than 93.5% of the revenue 
budget. 25% payout is awarded based on 93.5% achievement of budget, with pro 
rated achievement up to 106.5% achievement on revenue budget, capped at 
150% payout.

15% 3. OOH Market share measure

100% of the target is achieved when oOh! maintains by the end of CY23 its OOH 
market share. At the end of CY22 it was 40.3%.

No payout is awarded if the Company’s CY23 market share is less than the 
Company’s CY22 market share. 

100% payout is achieved at the same market share of 40.3%, with pro-rated 
achievement to 130% payout at 41.3% market share (i.e. the Company achieves 
an increase of +1% market share).

There is an uncapped 30% multiplier for each 1% of OOH market share gained 
above 41.3% market share.

10% 4. Strategic Priorities measure - Digital platform initiatives 

100% payout on the achievement of this initiative. No below target pro rata 
achievement or overachievement is paid.

3.3   Short-Term Incentive (STI)
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Overview A grant of performance rights with a three-year performance period subject to  
performance against 3 LTI measures.

Grant date May 2023.

Award The number of performance rights granted was a fixed dollar amount as determined 
by reference to the face value of the shares on the date of grant. The number of 
performance rights allocated to each Executive was the LTI value attributable to the 
individual divided by the 10-day VWAP following the release of oOh!media’s CY22 annual 
financial results (being $1.59). Rights were granted for nil consideration.

LTI Opportunity 
(at grant)

One-third of the rights vest upon achieving 100% of each of the Cumulative FCF hurdle, 
the ROIC hurdle and the Relative TSR hurdle. Scaling of rights to vest addresses both some 
underperformance and, for FCF and ROIC, also overperformance, subject to maximum 
vesting at 150%.

Performance period Three calendar years starting the year the LTI was granted, i.e. 1 January 2023 to  
31 December 2025.

Vesting Dates LTI performance rights granted in CY23, will vest, or not, following the publication of the  
31 December 2025 audited Financial Statements to the Australian Securities Exchange.

Vesting Conditions Each performance measure has a respective weighting of one-third each.

3.4    Long-Term Incentive (LTI)

Note: This is a summarised form of the STI metrics.

Individual 
Objectives
(30% of the STI)

CEO & CFO The CEO and CFO’s individual objectives relate to key strategic focus areas, 
please refer to page 71.

Deferred STI 
Payment

To enhance alignment of STI with shareholder expectations, 33% of annual STI outcome will be in 
deferred equity, specifically in 1-year Restricted Shares. This will increase the stake of executives 
on a medium-term share price that benefits both the shareholder and the executives upon 
disposal.  Participants may voluntarily elect for the deferred portion to be subject to post-vesting 
disposal restrictions for up to 15 years from commencement of the annual performance period.
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Weighting Measure

LTI Performance 
Measures

33.3%  1. FCF

100% target is achieved if FCF is 34.0 cents per share. A partial amount is 
awarded if the FCF threshold of 25.0 cents is achieved.

Achievement greater than target is pro rated and capped at 150% for 
achievement >42.1.  

Company’s Cumulative FCF per 
share (cents/per share) CY23–CY25

% of rights that vest

< 25.0 [Below Threshold] nil

25.0 [Threshold] 50% of target LTI

25.0 - 34.0
straight line pro rata vesting between 
50% and 100%

34.0 [Target] 100% of target LTI

34.0 - 42.1 [Above Target]
straight line pro rata vesting between 
100% and 150%

> 42.1[Maximum] 150% of target LTI

33.3% 2. ROIC

100% of the target is met if the Company achieves its ROIC target of 20.3%.

A partial award is made if the ROIC threshold of 17.5% is achieved.

Achievements above target are pro rated and capped at 150% for 
achievement greater than 26.3%.

Company’s ROIC % of rights that vest

< 17.5% [Below Threshold] nil

17.5% [Threshold] 50% of target LTI

17.5% - 20.3%
straight line pro rata vesting between 
50% and 100%

20.3% [Target] 100% of target LTI

20.3% - 26.3% [Above Target]
straight line pro rata vesting between 
100% and 150%

> 26.3%[Maximum] 150% of target LTI

33.3% 3. TSR

100% of the target is met if the Company achieves its TSR target of above 
the 75th percentile.

A partial award is made if the TSR threshold of 50th percentile is achieved.

Achievement is capped at 100% of target.

Company’s Relative TSR (rTSR) % of rights that vest

Less than 50th percentile rTSR nil

50th percentile rTSR 50%

Between 50th and 75th percentile 
rTSR

straight line pro rata vesting between 
50% and 100%

At or above 75th percentile rTSR 100% of target LTI

Note: This is a summarised form of the LTI metrics

Annual Report 2023   •   oOh!media   •   69



4.	 Company Performance & Remuneration Outcomes 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Adjusted underlying 
EBITDA ($’000)

130,174 127,096 77,552 62,499a 138,987

Adjusted underlying 
EBITDA margin (%)

20.5 21.4 15.4 14.7 21.4

Profit/(loss) attributable  
to the owners of the 
Company ($’000)

34,617 31,516 (10,288) (36,183)a 13,668b

Basic earnings/(loss) per 
share (cents)

6.3 5.3 (1.7) (7.1)a 5c

Dividends – interim paid 
and final declared ($’000)

28,286 26,368 5,986 nil 26,566

Dividends per share – 
interim paid and final 
declared (cents)

5.3 4.5 1 nil 11

Share price – closing at 
balance date ($)

1.66 1.29 1.69 1.66 3.64

Change in share price 
over the year ($)

0.37 (0.41) 0.03 (1.98) 0.22

Free Cash Flow per share 
(cents per share)

8.4 11.5 8.7 16.4 14.5

Return on invested  
capital (%)

15.66 14.92 9.12 6.11 12.09

Our Business 
Performance

Financial highlights 
for CY23 

a.	 As a result of the IFRS IC agenda decision – IAS 38 Intangible Assets, the Group has changed its accounting policy, retrospectively 
adjusting the accounting for customisation costs for cloud computing arrangements. Refer Note 2 of the FY21 Consolidated Financial 
Statements.

b.	 As a result of the IFRS Interpretation Committee (IC) agenda decision, the Group has changed its accounting policy, retrospectively 
adjusting the deferred tax accounting for Brands. Refer to Note 10 of the Consolidated Financial Statements attached to the FY20 
Annual Report.

c.	 CY19 basic earnings / (loss) per share have been adjusted to reflect the Group’s capital raising during 2020.

Cessation of  
Employment

If an Executive KMP ceases employment with oOh!media before the end of the 
performance period, their entitlement to rights (if any) will:

•	 All lapse in the event of resignation or termination for cause, 
or 

•	 May be provided in full or pro-rated in the event of redundancy, ill health, death,  
or other circumstances, all of which must be approved by the Board.
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CY23 Executive KMP STI Outcomes
The STI performance outcomes and awards for the KMP are provided in the following table. 

a. Payable in Q1 2024.
b. STI Deferred Equity was introduced in CY23.

Scorecard Assessment

Measure % Achievement

70% Company Performance Measures

45% EBITDA Margin 98.9%

30% Revenue Measure* 0%

15% Market Share 0%

10% Strategic priorities 100%

Overall Company Performance

Achievement against the corporate measures resulted in 54.5% of the  
potential full corporate scorecard for CY23 being awarded.

54.5%

30% Individual Performance (CEO) 

Take an industry leadership role in building the OOH sector profile, successfully bid for 
tenders, define future growth opportunities and diversify revenue.

% Achievement

80%

30% Individual Performance (CFO) 

Take an industry leadership role in building the OOH sector profile, successfully bid for 
tenders, define future growth opportunities and diversify revenue.

% Achievement

88%

KMP   STI Outcome ($)a STI Cash ($)
STI Deferred 
Equity ($)b

STI as a % of 
maximum 
opportunity

STI as a %  
of target  
opportunity

CEO 290,879 = 194,889 + 95,990 41% 62%

CFO 110,849 = 74,269 + 36,580 43% 65%

Executive KMP Remuneration Outcomes 
 
Under the terms of the STI plan, the revenue measure* achieved 60%, however, the Board exercised 
its discretion in not awarding the revenue measure after carefully scrutinising the drivers and quality of 
the results, and in particular after comparing the company’s market share relative to the Out of Home 
share of media growth.  

LTI Outcomes
2021 LTI Outcomes

The 2021 grant partially vested, as detailed below:

•	 Return on Invested Capital: ROIC was 15.6%, which translates to 108% achievement of this measure;

•	 Free Cash Flow: FCF was 8.2 cents per share, which translates to 75% achievement of this measure; and

•	 Total Shareholder Return: this measure was 47.3% which translates to a 0% achievement

Taken together, achievement against the LTI measures resulted in 61% of the full allocation for CY21 vesting.
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5.	 Non-executive Director Remuneration  

Overview & Arrangements 
 
The Board aims to set Non-executive Directors’ remuneration at a level that attracts and retains high calibre 
and talented Non-executive Directors. The total amount provided to all Non-executive Directors for their 
services as Directors, as fixed by oOh!media, must not exceed $1,400,000 in aggregate in any financial year, as 
approved at the 2020 AGM.

Following a review of Non-executive Director fees during CY22, the Board resolved to increase Board Chair 
and Member fees, as well as Chair and Member fees for both the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee and 
Talent & Culture Committee (TCC) with the new fee structure for CY23 set out below. 

Fees for the Technology & Transformation Committee (both Chair and Member) remained unchanged.

a.	 Inclusive of superannuation.
b.	 The Chair of the Board receives no extra member fees in addition to Board Chair fee.
c.	 To recognise excessive additional responsibility or time commitments, where relevant. Application of per diem is subject to oOh! Board 

Chair and TCC Chair approval. No per diem payments were made in CY23. 

Non-executive Director fees 
 
From 1 January 2023, the Directors’ annual fee structure is as below: 

Chair feea Member feea

Boardb $275,000b $139,000

Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee $27,500 $14,000

Talent & Culture Committee $27,500 $14,000

Technology & Transformation Committee $20,000 $10,000

Per diem feec - $1,750
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a.	 Fair value of performance rights related to the LTI grants scheduled to vest in 2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively. The fair value of  
non-market hurdles has been assessed and adjusted for probability in accordance with accounting standards.

b.	 Performance-related percentage is calculated by adding cash and share-based remuneration amounts (all of which have performance 
hurdles that determine payment) and dividing by total remuneration.

c.	 Tim Miles’ salary has been converted from New Zealand dollars to Australian dollars, exchange rate applied 1.086
d.	 Superannuation concessional contribution cap has been applied to Cathy O’Connor and Chris Roberts. Chris Roberts’ salary for the CY22 

reflects the duration during which he served as a KMP after assuming the role of Chief Financial Officer, effective from 1st August 2022.
e.	 For FY23, the STI Cash Bonus amount relates to performance in the 2023 Group Bonus Plan, which will be paid in Q1, 2024.  

Name Year

Share Based

LTI a & b Total

Total 
Performance 
Related % b

Short Term
Post-

Employment

Salary
STI Cash 

Bonus b & e

Non-
monetary

STI Restricted 
Shares

Super

Non-executive Directors

Tony  
Faure

2023 249,231 - - - - 25,769 275,000 -

2022 222,139 - - - - 22,768 244,907 -

Philippa 
Kelly

2023 168,114 - - - - 8,386 176,500 -

2022 149,661 - - - - 15,339 165,000 -

Timothy 
Miles c

2023 187,838 - - - - 5,635 193,473 -

2022 153,248 - - - - 3,083 156,331 -

Joe  
Pollard

2023 138,150 - - - - 14,850 153,000 -

2022 131,520 - - - - 13,480 145,000 -

Andrew  
Stevens

2023 147,179 - - - - 15,821 163,000 -

2022 150,017 - - - - 7,483 157,500 -

David  
Wiadrowski

2023 180,334 - - - - 0 180,334 -

2022 163,205 - - - - 4,038 167,244 -

Executive 
KMP

Cathy  
O’Connor d

2023 1,302,655 194,889 14,743 44,918 517,378 26,346 2,100,929 36%

2022 1,310,447 351,532 - - 366,906 24,430 2,053,316 35%

Chris 
Roberts d

2023 453,627 74,269 - 17,118 128,750 26,346 700,110 31%

2022 184,860 58,582 - - 204,066 9,588 457,066 57%

6.	 Statutory Tables 

The following statutory remuneration disclosure table for KMP has been prepared in accordance with 
accounting standards and the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) requirements. The amounts shown relating to 
share-based remuneration are equal to the accounting expense recognised in oOh!media’s Consolidated 
Financial Statements in respect of the LTI rights grant. These amounts do not reflect the actual realisable 
value received in CY23 year or in future years.
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Director Shareholdings 
 
The following table sets out the movement during the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares in 
oOh!media held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by Directors, including their related parties. The Board has 
a minimum investment policy for the Non-executive Directors requiring them to acquire on market shares 
totalling a minimum total acquisition cost of one times the base fee that is paid to Non-executive Directors 
(“Minimum Investment”) within three years following the earlier of the date of their appointment or the 
adoption of the policy (February 2019).

Executive KMP: Movement in Rights Over Ordinary Shares 
 
The following table sets out the movement during the reporting period in the number of rights over ordinary 
shares in oOh!media held directly, indirectly or beneficially, by Executive KMP or officers in oOh!media, 
including their related parties.

Name of Director
Shares held at 

1-Jan-23
Net change 

other
Held at 

31-Dec-23

Met minimum 
share-holding 
requirement (a)

Required 
to meet 

minimum 
investment

Tony Faure 397,338 - 397,338 Yes Feb-22

Philippa Kelly 132,000 28,000 160,000 Yes Sep-22

Tim Miles 237,000 - 237,000 Yes May-22

Joe Pollard 58,061 36,000 94,061 In Progress Aug-24

Andrew Stevens(b) 100,000 - 100,000 No Sep-23

David Wiadrowski 150,000 - 150,000 Yes Nov-22

Cathy O’Connor 22,422 32,000 54,422 n/a n/a

Chris Roberts 219,481 (87,000) 132,491 n/a n/a

Executive KMP  
and Officers

Number held 
at 1 Jan 2023

Vesting 
conditions of 
those held at  

1 Jan 2023

Number 
granted as 

remuneration 
during 2023

Vesting 
conditions of 

those granted 
during 2023

Number 
and value - 
vested and 

exercised

Number 
lapsed  

during 2023

Held at 31 
December 

2023 and 
not vested

Cathy 
O’Connor

870,391 (CY21 
& CY22 LTI)

FCF
ROIC

TSR
518,238

FCF
ROIC

TSR
-

166,335
39% of CY21
LTI forfeited

1,222,294

Chris Roberts
328,462

(CY20, CY21 & 
CY22 LTI)

FCF
ROIC

TSR
157,233

FCF
ROIC

TSR
131,929

Total 46,696
incl. 35,485

39% of CY21
LTI forfeited

307,070

a.	 Based on cumulative acquisition cost of Minimum Investment.
b.	 Andrew Stevens has confirmed to the Board that he will acquire additional shares on-market to meet the Minimum Investment as soon 

as practicable.

This table includes LTI forfeitures in relation to CY21 grant based on December 2023 test.
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The rights over ordinary shares granted in the period were:

LTIs Affecting Future Periods 
 
The outcome of each LTI grant may be reported in future years when it impacts the remuneration of the 
KMP at the end of the relevant performance period. The fair value of LTI performance rights that have been 
granted is amortised over the performance period. The following table summarises the maximum value of 
the LTIs that will be reported in the statutory remuneration tables in future years if the relevant performance 
conditions are met in full. The minimum value of the LTI grants is nil if the Company fails to meet any of the 
relevant performance conditions.

Future expense by plan Future expense by financial year

Executive CY22-24 CY23-25 Total CY24 CY25 Total

Cathy O’Connor $180,526 $303,745 $484,271 $332,398 $151,873 $484,271

Chris Roberts $42,935 $92,706 $135,641 $89,288 $46,353 $135,641

Executive 
KMP and 
Officers Plan

Number 
of rights 
granted 

during 2023
Vesting 

conditions
Grant 
date

Face value at 
grant date

Fair value  
at grant date

Vesting 
date

Total Per right

Cathy 
O’Connor

Total: 518,238
Total: 

$824,000
Total: $503,727

1/3
FCF 

Cumulative
$274,666 $192,439 $1.11

1/3 ROIC $274,666 $192,439 $1.11

1/3 TSR $274,666 $118,849 $0.69

Chris Roberts Total: 157,233
Total: 

$250,000
Total: $153,669

1/3
FCF 

Cumulative
$83,333 $58,438 $1.12

1/3 ROIC $83,333 $58,438 $1.12

1/3 TSR $83,333 $36,793 $0.70

LTI 
Plan

LTI 
Plan

Feb 2026

Feb 2026

May 2023

May 2023
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7.	 Remuneration Governance 

Service Agreements 

oOh!media has entered into service agreements with each Executive. The Group retains the right to 
terminate a contract immediately by making payment equal to the agreed number of months’ fixed annual 
remuneration in lieu of notice, including superannuation plus any statutory entitlements of accrued annual 
and long service leave.

The service contracts outline the components of compensation but do not prescribe how compensation 
levels are modified year-to-year. The TCC reviews compensation each year to take into account any changes 
in scope or nature of role or agreed objectives to determine and recommend any changes in line with the 
remuneration strategy and principles.

The key conditions of the service agreements of the Executive KMP are set out in the following table.

Non-executive Directors’ terms of appointment have no fixed end date, no fixed notice of termination period, 
nor any agreed termination payments.

All Non-executive Directors may not hold office without re-election beyond the third Annual General Meeting 
following appointment or the meeting at which they were last elected.

Director Related Party Transactions 

There were no director related party transactions in CY23.

Board 
 
The Board maintains overall responsibility for oversight of the Company’s remuneration policy and the 
principles and processes which give effect to that policy. The Board approves, having regard to the 
recommendations of the TCC, the: 

•	 Size, composition and criteria for membership of the Board, including review of Board succession 
plans, performance evaluation and the succession of the Chair, CEO and CFO, as well as Executive 
performance assessment processes and results;

•	 Company’s remuneration, recruitment, retention and termination policies and procedures for senior 
management;

•	 Company’s incentive strategy, performance targets and bonus payments, including major changes and 
developments to the Company’s equity incentive plans; and

•	 Effectiveness of the Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Policy. 
 

Talent & Culture Committee and Board Oversight 

The TCC operates under a charter and set of responsibilities approved by the Board. The charter can be found 
on the Company’s Governance page in the Investors section of the oOh!media website –  
www.oohmedia.com.au and further detail on the TCC’s responsibilities can be found in the Company’s most 
recent Corporate Governance Statement.

Notice of termination

Name
Agreement 

commenced
Agreement 

expires
By Company By Employee

Termination payments 
under the contract

Cathy O’Connor 01-Jan-21 No expiry 12 months 12 months 12  Months FAR

Chris Roberts 01-Aug-22 No expiry 6 months 6 months 6  Months FAR
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Chair’s
Message
At oOh!, our company purpose is 
to make public spaces better and 
brands unmissable. 

Operating as a sustainable 
business forms a central 
component of this purpose 
and we made solid progress in 
implementing our sustainability 
agenda during 2023.

Key highlights include supporting 
the launch of Ecobanner™ - 
the first ever billboard banner 
in Australia which is capable of 
closed loop recycling to replace 
non-recyclable PVC.  Additionally, 
12,000 of our advertising panels 
now operate on renewable 
power, equating to 26% of our 
digital network and including 
9,500 (70%) of panels in our 
operational control.

We were also pleased 
to complete our Reflect 
Reconciliation Action Plan while 
we continued to provide ongoing 
support for community partners 
with the provision of $16.5 million 
in support for 2023, bringing our 
total community support to $137.5 
million since 2017.

Within this report we have also 
detailed the progress we made 
on the specific commitments we 
prioritised for 2023. These can be 
found on page 92.

During the year, we engaged with 
various stakeholders to gain further 
clarity of the key sustainability 
issues that are most relevant to 
them and their expectations of 
our business. We have detailed 
these material sustainability topics 
within this report.

Equally, and in consultation with 
climate advisory firm, Pollination, 
oOh! has identified three areas of 
strategic advantage to maximise 
sustainability related business 
performance. These include:

•	 �Decarbonisation – 
Transformation of our 
business operations 
through renewable energy, 
fleet electrification, and 
decarbonisation of our supply 
chain emissions; 

•	 �Circularity – Investing in 
circular economy initiatives 
and waste transformation 
within oOh!’s operations; and

•	� Community & Nature – Using 
our platforms for good to 
support our ANZ community 
partners and to promote 
sustainable practices and 
nature conservation in our 
communities

Our ESG strategy continues to 
have ongoing Board oversight, 
with the Board supported in 
this function by the Audit, Risk 
& Compliance Committee 
(ARCC) and the Talent & Culture 
Committee (TCC).

In 2024, we will continue to 
build on the stronger platform 
we created over the past year 
and I look forward to sharing our 
ongoing progress with all our 
stakeholders.

Tony Faure 
Chair
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About this Report

oOh!’s approach to sustainability is to create shareholder value, while 
delivering on our company purpose and having an impact where it 
matters for our planet, people and our business.  
 
Our philosophy is based on an action over words approach, which is the 
driving force behind delivering meaningful and purposeful progress from 
our sustainability focused initiatives. 

Accordingly, oOh! is pleased to present the following highlights from 2023:

advertising panels on 
renewable power including 
3,000 digitals, (this represents 
26% of our digital network) 
This means that 70% (9,500) 
of advertising panels in our 
control, and 17% (2,500)  
of advertising panels out of 
our control are on renewable 
power

12,000

CY2023
Highlights
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Completion of our 
Reflect Reconciliation 
Action Plan

An industry 
leading gender 
pay gap, 
favouring women 

of support for our community 
partners in CY23 totalling 
$137.5m since 2017

$16.5m

Establishing an indicative* 
Australian operations carbon 
baseline of 81,047 tCO2e 
of which 1% is Scope 1, 33% is Scope 2 (market based) 
and the residual 66% is scope 3 (based on CY22)

including a goal to improve 
representation of females in leadership  

Launch of our new multi-year

Diversity, Equity & 
Inclusion Strategy

Sonder partnership
Implementation of our

and “Support You” wellbeing, safety 
and medical program

the first ever billboard banner in Australia capable 
of closed loop recycling to replace non-recyclable 
PVC - oOh! worked with the manufacturer to 
innovate their product specifically for the Out of 
Home industry, supporting its launch to market

Launch of

Ecobanner™

Toitu 
Net Zero 
certification 
of our NZ 
operations 

Injury management 
early intervention 
program 
to support a “First 60 minutes” triage 
service for injured team members

signed with Greening Australia 
to support nature conservation 

New community 
partnership

*We have established our CY22 baseline emissions with support 
from two separate third parties, the first assisting with Scope 1 
and 2 and the second assisting with Scope 3. We had our CY22 
Scope 1 and 2 emissions assessed for readiness for assurance, but 
it has not been assured at this stage. Our Scope 3 emissions is an 
estimate only.
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Company Purpose

Our company purpose is to 
make public spaces better and 
brands unmissable. We seek to 
make public spaces better by 
providing public infrastructure and 
amenity to communities across 
Australia and New Zealand, 
as well as providing funding to 
support community programs. 

^Source: MOVE

Company Values

oOh!’s company values were 
renewed in 2022, to establish 
liveable values that could be 
embraced by our multi-faceted 
work force. With a strong focus 
on collaboration and a growth 
mindset, these values are used 
to encourage an open and 
welcoming culture and inspire 
great behaviours that contribute 
to the long-term, sustainable 
success of the business.

Grow
sustainably

Value 01

Play
with heart

Value 02

Stronger
together

Value 03

Our unparalleled network of 
advertising assets provides 
advertisers with mass coverage 
opportunities with the ability 
to access over 95%^ of metro 
Australians on a weekly basis. 

Our extensive network of 35,000 
digital and static asset locations 
include roadside, retail centres, 
airports, train stations, bus stops, 
office towers and universities. 

oOh! provides its products and 
services for the benefit of both 
media agencies and advertisers 
wishing to advertise products 
and services. As at 31 December 
2023, oOh! had 780 permanent 
team members, 21 maximum term 
contractors and 6 casual staff 
working across Australia and New 
Zealand. None are covered by 
collective bargaining agreements. 
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Sustainability Strategy

Impact where it matters for 
Planet, People and Business.

Our sustainability ambitions have 
been developed to support 
long-term growth, sustainable 
investment in public spaces 
and communities, and better 
outcomes for our customers 
and stakeholders, without 
compromising the needs of 
future generations. We have 
developed our strategy aligning 
stakeholder considerations with 
value creating opportunities.

Our  
strategy

What our 
stakeholders  
care about

Business
opportunity
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Our Stakeholders

Our stakeholders include investors, commercial partners, media agencies, advertisers, government 
and local councils, communities, and our own people. 

Investors

As the leading Out of Home company across Australia/New Zealand, oOh! is able to 
successfully leverage the structural growth in Out of Home as a fast-growing media to generate 
profits and deliver returns to shareholders.

oOh! seeks to create further value through disciplined investment in its business and continued 
assessment of capital management options to enhance sustainable value for shareholders.

Commercial partners

oOh! is the largest Out of Home operator in Australia, reaching over 95%^ of metro Australians 
on a weekly basis. We have extensive experience working with our commercial partners 
to ensure appropriate management of environmental, governance and operational risks, 
including safety, data protection and advertising regulatory compliance.​

Media agencies
oOh! is dependent on relationships with media agencies to represent oOh!’s products and 
services to their advertiser clients. oOh! is working to decarbonise our operations in alignment 
with media agencies need to reduce the carbon footprint of their own supply chain.​

Advertisers

oOh! also depends on those advertising their goods and services and our advertisers depend on 
us for brand safety. We consider the security of our digital screens to be of critical importance 
with Cyber Security being one of the pillars of our technology strategy, allocating significant 
budget to security each year.

Government and 
local councils

oOh! regularly engages with governments, local councils and regulatory bodies both directly 
and through our industry body, the Outdoor Media Association (OMA), of which oOh! is 
a founding member, to ensure advertising activity continues to be of high quality and is 
conducted with regards to environmental and social standards, planning law, advertising 
standards, and safety regulations as an absolute priority for all stakeholders.

Communities

oOh! is passionate about the communities in which we operate and our ability to make public 
spaces better. Where required, oOh! engages with individuals, business alliances and resident 
groups to seek feedback on proposed development activities. oOh! also regularly engages 
specialists to provide assessments of the impact of its proposed activities on local community 
environments.

Our employees

oOh! has a diverse workforce and invests significantly to provide everyone with an equal 
opportunity to do their best work and to be their best selves in the workplace.​​

At oOh! we know that one size does not fit all, and we remain open-minded and curious about 
seeing things from varied perspectives. Most notably our value “stronger together” shapes our 
behaviours and recognises that oOh!’s strength lies in our different ideas and perspectives.

Following an internal process in late 2021 to establish our key material sustainability topics, periodically 
in 2023 oOh! has engaged with various stakeholders to understand what they care about the 
most. These engagements have been through surveys, online and face to face meetings. We have 
identified the following material sustainability topics as some of the most important to our stakeholders: 

•	� Transparency and accountability in our operations 

•	� Employee health, safety and wellbeing 

•	 Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 

•	� Data privacy and Cyber Security

•	 Community engagement

•	 Emissions reductions 

^Source: MOVE
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Community & Nature 
Using our platforms for good to support our  
ANZ community partners and to promote  

sustainable practices and nature conservation  
in our communities

Circularity
Investing in circular economy initiatives and  

waste transformation within oOh!’s operations

Decarbonisation
Transformation of our business operations  

through renewable energy, fleet electrification,  
and decarbonisation of our supply  

chain emissions 

Our Opportunity

From work carried out in 2023 in consultation with Pollination, a climate advisory firm, oOh! 
identified 3 areas of strategic advantage to maximise sustainability related business performance:
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Our Sustainability framework and strategy has been developed to align with what our stakeholders
care about and where we identified opportunity driven by a fundamental philosophy of ‘Action over Words. 
Empowering every Employee’.

Vision: Impact where it matters
Philosophy: Action over Words, Empowering every Employee

Our sustainability framework

We are committed to providing 
a safe, supportive and inclusive 
environment for our people and 
our communities, and using our 

platforms for good​

We are committed to being a 
transparent and accountable 

business and leading the 
advertising industry to a more 

sustainable future

Decarbonisation

Circularity

Energy Efficiency

Community and nature

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

Safety and wellbeing

Ethical operations

Sustainable procurement

Driving industry commitment forward

Impact where  
it matters  

for our planet

Impact where  
it matters  

for people

Impact where  
it matters for  

better business

We are committed to reducing 
our operational impact on the 

planet, and being a sustainable 
business for our customers  

and the communities in which 
we operate
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Credible Operationalisation

Our operational focus is supported by dedicated resources, funding and deliberate plans to drive short term 
impact and speedier progression towards a lower carbon future.  

For example, at the start of 2023 we had 6,200 assets in our operational control on renewable power, with that 
number now extended to 9,500 due to a deliberate focus by our procurement, asset, commercial and ESG 
teams to expedite our progress towards reducing our Scope 2 footprint. This represents 70% of inventory in our 
operational control now transitioned to renewable energy (Solar or GreenPower®). 

We have budget allocated to target a further tranche of assets transitioning to GreenPower® with a view to 
move all assets in our operational control over as soon as practicable, subject to state-by-state nuances in 
terms of renewable power availability, with particular consideration to unmetered electricity supply.

Our strategy will continue to be delivered through the following 2024 ESG related key initiatives: 

Planet 
Impact where it matters  

for the planet

People 
Impact where it matters  

for people

Business 
Impact where it matters  

for better business

2024 Initiatives

1.	 Operational EV trial ​

2.	 A continued transition to 
GreenPower® including 
commercial partner 
collaboration​

3.	 Closed loop billboard 
product ​

4.	 3rd party supplier waste 
management standards​

5.	 Night-time block out for 
digital billboards

1.	 Media campaigns 
supporting community 
partners and promoting 
sustainable practices to 
the public ​

2.	 Launch of our ‘Innovate’ 
Reconciliation Action Plan

3.	 Embedding best practice 
wellbeing, safety, and 
injury management tools

4.	 Australian Workplace 
Equality Index (AWEI) 
accreditation to support 
our LGBTQI+ community ​

5.	 Increase representation of 
women in leadership and 
develop a more diverse 
workforce

1.	 Embed anti modern 
slavery tools into our 
operations

2.	 Integrate sustainability 
into our broader 
procurement processes​

3.	 Profile sustainability-
focused advertisers​

4.	 Advocate for OOH 
industry sustainable 
practices​

5.	 Drive industry 
collaboration through 
oOh!’s foundation-
member partnership 
with Ad Net Zero in NZ
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Regulations and Standards

oOh! operates within a number of regulatory and 
industry self-regulatory frameworks.
In addition to regulations that apply to most 
businesses, all content displayed via oOh! assets 
is governed in Australia by the standards set by 
Australian Association of National Advertisers (AANA) 
as adjudicated by Advertising Standards, and in New 
Zealand by the Advertising Standards Authority.  
oOh! is diligent in adhering to these standards.  
oOh! provides clients and team members with 
Advertising Standard Guidelines and oOh!’s Copy 
Advice Committee is an escalation for review of 
creative content.

oOh! is a foundation member of the industry body, 
the Outdoor Media Association (OMA), which is a 
self-regulating body to whose standards oOh! also 
adheres. 

Advertising Categories and 
Greenwashing

oOh! continues to provide an open advertising 
platform for legitimate, free speech, and adheres 
to the content standards and regulations set out 
by law and by our commercial partners, in terms of 
acceptable categories to display. 

To support the reduction of misinformation on our 
media platform and in the community, oOh! has 
prepared anti-greenwashing guidelines, based 
on the Australian Competition and Consumer 
Commission’s eight principles of good practice, to 
educate advertisers on avoiding greenwashing in 
advertising. These guidelines will form part of our 
material specifications and contract terms and 
conditions, due for launch to market early in 2024.  
 

Public Complaints

We rely on feedback from the public, positive 
and negative, to make continuous improvements 
to our interactions with the public spaces and 
communities in which we operate. oOh! has a 
dedicated Customer Experience Team to manage 
public complaints and takes any feedback very 
seriously. We have established systems and processes 
to receive, acknowledge, manage and resolve 
complaints and issues as they arise. 

At oOh!, complaints generally come through one 
of three channels, Contact Us on the oOh!media 
website, directly to our Public Complaints Inbox or 
directly to our Experience Operations Team from 
other teams or via Commercial partners.  

•	 �Creative complaints - oOh!'s Experience 
Operations team check the creatives against 
OMA, AANA and Commercial Partner standards, 
if there is an indication of a breach creative will 
be removed or relocated

•	 �Driving or personnel complaints - These are rare 
and are escalated through to the relevant Assets 
and Operations State Manager for resolution

•	� Other complaints - Complaints follow an 
established workflow with subsequent 
management by the Experience Operations  
team with other relevant teams such as WHS, 
Legal etc

Total complaints in 2023 was 6 (an increase of  
1 from 2022), with all complaints fully resolved to the 
satisfaction of the reporting party. 
 

Data Security and Privacy

oOh! operates an Information Security program, 
with a Head of Information Security and an 
internal security team. As part of this discipline a 
fully ISO 27001 aligning ISMS (Information Security 
Management System) is documented and followed, 
and as part of the ISMS a specific 3rd party supply 
chain standard is applied, along with a Data security 
standard.

The 3rd party supply chain standard sets minimum 
required security posture and controls for any 
critical supplier or integration into the oOh! Network 
of information systems. Supplier and architecture 
review are rigorously followed for any existing or new 
integration to ensure supply chain risk is minimised 
and full risk visibility is scoped into all project or 
operational activities.

The ISMS is an active document and subject to 
independent review. Management review is 
conducted according to oOh!’s Governance 
Support Process. This policy was reviewed in June 
2023 by the Head of Information Security and is 
subject to further reviews on an annual basis. 
There have been no known incidents of cyber 
security breaches in the CY23 reporting year.
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Sustainability Governance

The Group’s ESG strategy is subject to ongoing Board 
oversight, with the Board supported in this function 
by the Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee (ARCC) 
and the Talent & Culture Committee (TCC). 

ESG is a scheduled Board item every quarter, with 
support from the committees as required. 

From 2024, ESG concerns and considerations are 
scheduled for every (quarterly) ARCC meeting, 
with a particular focus on assessing and managing 
material climate related physical and transition risk.

The Executive Leadership Team (ELT) and Senior 
Leadership Team (SLT) at oOh! have accountability 
for the ESG strategy, with operational accountability 
for the delivery of ESG outcomes with the SLT, of 
which the head of the ESG Team is a member. The 
ESG Team, responsible for the management and 
facilitation of ESG initiatives is supported by the ESG 
Working Group, made up of stakeholders from across 
the business, which delegates to project specific 
subgroups as required. Supporting committees for 
the DEI strategy, Modern Slavery, Cyber Security and 
Wellbeing, Safety and Environment align with the 
ESG strategy, collaborating with the ESG Team and 
reporting into the SLT and Executive Leadership. 

The current governance structure is shown below. 
In addition, ARCC will have oversight of future 
assurance.

Consideration with regards to Long Term Incentives 
(LTIs) for executive leaders, to support the delivery of 
the ESG strategy, will be given when appropriate and 
with relativity to the nature of our company. The TCC 
will have oversight of any proposed LTI.

Board of Directors
Audit, Risk, 

Compliance Committee  
(Delegated Board Authority)

Talent, Culture Committee 
(Delegated Board Authority)

Major strategic decisions, 
disclosures, reporting, major 

‘house views’​

Climate related risk, regulatory 
compliance, policy and 
processes, metrics and 

verification​

Major social and employee-
based initiatives, community 
program oversight, DEI policy​

Executive Leadership​
Executive sponsor of  

ESG strategy​

SLT (inc. ESG Group Director)​
Operational accountability  

for ESG outcomes

ESG Team​
Managing and facilitating  

ESG outcomes across  
the business

DEI Committee

Cyber security

Modern slavery 
working group

WSE

Social impact 
& cultural 

partnerships

ESG working group 
Cross function execution of ESG initiatives

Project based 
subgroups

Project based 
subgroups

Project based 
subgroups
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Integrating ESG into business frameworks

ESG is seen as critical for the strategic success of the business, and is embedded into the goals of the 
organisation via the following mechanisms: 

•	 �Included as part of the budget planning process including budget presentation to the Executive 
Leadership Team

•	 �Operational accountability supported by the Senior Leadership Team 

•	 �Representation of the ESG function on the Senior Leadership Team 

•	 �Consideration during the commercial bidding process in terms of how more sustainable 
practices can be integrated into contractual arrangements

•	 �Integration into our customer facing processes via a specifically appointed sales leadership 
team, responsible for embedding sustainability practices into our revenue and growth operations 

How did we do against our 2023 commitments?

We saw great progress against our 2023 commitments, with work still to be carried out in some areas in 2024:

Sustainability Commitments made  
in 2023​

How we tracked​

Commencing a review of how we 
operate, to enable the consideration 
of cleaner, operational vehicles in the 
future

   �Carried out an internal study to better understand the specific functionality 
of our fleet​

   �Met with external parties to discuss opportunities​

   �We are proceeding with an EV trial (~ 5 vehicles) in 2024, with the aim to roll 
out electrified vehicles across our entire fleet

Moving all oOh! controlled advertising 
assets to GreenPower® where possible

  Transitioned a further 3,300 advertising assets across to GreenPower® -   
      from 6,200 to 9,500 by the end of the year – this now equates to 70% of  
      oOh! controlled assets being on renewable power 

   �2024 budget secured to continue transitioning of assets

Launching our Reflect Reconciliation  
Action Plan

   �We launched and completed our Reflect RAP​

   �We are kick starting our Innovate RAP in 2024

Formalising our social procurement 
policy

   �Work commenced on a sustainable procurement framework and workplan 
with a policy yet to be developed. This work will continue in 2024.

Increasing the representation of 
women in management roles

   �Women in management roles (Executive -1) grew to 50% in CY23 
compared to 49% in CY22

Validating our preliminary material 
topics with our external stakeholders

   �Commercial stakeholder engagement via a brand tracker survey​

   �Agency stakeholder engagement via meetings​

   �Investor stakeholder engagement via meetings

Carrying out a waste & recycling 
vendor review to ensure best practice

   �Spend analysis of vendors carried out by ESG and Procurement teams with 
a view to better understand our waste and recycling operations

   �Work will continue in 2024 to establish a directory of preferred suppliers, 
based on service levels, operational efficiencies and compliance
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Planet 

oOh! is committed to reducing our operational impact on the planet, and being a sustainable business for 
our customers and the communities in which we operate. We will achieve this with a focus on operational 
decarbonisation, investing in circularity and energy efficiency. 

Our approach in 2023

To enable a clear pathway of decarbonisation, oOh! finalised our Australian CY22 (baseline year) carbon 
footprint measurement, which is estimated to be 81,047 tCO2e*. This equates to a group footprint of 81,777 
tCO2e with the addition of our New Zealand operations, which received Toitū net ‘carbonzero’ certification in 
March 2023.

*We have established our CY22 baseline emissions with support from two separate third parties, the first assisting
with Scope 1 and 2 and the second assisting with Scope 3. We had our CY22 Scope 1 and 2 emissions assessed 
for readiness for assurance, but it has not been assured at this stage. Our Scope 3 emissions is an estimate only.
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Our Australian Carbon Footprint (CY22)

Our carbon measurement is based on the following 
assumptions:

Boundaries

oOh! reports emissions under a control approach, 
using operational control criteria. The nature of 
oOh!’s business is based on a large number of 
individual commercial contracts with multiple 
variances of operational control. Accordingly, oOh! 
defines operational control to be when we have 
control over the day to day running of an advertising 
assets, with particular reference to the power supply 
of the asset. For those assets where it is within oOh!’s 
right to establish a power supply and we pay the 
energy retailer directly, we consider these assets 
in our operational control. For those assets where 
oOh!’s energy account is controlled by a commercial 
partner, we consider these assets out of our 
operational control, and included within our Scope 3 
measurement. 

Having established our Australian business baseline 
(CY22), oOh! is now focusing on process and control 
improvement to be able to measure our ongoing 
footprint in a more timely fashion going forward. 
The CY23 footprint measurement is not ready for 
release in this report therefore oOh! will disclose in our 
voluntary report due for release in early 2025. 

Scope 1 Emissions

We see a clear pathway to reduce our Scope 1 
emissions based on the following assumptions:

•	 Commencement of an EV trial with the 
intention to electrify our entire operational fleet 
(approximately 160 vehicles across Australia and 
New Zealand), reducing our tailpipe emissions to 
zero (98% of our Scope 1 footprint)

•	 Successful testing of renewable powered 
operational equipment such as power washers 
and forklifts (2% of our Scope 1 footprint)

 

Scope 2 Emissions

We see a clear pathway to reduce these emissions in 
line with GreenPower® options becoming available 
across states for metered and unmetered supply. 
oOh! has budget allocated to transition assets to 
GreenPower® when it is available to us. As at end 
of CY23, oOh! has transitioned 9,500 advertising 
panels in our control to GreenPower®, equating to 
70% of controlled assets. This is an increase of 3,300 
compared to CY22. 

100% of oOh!’s facilities (17 offices and depots) are 
on GreenPower® or equivalent. 

Fleet & equipment

Embodied carbon in purchased 
capital goods

Employee commuting

Electricity (in control assets)

Other

Purchased goods & services

Electricity (out of control assets)

Waste

Scope 1 Scope 2 (market-based) Scope 3 (estimate)
0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

CY22 Scope 1-3 Emissions Footprint
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Scope 3 Emissions

We are developing pathways to reduce these emissions 
with a particular focus on electricity consumed by 
assets out of our operational control (estimated to be 
66% of our Scope 3 footprint), where electricity supply is 
the responsibility of our commercial partner (the lessor).

Offsetting

Other than for business travel and as a component of 
our NZ Toitū certification, we do not use offsetting as a 
means to negate our carbon footprint. Instead we are 
focusing on how we reduce our emissions, although we 
are yet to set reduction targets. In relation to business 
travel, we offset business flights, accommodation 
and car rental only, through Blue Halo. In CY23 we 
offset 479 tCO2e of business travel related emissions 
against a renewable energy project in Asia and nature 
conservation projects in South America, Africa and 
Australia. During CY23, 357 carbon units have been 
retired.

At the end of 2023 oOh! updated our Travel and 
Entertainment FAQ document, to include a preference 
for Uber Green when using taxis for business. While non-
material in terms of a carbon footprint, (taxis and Ubers 
accounted for approximately 31 tCO2e in CY22), we still 
consider this a sensible approach to help decarbonise 
business travel.  

Waste and Recycling

oOh!’s facilities have waste segregation practices 
in place, with recycling programs for a multitude of 
waste streams, including posters, e-waste, batteries, 
cardboard, metals, and glass. 

In CY23, work was done to set a baseline of volumes of 
our various waste streams. Non-recyclable print waste 
(PVC) was the largest singular category of waste to 
landfill, making the reduction of it in our waste streams, 
a strategic priority for 2024. 

Initiatives for 2024 

The following initiatives will continue to support  
our key programs of work to reduce our impact  
on the planet:

Operational EV trial 

•	 Trial of electric vehicles (approximately 5) from our 
operational fleet, with the aim to roll out electrified 
vehicles across our entire ANZ fleet subject to the 
outcome of the trial

•	 The increase of EV models that have become 
available this year (56% increase in variants in 
2023 compared to 2022) has increased business 
confidence of the prospect of a full transition  
to electric

oOh!’s operational fleet emitted 1,181 tCO2e in CY23 
compared to 1,147 tCO2e in CY22. 

A continued transition to GreenPower® including 
commercial partner collaboration

Transitioning advertising panels to renewable 
energy enables oOh! to offer lower carbon media 
opportunities, which our advertisers and agencies are 
advising us is important as they try to reduce their own 
Scope 3 emissions footprint. 

•	 Budget allocated to continue the transition of assets 
under our control, to GreenPower® as it becomes 
available (accessibility to renewable energy plans 
vary by state including for unmetered supply, which 
can prohibit the purchasing of renewable energy 
altogether)

•	 Proactive work with our commercial partners to 
continue to grow accessibility to renewable energy 
for advertising assets out of our control (as at the 
end of CY23, 2,500 (17%) advertising assets out of 
our control, have been switched to renewable 
energy sources with this number expected to grow 
in 2024) 

•	 GreenPower® availability considered when bidding 
for new business, to not only complement our 
sustainable media offering, but to also assist with the 
commercial partners’ own decarbonisation efforts 
(oOh! sits in the Scope 3 of commercial partners as 
well as advertisers and agencies) 

Closed loop billboard product

In 2023, oOh! supported the launch of Ecobanner™ to 
the advertising market. Developed by GALE Pacific in 
Melbourne following a 3-year collaboration with Cactus 
Imaging (oOh!’s printing subsidiary), a Melbourne based 
university, and a plastics recycling facility in regional 
Victoria, Ecobanner™ is a first to market, closed-loop 
capable alternative to PVC, the non-recyclable 
material currently used for billboard advertising 
throughout the industry.

•	 This new material has the potential to be a fully 
closed-loop recycling solution, meaning advertising 
banners are put back into the manufacturing 
process to remake new banners. This innovative 
solution is currently partially closed-loop and is 
expected to be 100% closed-loop in 2024 (currently 
the percentage of Ecobanner™ not recycled 
back into new banner is utilised by other GALE 
manufacturing streams)

•	 This product is a great leap forward for oOh! and 
the out-of-home industry in Australia to reduce 
waste to landfill and remove non-recyclable 
materials from our supply chain, and we will 
continue to expand and promote its availability 
across our inventory set throughout 2024
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3rd party supplier waste management standards

oOh! works with a number of 3rd party suppliers that 
manage infrastructure installation, demobilisation 
and postings on our behalf. In 2023, oOh! committed 
time and resource to understanding our waste 
management supply chain better, as we start to 
refine it to ensure better reporting and greater 
accountability for the waste our operations are 
responsible for, including that of our 3rd party 
suppliers engaged in installation, decommissioning, 
printing and posting on our behalf.  

As part of this work, oOh! issued a survey to our 
largest 3rd party suppliers, that generate waste on 
our behalf, to get a greater understanding of their 
waste management practices, in order to introduce 
minimum standards as part of our Master Services 
Agreements and Request for Proposal criteria.  
 
Our survey showed:

•	 33% of our largest 3rd party suppliers say they 
have a sustainability policy or commitment in 
place with a further 33% saying they are in the 
process of creating one

•	 83% say they actively work to reduce waste to 
landfill in their operations with 67% saying they 
systemise their waste tracking 

While a good start has been made, there is still a 
lot of work to be continued into 2024, including 
working with our major suppliers to embed minimum 
standards and expanding our focus to additional, 
non-major supplies. 
 

Night-time block out for digital billboards
 
•	 As we seek to become more energy efficient, we 

are testing a night-time block out on one of our 
large format digital billboards, to measure the 
significance of impact on energy consumption 
reduction

•	 If the test proves successful, we intend to roll this 
out across as many of our large format digital 
billboards as possible

•	 The test will block the billboard out from 1am 
– 4am, when we know that the audience 
represents only ~1% of daily viewership

Energy Efficient Product

oOh!’s digital network is a broad mix of LCD and LED 
displays, each customised for the environment it is 
located in. We estimate 95% of our LCD network is 
powered by LED backlight technology (excluding 
screens owned directly by commercial partners 
that we manage content for), improving the energy 
efficiency of the displays. We are working towards 
rolling out LED backlit LCDs across our entire LCD 
network (excluding partner owned screens) and the 
expectation is by the beginning of 2025 this will be 
achieved.

In addition, oOh! has begun transitioning our small 
format outdoor products to LED displays. 2024 will 
see us roll out outdoor LED across the following 
commercial contracts:

•	 Ryde, NSW

•	 Woollahra, NSW

•	 Big Street Bikers, NZ

LED will also be utilised in the Sydney Metro roll out 
and as replacements for LCD in our Street Furniture 
End of Life (EOL) program.

Benefits of LED are: 
 
•	 They offer a superior performance – viewing 

distance and viewing angles of LED is far superior 
to LCD solutions, which we anticipate will benefit 
visibility scores in our new industry measurement 
tool (MOVE 2.0)

•	 Power consumption is ~60% less than equivalent 
LCD displays in the market

•	 The lifespan of LED displays is predicted to be at 
least double that of LCD displays used in outdoor 
environments. To improve our EOL options 
further, we are designing and implementing 
our own in house structures (housings), that 
can be refreshed in future years, rather than 
replacing the whole panel, limiting the amount of 
componentry that needs to be recycled or sent 
to landfill.
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Risk

Climate Related Risk

An internal assessment has been carried out by the 
ESG, WSE and Finance teams to understand potential 
climate-related risks to our business. oOh! utilised the 
SASB standards as a reference point to identify both 
physical and transition risks. We will be engaging a 
3rd party to assist with a more in-depth, material risk 
assessment in 2024.

Climate related risk at oOh! is incorporated into the 
company’s risk register, and is overseen by the Audit, 
Risk & Compliance Committee, as the delegated 
authority of the Board of Directors.

Corporate Risk Management

The Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee (ARCC) is 
the primary forum within oOh!’s governance structure 
that addresses matters of risk, business continuity and 
sustainability. The Chief Financial Officer operates 
also as the Group’s Chief Risk Officer and liaises as 
such between the Group Executive and ARCC. All 
risks are reported on the corporate risk register, which 
is reviewed twice a year. Risk identification and 
mitigation is the responsibility of the executive and 
senior management teams at oOh!. 

There are a number of governance mechanisms in 
place to manage risks:

•	 Capable people: Senior Management and 
dedicated teams trained in relevant regulatory 
and legal requirements, and including specialist 
advisers across the areas of finance, law, 
technology, workplace safety and procurement

•	 Systems and processes: a framework of policies, 
systems, processes and training to guide the 
business

•	 Documentation: standard template contracts to 
ensure compliance to standards and allocate risk 
appropriately amongst parties

Internal 
assessment 
to identify 

climate physical 
transition risk

Risk tool 
onboarding 
& materiality 
assessment  

of risk

Scenario  
analysis,  

asset resilience, 
adaptation  

planning & cost

2024 Focus
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Our People and Our 
Communities

oOh! is committed to providing 
a safe, supportive and inclusive 
environment for our people 
and our communities, as well 
as using our platforms for good 
by supporting the work of our 
community partners. We will 
achieve this by focusing on 
initiatives to support the following 
main programs of work:

•	 Community and Nature

•	 Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 
(DEI)

•	 Safety and Wellbeing

oOh! team members participated 
in fundraising and awareness 
initiatives for the following key 
partners:

As well as supporting our key 
partners throughout the year, we 
also provided media space for 
not-for-profit campaigns including:

Orange Sky Indigenous Literacy Foundation

GO Foundation Great Barrier Reef Foundation

Two Good Dylan Alcott Foundation

Make a Wish Foundation Lifeline

Taronga Conservation Australia Gidget Foundation

Sony Foundation Australia MOOD Tea (UnLtd)

Movember Shake it up Foundation

Fight MND

Our approach in 2023

Community and Nature

Our community program (oOh! 
Community) contributed $16.5m in 
media support to our community 
partners in 2023 (with a total 
commitment of $137m since 2016) 
and supported our team with 
opportunities to contribute back 
to the community.
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In addition, our community 
program in New Zealand 
supported an extensive group 
of partners in the mental health, 
youth and environmental sectors, 
with pro-bono campaigns for 
a multitude of organisations 
including:

Identified as an opportunity to 
have a positive impact on the 
environment, oOh! brought nature 
conservation into the core of our 
community program. In October 
2023, we announced a new 
tier 1 partnership with Greening 
Australia – a national not-for-
profit organisation, with over 40 
years of experience restoring 
Australia’s diverse landscapes 
and protecting biodiversity, with 
campaigns to support their work 
kicking off in 2024.

Urban Art Foundation

Voices of Hope

Youthline 

Keep NZ Beautiful

Make a Wish Foundation

Auckland Pride Festival

Men’s Health Week
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Diversity, Equity and Inclusion 

oOh! launched our new multi-year Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) Strategy 2023-25 with noteworthy 
achievements in CY23 including:

•	 Improved representation of females in key leadership roles (senior direct reports of executives reporting to 
the CEO) – now at 50% compared to 49% in 2022 

•	 Commencement of disability hiring

•	 Widespread delivery of cultural awareness training 

•	 Establishment of new DEI employee representative networks

1.	 Balanced Teams 
Identify the important priorities, focus on teams, and reflect and lead our customers

Objective: Increase the percentage of women in leadership roles

Target Outcomes for 2023

Manager representation 50/50. This requires a multi year focus and is a key inclusion in the 2023-25 Diversity 
Equity and Inclusion (DEI) Strategy and 2024 People & Culture Work Plan.  
The target has not yet been met and women as a proportion of managers 
in 2023 were 45.2% (a small increase on 45% in 2022), with men being 54.8% 
(and 55% in 2022).

Key leadership representation 50/50. Target achieved – 2023 resulted in an improvement from 2022.

Succession plan representation 50/50. Target achieved – 2023 demonstrated a stronger succession talent pipeline 
with strong female representation.

Executive recruitment to prioritise female 
candidates to strengthen female 
representation at the Executive level.

This remains an area of ongoing focus as opportunities occur.

Objective: Provide opportunity for underrepresented groups

Target Outcomes for 2023

NED representation 50/50. This remains an area of ongoing focus as opportunities occur.
43% of Directors are female (n 3) (including Executive and Non-executive 
Directors). 

Diverse interviewers in every hiring 
process, aligned where appropriate to 
the candidate.

Target achieved. This requirement has been built into standard recruitment 
processes.

Create a Reconciliation Action 
Plan (RAP) that includes indigenous 
employment initiatives.

Target in progress. This requires a multi year focus and is a key inclusion in 
the 2023-25 Diversity Equity and Inclusion (DEI) Strategy and 2024 People & 
Culture Work Plan. 

A RAP has been implemented with recruitment initiatives underway in NZ 
(including the appointment of a Maori/Pacific Islander intern through a 
partnership with the Tupu Toa Trust) and partnerships being explored in 
Australia.

Create employment opportunities for 
people with a disability. 

Target achieved – a successful placement has been made in partnership 
with Job Support Australia and additional hires are planned.

Measurable Objectives Outcomes 2023
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2.	 Inclusion and Belonging 
Inclusion in events, communication & messaging, DEI working groups and public commitment

Objective: Demonstrate commitment to inclusive behavioural practices

Target Outcomes for 2023

Assess and seek feedback on leadership 
inclusiveness. Create development and 
actions plans for change.

Target achieved – measured in May 2023 (Pulse survey) and the December 
2023 Engagement survey.

The December 2023 Engagement Survey saw employees comment 
positively about their sense of belonging with 80% saying they feel accepted 
by their team and 83% saying they can bring their authentic selves to work.

Provide learning programs to build 
awareness and understanding of 
inclusive mindsets, belonging and the 
impact of unconscious bias.

Target achieved - significant progress made in this area due to learning 
programs delivered.

Review practice notes and people 
documentation to move towards 
utilising non-binary language within the 
organisation.

Target achieved – an important signal of inclusion.

Deliver Cultural Awareness Training for 
key people leaders .

Target achieved - significant progress made in this area due to learning 
programs delivered.

Objective: Continue targeted leadership development for women

Target Outcomes for 2023

Develop leadership pipelines to include 
representation of women at 50%.  

Target achieved. Improved representation of females in leadership roles  
(Executive -1) – now at 50% compared to 49% in 2022. 

Development has been provided monthly to this group. 

Provide opportunities for the 
development and mentoring of high 
performing women to build their 
leadership capability.  

50% female representation in 
management and leadership 
development programs.

Target achieved - continued significant investment has been provided 
to support the development of women.  For example, several women 
participate in the Future Women’s Program annually and coaching support 
is also provided to select women.

Career development plans in place 
for all women at the Executive -1 
and Executive – 2 levels to support 
succession.

Target achieved - clear development plans are in place for senior females 
across the business.
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Objective: Demonstrate appreciation for all employees regardless of gender, cultural identity, age, sexual orientation, 
disability, work style or approach

Target Outcomes for 2023

Celebrate the diversity of the company 
and showcase contributions from diverse 
employee base at internal events and 
customer events. 

Target achieved – successfully delivering this, with an observable difference 
in the inclusive message it generates. Examples include building content 
into employee Town Halls, employee newsletters, the company web page 
and tender documents. 

Create DEI workstreams and working 
groups to lead initiatives that build a best 
practice culture that leverages diversity.

Target achieved. The 2023-25 DEI Strategy was launched to employees in 
2023 at a Town Hall meeting, on the intranet, and with briefings to teams 
and individuals upon request. Network leads and working groups were 
established and have a cadence of regular meetings and reporting on 
progress.

Participate in government and/or 
industry initiatives that are designed to 
improve diversity or promote inclusive 
cultures.

Target achieved - learning and insights have resulted from participation in 
the OMA’s Diversity Sub Committee and inaugural OMA Diversity Census 
and 2023.

WGEA reporting has proven valuable in setting a baseline, providing 
benchmarks and identifying areas of focus.

Undertake a review of premises and 
technology to support and enable 
accessibility initiatives.

Target in progress – a review of Head Office and capital city locations has 
been completed. A review of major sites and depots will follow in 2024.

Objective: Create an environment to ensure all employees can shine

Target Outcomes for 2023

Refine and embed flexible working 
practices. 

Target achieved - committed to maintaining flexible working (incl. 
compliance with legislative requirements). 

Continue annual gender pay equity 
analysis and introduce approaches to 
reduce bias in performance reviews and 
other relevant people processes. 

Target achieved - greater understanding and awareness has been 
established with progress being made to resolve identified issues and gaps.
Calibration has been embedded in annual review processes, WGEA and 
internal gender equity pay analyses and action plans are regular annual 
activities.

Utilising an appropriate survey tool, 
benchmark and identify opportunities 
for improvement in relation to diversity, 
inclusion, belonging and wellbeing 
practices.

Target achieved - Engagement and Pulse surveys include this focus as 
standard.  Learning and insights have been used to develop the 2023-25 DEI 
Strategy.
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3.	 Process and Policies 
Robust measurement, provide genuine opportunity for underrepresented groups

Objective: Ensure robust measurement, benchmarking and visibility of Diversity, Inclusion and Belonging

Target Outcome

Create and publish a Diversity, Inclusion and Belonging strategy and Reconciliation Action Plan for 
oOh!.  

Achieved

Maintain competitive parental leave and flexible working policies. Achieved

Equity in parental leave: increase % of men taking parental leave (increased from 5 in 2022 to 8 in 2023, 
a 60% increase), maintain robust stay in touch programs and ensure a return to meaningful roles. 

* Included in the 2024 People & Culture Work Plan

In progress

Review progress towards DEI priorities and measurable objectives bi-annually. Achieved

Identify, implement and measure outcomes on diversity priorities by teams following the 2023 Pulse and 
annual Engagement Survey.

Achieved

Utilise engagement surveys to measure views on Wellbeing Safety and Environment and remuneration 
with a view to identifying and acting on any identified issues from a diversity and inclusion perspective.

Achieved

Undertake a review of oOh!’s website and marketing imagery to ensure that it is appropriately diverse 
and representative of all people. 

Achieved
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The gender composition of our workforce highlights that women are more strongly represented in the upper 
middle quartile for remuneration (with a greater representation than men) and upper quartile
(equally represented) which reflects our gender pay gap that is favourable to women.

Specific initiatives focused on women have been built to ensure continued momentum. In terms of 
remuneration, in addition to annual submissions to the Workplace Gender Equality Agency (WGEA),  
initiatives include:

•	 Additional gender pay equity analysis for the Board, Talent & Culture Committee, and CEO, annually

•	 Approaches to reduce bias in performance reviews and other relevant people processes

oOh!  
2021–2022*

oOh! 
2022–2023*

Industry Comparison Group 
2022-2023*

Average (mean) total remuneration^ -2.9% -2.2% +14.6%

Median total remuneration^ -15.7% -15.7% +13.3%

Median base salary^ -7.7% -9.9% +10.7%

*A positive percentage indicates men are paid more on average than women.  A negative percentage indicates women are paid more on average than men.

^Source: WGEA Reporting Industry Benchmark Report, December 2023 & WGEA Reporting Executive Summary, November 2023

Gender Pay Gap

We are proud of our longstanding commitment to driving gender equality and positive change for women  
as part of our DEI Strategy and this includes a specific focus on gender pay equity.  

In 2023 the Workplace Gender Equality Agency (WGEA) confirmed a “negative” gender pay gap for oOh! of
-2.2% for average (mean) total remuneration, which indicates women on average are paid more than men 
(percentage does not include salary data for CEO). This is against an Industry Comparison Group
(Advertising Services, ANZSIC 6940) of +14.6%.
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Reconciliation Action Plan

oOh! successfully completed our first Reflect 
Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) in Australia, 
with a focus on awareness, training and making 
connections in the Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander community. Throughout CY23 we supported 
a wide range of initiatives including:

•	 A National Reconciliation Week inhouse 
screening of ‘Living Black: Father of 
Reconciliation’

•	 A personalised Acknowledgement of Country by 
oOh!’s CEO at every Town Hall

•	 Revision of oOh!’s recruitment practices to 
support best practice inclusiveness

•	 Launch of oOh!’s inaugural Indigenous Business 
Grant, to support indigenous businesses through 
pro-bono media packages

•	 Incorporation of Indigenous businesses into 
oOh!’s procurement practices in Australia and 
also in New Zealand via a partnership with 
Amotai

2024 will see oOh! commence our next Innovate RAP, 
which is a 2 year program building on the progress 
made under the Reflect program.

DEI work in New Zealand also saw the development 
of a partnership with TupuTua to bring a Māori and 
Pacific Islander intern into the business, with this 
initiative due to expand in 2024. 
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Wellbeing, Safety and Environment (WSE)

At the beginning of February 2023, oOh! launched our latest WSE Plan, which targeted four key areas with the 
aim to lift the safety performance and drive continuous improvement: 

As a result of these 2023 initiatives, we saw a 
reduction in our workers compensation claims costs, 
which were 70% lower for the year, when compared 
to the annual average of the proceeding 7 years. 
 

Initiatives for 2024 

The following initiatives will continue to support our 
key people and community facing programs:

Media campaigns supporting community partners 
and promoting sustainable practices to the public 

•	 Optimising our pro-bono and community 
resources behind more specific causes for 
greater and more measurable social impact 
– with work continuing to focus in the areas of 
nature conservation and indigenous and cultural 
inclusion. oOh! will also build on our previous work 
supporting not-for-profit organisation, Ask Izzy, to 
help bring an end to homelessness

•	 Media support of new partner Greening Australia 
to drive visibility of their brand and to educate 
and inspire consumers about environmental 
restoration. High impact placements across 
metro and regional locations, and in-house 
support from oOh!’s creative and innovation hub 
POLY will deliver end-to-end creative support, 
highlighting Greening Australia’s important work 

•	 Partnership with TMRRW Changemaker of the 
year Awards. These awards recognise local 
businesses, organisations, and projects making 
a positive environmental and social impact 
– through this partnership oOh! will deliver 
awareness of Australian businesses innovating for 
a sustainable future 

 

Launch of our 2nd Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP)  
- Innovate

After the successful completion of our Reflect 
Reconciliation Action Plan in January 2024, oOh! has 
commenced planning for our Innovate RAP.

Our commitment to reconciliation is a key 
component of oOh!’s DEI strategy that supports 
team members from diverse cultural backgrounds 
including First Nations people. The Innovate RAP is a 
2-year plan, focused on strengthening relationships 
with First Nations people in our own business and our 
communities, and will be disclosed once developed, 
via the Reconciliation Australia website and in our 
next Sustainability Report. 

A review of our existing 
safety and health 

management systems 
(SHMS) resulted in the 

optimisation of our 
processes to a single 

SHMS.

We identified our 
material work 

environment, equipment, 
and hazardous tasks in 

all areas of our business. ​

We developed a risk 
control improvement 

plan to enhance control 
maturity, moving from 
administrative controls 
to task substitution and 

process design.

We implemented 
WSE performance 

indicators across the 
Group, enhanced the 
business WSE reporting 

process to increase 
performance awareness 
and engagement, and 
improved our incident 
investigation quality by 
defining methodologies 

and upskilling those 
completing investigations.

1 2 3 4
Culture Systems & 

Processes
Risks & Controls Metrics & 

Reporting

Six key safety culture 
initiatives were 

implemented during 2023. 
The intent of these was 
to inform, educate and 
give our teams avenues 

to report and seek support 
- improving our safety 
awareness and safety 
culture one report or 

conversation at a time.
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Embedding best practice wellbeing, safety,  
and injury management tools

Our focus work for 2024 is an extension of our work in 
2023. We will introduce the following initiatives as we 
strive for best practice wellbeing and safety policies 
and practices:

•	 People leader programs to support our 
Psychosocial wellness strategy

•	 Enhanced controls for our physical risk 
environment 

•	 Launch of our documented safety management 
system and associated support tools

•	 Streamlining our Wellbeing, Safety and 
Environment (WSE) training program rollout 

•	 Introduction of minimum WSE standards
 
 
Australian Workplace Equality Index (AWEI) 
accreditation to support our LGBTQI+ community
 
•	 oOh! has a strong LGBTQI+ representation - 6% 

of team members identify as being part of this 
community (based on 2022 oOh! employee DEI 
survey)

•	 In support, we are proud to be the official Out 
of Home media partner of the Sydney Gay and 
Lesbian Mardi Gras with a 3 year partnership, also 
partnering with WorldPride in March 2023, when 
80 oOh! team members joined the iconic parade 
on our ‘Making Love Unmissable’ float

•	 We have increased visibility of our LGBTQI+ team 
members with a focus on celebrating diversity 
through social events and the sharing and 
showcasing of personal story content from our 
LGBTQI+ team members

2024 will see oOh! continue with our ongoing 
commitment, including seeking accreditation from 
AWEI, the definitive national benchmark on LGBTQI+ 
workplace inclusion helping to drive best practice  
in Australia.
 
 
Increase representation of women in leadership and 
develop a more diverse workforce

In 2023 we had our DEI strategy 2023-2025 
endorsed by the Board, which ensures the ongoing 
achievement of objectives relating to gender pay 
equity, women in management and leadership roles, 
disability hiring and cultural background.

This includes key measurable objectives around:

Women

•	 Female representation at key leadership level 
(senior direct reports of executives reporting to 
the CEO) grew to 50% in 2023 when compared to 
49% in 2022 – we aim to keep this steady in 2024, 
while strengthening female representation at the 
Executive level

•	 Aim to achieve 50% representation of women in 
roles identified in Executive and key leadership 
succession plans, through targeted development 
and recruitment

•	 Women to represent 50% of participants in career 
development programs

 
Diverse Workforce

Diversity hiring includes First Nations and other cultural 
background employment initiatives and an active 
creation of employment opportunities for people with 
a disability:

•	 Reducing bias and building awareness – our 
Senior Leadership Team participated in a 
Diversity, Inclusion and Unconscious Bias program 
run by Symmetra

•	 First Nations workforce – In alignment with 
our Innovate RAP, we are continuing to 
broaden our employment pathways for First 
Nations people through specialist recruitment 
organisations, clear and inclusive job adverts 
and connections to university programmes to 
attract young indigenous talent. As standard, 
oOh!’s recruitment team posts jobs to First Nations 
recruitment networks

•	 Cultural Diversity – We are targeting an increase 
in the proportion of team members working 
at oOh! that identify as being from a cultural 
background other than Australian (currently 
21.5%), through the provision of opportunity for 
underrepresented groups and through targeted 
recruitment

•	 Disability – We have established relationships 
with disability employment providers, welcoming 
new team members with disabilities into our 
workforce. This will continue into 2024, as we 
work alongside Job Access and the Australian 
Network on Disability to establish work 
experience programs

Annual Report 2023   •   oOh!media   •   107



Employee engagement

We check in with the whole company on a twice 
yearly basis to understand how our people are
feeling. Results from the December 2023 full 
Engagement Survey showed:

•	 Our people are 73% engaged - representing a 
steady, above-average engagement pattern 
despite a slight 3% decrease from the 2022 result

•	 82% of our people across all business units, say 
they believe in our ESG initiatives and programs – 
this represented a 7% increase on our 2022 result 

•	 76% of team members believe we are building 
and supporting diverse and inclusive teams  – 
representing a 5% increase on the 2022 result

Business 

oOh! is committed to being a transparent and 
accountable business and leading the advertising 
industry to a more sustainable future. We will achieve 
this by enabling ethical operations (embedding 
modern slavery considerations and tools into our
business), developing our environmentally sustainable 
and social procurement frameworks and, as the 
largest Out of Home company in Australia, driving 
our industry’s commitment to sustainable practices 
forward.
 

Our approach in 2023

Modern Slavery

oOh!’s Modern Slavery Statement is available for 
CY22, due to be updated for CY23 in June 2024, and 
can be found at https://modernslaveryregister.gov.
au/statements/13671/.

Our statement is supported by a 5-year Board 
endorsed workplan as we work to eradicate modern 
slavery in our supply chain.

As part of the workplan, we carried out a robust 
market sounding exercise for the most appropriate 
tool to onboard into our business, to support our 
efforts with identifying, managing and mitigating 
modern slavery risk. Following this exercise, oOh! 
engaged with Fair Supply, an ESG risk management 
and compliance solution, to enhance oOh!’s existing 
capabilities.

In 2023, oOh! also undertook the following: 

•	 Selecting and onboarding an online training 
provider to deliver mandatory anti-modern 
slavery awareness training to the business

•	 Performing a thorough examination of our 
existing vendor onboarding process to identify 
opportunities for enhancement

Procurement

As previously noted, in 2023 oOh! commenced 
work on a sustainable procurement framework 
and workplan, to be built upon in 2024, while also 
reviewing our waste management supply chain, 
as we seek to refine our practices and provide 
greater accountability in the business and improved 
reporting. 

We also became a partner of Supply Nation and 
Social Traders in Australia and Amotai in New 
Zealand, as part of our commitment to support 
sustainable procurement through social and 
indigenous enterprises – as a result Mandura was 
appointed to oOh!’s national office supplies contract 
in Australia through a competitive tender. 
 

Initiatives for 2024 

The following initiatives will continue to support our 
aim to be a transparent and accountable leader in 
sustainable practices:

Embed anti-modern slavery tools into our operations

oOh! will continue to bolster our anti-modern slavery 
practices in 2024, including by: 

•	 Rolling out mandatory organisation-wide 
anti-modern slavery awareness training and 
continuing to deliver targeted training to staff 
with the highest exposure to modern slavery risks

•	 Developing and implementing new vendor 
onboarding process based on outcomes of 
the 2023 review, including updates to relevant 
internal policies and practice notes, and oOh!’s 
anti-modern slavery remediation principles

•	 Conducting supply chain mapping and supplier 
due diligence through to the 10th tier of oOh!’s 
supply chain using the Fair Supply mapping 
tool - Fair Supply will enable oOh! to establish an 
in-depth modern slavery risk profile to help inform 
oOh!’s broader anti-modern slavery actions and 
facilitate further due diligence and engagement 
with our higher risk suppliers
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Integrate sustainability into our broader procurement 
processes

•	 Focus on growing our support of social and 
indigenous enterprises through our approach to 
market and by leveraging our relationships with 
external partners

•	 Building on our sustainable procurement 
framework as we seek to integrate 
environmentally responsible procurement 
decisions into our purchasing practices - this 
framework will also support a consolidation of our 
waste management suppliers, through a market 
review

•	 Continuing to seek out local suppliers with >95% 
of our current suppliers based in Australia and 
New Zealand, as a core component of our 
sustainable procurement approach

 

Profile sustainability-focused advertisers

•	 Continue our research, development, and 
investment in sustainable advertising options - 
innovations such as the EcoBanner™, and our 
Renewables Package powered by GreenPower® 
or on-site solar generation, are providing clients 
with alternative ways to engage with oOh!

•	 Support and celebrate businesses that are 
adapting their operations to lessen their 
environmental impact - clients who adopt oOh!’s 
sustainability-focused products or operate in 
other innovative, environmentally aware ways 
will be profiled on our social platforms, inspiring 
others

Advocate for OOH industry sustainable practices

•	 Support the reduction of misinformation on 
our media platform and in the community, 
through anti-greenwashing guidelines, based 
on the Australian Competition and Consumer 
Commission’s eight principles of good practice - 
these guidelines are forming part of our material 
specifications as of February 2024

•	 Work with our industry body, (Outdoor Media 
Association) to provide industry wide education 
to identify greenwashing on Out of Home 
platforms

•	 Advocate for the industry to embrace innovative 
products such as Ecobanner™ and explore and 
invest in other closed loop recycling options - our 
ambition is to ultimately remove PVC from the 
industry’s supply chain, reduce our industry’s 
need for raw materials and reduce waste that 
will ultimately end up in landfill

 

Drive industry collaboration through oOh!’s 
foundation-member partnership with Ad Net Zero  
in NZ

In 2023 oOh! committed to the NZ Commercial 
Communication Council’s adoption of the Ad Net 
Zero initiative, as a foundation partner. Ad Net Zero 
is an industry-wide, global initiative launched by the 
Advertising Association in the UK, to help advertising 
agencies and clients respond to the climate crisis 
caused by carbon emissions associated with the 
development, production, replacement and 
purchasing of product associated with advertising. 
Ad Net Zero’s purpose is to support the reduction of 
these ‘advertised emissions’, with an aim to help the 
industry globally achieve net zero by 2030. Certified 
net zero in 2022, oOh! New Zealand is helping to 
drive industry collaboration to deliver outcomes in 
alignment with the Ad Net Zero goals. 
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Other information

Reporting Frameworks

Based on information available (as at March 2024), oOh! will adopt the AASB Australian Sustainability 
Reporting Standards (based on IFRS S1 and S2 Sustainability Disclosures Standards) for our CY25 reporting year. 
The ESG team at oOh! is preparing the business for these new standards and in anticipation has been using the 
TCFD framework as a starting point and as guidance for progressing and uplifting our data quality, processes,
and reporting.

Non-financial metrics

Organisational Profile

Total number of employees by contract and gender

Employment arrangement Female Male Total

Permanent 354 (45%) 426 (55%) 780

Casual 2 (33%) 4 (67%) 6

Maximum term contractors 15 (71%) 6 (29%) 21

Board (Non-executive Directors only) 2 (33%) 4 (67%) 6

Total workforce 373 (46%) 440 (54%) 813

Employment type Female Male Total

Full time 323 (43%) 420 (57%) 743

Part time 31 (84%) 6 (16%) 37

Total 354 (45%) 426 (55%) 780

Number of permanent employees by employment type and gender

Location Female Male Total

New South Wales 229 (50%) 231 (50%) 460

Australian Capital Territory 0 4 (100%) 4

Victoria 75 (42%) 102 (58%) 177

Queensland 27 (44%) 34 (56%) 61

South Australia 9 (39%) 14 (61%) 23

Western Australia 9 (35%) 17 (65%) 26

New Zealand 24 (39%) 38 (61%) 62

Other 0 0 0

Total workforce 373 (46%) 440 (54%) 813

Total workforce by region and gender
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Workforce policies

Code of Conduct
https://investors.oohmedia.com.au/FormBuilder/_Resource/_
module/Kop5qeccvUmfSkReJ8Nx5g/docs/corporateGovernance/
OML_Code_of_Conduct_202303.pdf

Whistleblower Policy
https://investors.oohmedia.com.au/FormBuilder/_Resource/_
module/Kop5qeccvUmfSkReJ8Nx5g/docs/corporateGovernance/
OML_Whistleblower_Policy_202301.pdf

Reconciliation Action Plan
https://cdn.oohmedia.com.au/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/oOh-
Reflect-Reconciliation-Action-Plan.pdf

WSE
https://investors.oohmedia.com.au/FormBuilder/_Resource/_
module/Kop5qeccvUmfSkReJ8Nx5g/docs/corporateGovernance/
WSE_Policy.pdf

DEI
https://investors.oohmedia.com.au/FormBuilder/_Resource/_
module/Kop5qeccvUmfSkReJ8Nx5g/docs/corporateGovernance/
OML_Diversity_Equity_and_Inclusion_Policy.pdf

Employee related

% of women in key leadership roles 50%

Gender Pay Gap - average (mean) total 
remuneration

-2.2% (in favour of women)

Gender Pay Gap - median total remuneration -15.7% (in favour of women)

Gender Pay Gap - median base salary -9.9% (in favour of women)

Australia CY22 
(baseline year) 
carbon footprint 
measurement*

CY22 Scope 1 emissions 1,021 tCO2e

CY22 Scope 2 emissions (market based) 26,640 tCO2e

CY22 Scope 3 emissions (estimate) 53,386 tCO2e

Currency and Questions

This Sustainability Report is current as at 25 March 2024 (except as specified otherwise) and has been 
approved by the Board.

Any questions regarding this report can be directed to the Company Secretary of oOh!media Limited.

*We have established our CY22 baseline emissions with support from two separate third parties, the first assisting with Scope 1 and 2 and the 
second assisting with Scope 3.  We had our CY22 Scope 1 and 2 emissions assessed for readiness for assurance, but it has not been assured at 
this stage. Our Scope 3 emissions is an estimate only.
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General information 
 

The Annual Financial Report covers oOh!media Limited and its controlled entities. The consolidated financial statements are 
presented in Australian currency. 

oOh!media Limited is a listed company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office and principal 
place of business is: 

Level 2, 73 Miller Street, North Sydney, New South Wales 2060 

The Annual Financial Report was authorised for issue, in accordance with a resolution of the Directors. The Directors have the power 
to amend and reissue the Annual Financial Report.  

Through the use of the internet, oOh!media Limited ensures that all corporate reporting is timely, complete and available to all users 
at minimum cost to the Company. All media releases, financial reports and other information are available at the Investors section on 
the website: www.investors.oohmedia.com.au 
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income / (loss) 

for the year ended 31 December 2023 
    Consolidated 
    31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
  Notes $'000 $'000 
        

Revenue  5 633,911 592,623 
Cost of media sites and production (1)   (216,161) (169,852) 
Gross profit   417,750 422,771 
Other income (2) 5 500  2,136  
        
Operating expenditure        
Employee benefits expense   (100,290) (102,686) 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 12,13,14 (182,843) (200,665) 
Legal and professional fees   (7,358) (6,389) 
Advertising and marketing expenses   (7,345)  (7,674) 
Other expenses 7 (25,015) (20,103) 
Total operating expenditure             (322,851)           (337,517) 
        
Operating profit   95,399 87,390 
        
Finance income   1,185 481 
Finance costs (3)   (44,309) (41,727) 
Net finance costs 8 (43,124) (41,246) 
        
Share of profit / (loss) of equity-accounted investees, net of tax   (59) 11 
Profit before income tax   52,216 46,155 
        
Income tax (expense) / benefit 10 (17,599) (14,639) 
Profit after income tax                 34,617                31,516  
        
Attributable to:       
Owners of the Company   34,617 31,516 
Profit for the period   34,617 31,516 
        
        
Other comprehensive income / (loss)       
        
Items that may be subsequently classified to profit or loss:       
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax   (1,115) 7,118 
De-designation of interest rate derivatives to the Consolidated Income Statement, net of tax (3)   -    (1,376) 
Foreign currency translation differences    (257) (1,782) 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period   33,245 35,476 
        
Attributable to:       
Owners of the Company   33,245 35,476 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period    33,245 35,476 
        
Earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company   Cents Cents 
Basic earnings / (loss) per share 29 6.3 5.3 
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share 29 6.3 5.3 

 
(1) Cost of media sites and production is shown net of negotiated rent abatements with lessors. Refer to Note 6 Rent concessions. 
(2) Other income comprises a gain on lease modifications and gain on sale of assets. Refer to Note 5 Revenue and other income. 
(3) Pursuant to AASB 9, a portion of the interest rate derivative was deemed ineffective, and a fair value gain was reclassified to profit or loss. Refer to 

Note 8 Net finance costs. 

 

 

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income / (loss) should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated statement of financial position 

as at 31 December 2023 

    Consolidated 
  Notes 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 

   $'000 $'000 
Current assets       
Cash and cash equivalents   31,647  40,048  
Trade and other receivables 11 117,216  113,044  
Inventories  16 2,640  6,094  
Other assets 17 13,514  14,290  
Total current assets   165,017  173,476  
        
Non-current assets       
Property, plant and equipment 12 149,561  151,359  
Right-of-use assets 13 599,552  652,306  
Intangible assets 14 723,634  745,414  
Derivative assets 21 3,488  5,466  
Deferred tax asset 10 13,232  -    
Other assets 17 4,979  3,874  
Total non-current assets   1,494,446  1,558,419  
        
Total assets   1,659,463  1,731,895  
        
Current liabilities       
Trade and other payables 19 61,530  49,936  
Interest bearing lease liabilities 18 125,357  145,255  
Provisions 20 4,541  3,420  
Employee benefits   9,560  9,352  
Income tax payable 10 20,305  22,884  
Total current liabilities   221,293  230,847  
        
Non-current liabilities       
Loans and borrowings 18 115,415  72,899  
Provisions 20 9,424  8,424  
Employee benefits   2,270  2,138  
Interest bearing lease liabilities 18 566,068  609,742  
Deferred tax liability 10 3,664  3,002  
Total non-current liabilities   696,841  696,205  
        
Total liabilities   918,134  927,052  
        
Net assets   741,329  804,843  
        
Equity       
Share capital 22(a) 804,049  864,104  
Treasury shares    (4,683) -    
Reserves 22(b) 26,953  33,485  
Accumulated losses    (84,085)  (91,841) 
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company   742,234  805,748  
        
Non-controlling interest 22(c)  (905)  (905) 
Total equity   741,329  804,843  

 

 

 

 

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated statement of cash flows  
 
for the year ended 31 December 2023       
    Consolidated 
  Notes 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
    $'000 $'000 

Cash flows from operating activities       
Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax)   694,439  642,037  
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax)    (410,704)  (371,278) 
Cash generated from operations   283,735  270,759  
        
Interest paid    (41,884)  (40,232) 
Interest received   1,071  481  
Tax paid    (31,924)  (8,320) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 30 210,998  222,688  
        
Cash flows from investing activities       
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  12  (33,444)  (23,952) 
Acquisition of intangible assets 14  (6,305)  (3,085) 
Loan to industry association    (2,282)  (3,109) 
Disposal of subsidiary   -    1,193  
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment   131  63  
Net cash used in investing activities    (41,900)  (28,890) 
        
Cash flows from financing activities       
Payment of share buy back    (60,055)  (22,364) 
Purchase of treasury shares    (9,661) -    
Proceeds from loans and borrowings   102,000  -    
Repayment of loans and borrowings    (60,000)  (50,000) 
Payment of transaction costs related to borrowings and derivatives    (87)  (1,402) 
Payment of lease liabilities    (122,835)  (125,110) 
Dividends paid in cash    (26,861)  (14,922) 
Net cash used in financing activities    (177,499)  (213,798) 
        
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents    (8,401)  (20,000) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period   40,048  60,048  
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   31,647  40,048  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
a 

 
for the year ended 31 December 2023     

  Share 
capital 

Treasury 
shares 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 

Other 
equity  

reserve 

Cash flow 
hedge  

reserve 

Share-
based 

payments 
reserve 

Accumulated 
losses  

Non-
controlling 

interest  
Total equity 

Consolidated  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
           

Balance as at 1 January 2022 886,468  -    794  16,608   (3,675) 11,789   (108,435)  (905) 802,644  
                    
Total comprehensive income for the period:                   
Profit for the period after income tax -    -    -    -    -    -    31,516  -    31,516  
Other comprehensive income:                   
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges -    -    -    -    7,118  -    -    -    7,118  
De-designation of interest rate derivatives to the Consolidated Income Statement, net of tax -    -    -    -     (1,376) -    -    -     (1,376) 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations -    -     (1,782) -    -    -    -    -     (1,782) 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period -    -     (1,782) -    5,742  -    31,516  -    35,476  
                    
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity:                   
Contributions and distributions                   
Dividends paid -    -    -    -    -    -    (14,922) -     (14,922) 
Share buy back (22,364) -    -    -    -    -    -       (22,364) 
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions -    -    -    -    -    4,009  -    -    4,009  
Total transactions with owners of the Company  (22,364) -    -    -    -    4,009   (14,922) -     (33,277) 
Balance at 31 December 2022 864,104  -     (988) 16,608  2,067  15,798   (91,841)  (905) 804,843  
                    
Balance as at 1 January 2023 864,104  -     (988) 16,608  2,067  15,798   (91,841)  (905)      804,843  
                    
Total comprehensive income for the period:                   
Profit for the period after income tax -    -    -    -    -    -    34,617  -    34,617  
Other comprehensive income:                   
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges -    -    -    -     (1,115) -    -    -     (1,115) 
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations -    -     (257) -    -    -    -    -     (257) 
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period -    -     (257) -     (1,115) -    34,617  -    33,245  
                    
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity:                   
Contributions and distributions                   
Dividends paid -    -    -    -    -    -    (26,861) -     (26,861) 
Share buy back (60,055) -    -    -    -    -    -    -     (60,055) 
Treasury shares acquired -    (9,661) -    -    -    -    -    -     (9,661) 
Shares vested and issued to employees -    4,978 -    -    -     (4,978) -    -    -    
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions -    -    -    -    -     (182) -    -     (182) 
Total transactions with owners of the Company  (60,055)  (4,683) -    -    -     (5,160)  (26,861) -     (96,759) 
Balance at 31 December 2023 804,049   (4,683)  (1,245) 16,608  952  10,638   (84,085)  (905) 741,329  

 
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements 
 

1. Reporting entity 
 

oOh!media Limited is a company domiciled in Australia. The Company was incorporated on 7 October 2014 and listed on the 
Australian Securities Exchange (ASX) on 17 December 2014. The Company's registered office and principal place of business is at 
Level 2, 73 Miller Street, North Sydney, NSW 2060. 

The Annual Financial Report (consolidated financial statements) of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 
comprises the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group, and individually as Group entities), and the Group’s 
interests in associates and joint ventures. The comparative information represents the financial position of the Company as at 31 
December 2022 and the Group's performance for the period 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022. 

The Group is a for-profit entity and is primarily involved in outdoor media, production and advertising in Australia and New Zealand. 

 

2. Basis of accounting 
 

a) Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 
2001 (Cth). The consolidated financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the 
International Standards Board (IASB). 

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 February 2024. 

 
b) Basis of measurement 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following item in the 
consolidated statement of financial position: 

- Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value. 

 
c) Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. The 
Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations Instrument 2016/191 dated 1 April 2016 and in accordance with the instrument, 
all financial information presented in Australian dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise stated. 

 
d) Going concern   

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal 
business activities and realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The Group has an excess of 
current liabilities over current assets totalling $56,276,000, principally due to current lease obligations stemming from the Group’s 
significant lease portfolio. The Group is generating positive operating cash flows and there is no indication that the Group will not be 
able to meet its obligations as and when they fall due and is forecast to continue doing so. 

 
e) Use of judgements and estimates 

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of the Group's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 

 
i. Judgements 

 
Key judgements include the forecast performance of the Group, which at the time of this report has inherent uncertainty. These key 
judgements relate to the carrying value of the tangible and intangible assets and were made based on the internal and external 
available information. Should actual performance differ significantly from these assumptions there may be material changes to the 
carrying value of the assets listed above for future reporting periods. Assumptions with regards to the recoverability of goodwill 
allocated to Cash Generating Units are included in Note 15 Goodwill.  
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ii. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the 
year ending 31 December 2023 are included in the following notes: 

- Note 15 Goodwill: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts for impairment testing; and  
- Note 18 Loans and borrowings: lease terms. 

 
iii. Measurement of fair values 

 
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities. 

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a finance team that 
has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and which reports directly 
to the Chief Financial Officer. 

The finance team reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes 
or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to 
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such 
valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Audit, Risk & Compliance Committee. 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as much as possible.  

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, 
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 
is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change 
has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included Note 23 Fair values.  

  
f) Changes in accounting policies 

The accounting policies adopted in this report have been consistently applied to each entity in the Group and are consistent with 
those of the previous year. 

 
g) New standards and interpretations 

 
Material accounting policy information 

The Group adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) from 1 January 2023. The 
amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’, rather than ‘significant’, accounting policies. The amendments did not result in any 
changes to the accounting policies in the financial statements. 

The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to 
provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial 
statements. Management reviewed the accounting policies and made updates to the information disclosed in Note 3 Material 
accounting policies (2022: Significant accounting policies) in certain instances in line with the amendments. 

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction 

The Group has adopted Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12) from 1 
January 2023. The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption to exclude transactions that give rise to equal 
and offsetting temporary differences, for example leases and provisions for make good. For leases and provisions for make good, the 
Group is required to recognise the associated deferred tax assets and liabilities from the beginning of the earliest comparative period 
presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date. 
For all other transactions, the Group applies the amendments to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest 
period presented. This has no impact on the Group’s financial position and no impact on opening retained earnings as at 1 January 
2022. 
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3. Material accounting policies 
 

Accounting policies can be found throughout the notes to these financial statements, beneath the appropriate note disclosure. For 
changes in the accounting policy in the period refer to Note 2(f) Changes in accounting policies.    
   

a) Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of oOh!media Limited and the results of 
subsidiaries. oOh!media Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in these consolidated financial statements as ‘the Group’. 

 
i. Subsidiaries 

 
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial 
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed 
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
over the entity. 
 

ii. Investments in equity-accounted investees 
 

The Group’s interest in equity-accounted investees represents its interest in a joint venture. A joint venture is an arrangement in which 
the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and 
obligations for its liabilities. The Group’s interest in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They 
are initially recognised at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial 
statements include the Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees, until the date 
on which significant influence or joint control ceases. 

 
iii. Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

 
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are 
eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the 
extent of the Group’s interest in that investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the 
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.  

 
iv. Non-controlling interests (NCI) 

 
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the 
Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.  

 

b) Foreign currency translation  - refer to Note 22 Capital and reserves 

 
i. Transactions and balances 
 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

 
ii. Foreign operations 

 
The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which have the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have 
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows: 

 
- Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet; 
- Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange rates unless this is 

not a reasonable approximation of the: 
• Cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are 

translated at the dates of the transactions; 
• All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity. 
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On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings 
and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign 
operation is sold, ceases operation or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, a proportionate share of such 
exchange differences are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, as part of the gain or loss on sale where 
applicable. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of 
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. 

 
c) Goods and services tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from 
the taxation authority. Operating cash flows are recognised inclusive of the associated GST. In this case, it is recognised as part of the 
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST 
receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other 
receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 
 

d) Glossary – refer to glossary of defined terms 
 

4. Operating segments 
 

a) Basis for segmentation 

The Group operates as a single segment providing a range of Out-of-Home advertising solutions. 

 
b) Reconciliation of Adjusted Underlying EBITDA 

The Board and executive management review the Adjusted Underlying Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation 
(EBITDA) to monitor business performance because they believe that it provides a better representation of financial performance in 
the ordinary course of business. 
 

   

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Adjusted Underlying EBITDA            130,174              127,096  
Fixed rent obligations (1) 147,568  158,823  
Underlying EBITDA           277,742              285,919  
Other Income (2) 500  2,136  
Statutory EBITDA            278,242             288,055  
Share of (loss) / profit of equity-accounted investees, net of tax  (59) 11  
Amortisation  (25,936)  (23,597) 
Depreciation  (156,907)  (177,068) 
Net finance costs  (43,124)  (41,246) 
Profit before income tax             52,216                46,155  

 
 

(1) Includes rent of $136,940,000 excluded from Cost of media sites and production and $10,628,000 from Other expenses under AASB 16. No 
abatements for fixed rent were received in the year up to 31 December 2023 which qualified for practical expedients relief (2022: $10,850,000). 
Refer to Note 6 Rent concessions.  

(2) See Note 5 Revenue and other income for more details. 
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5. Revenue and other income 
 
Revenue by Product 

Key information relating to the Group's financial performance is detailed below. This is also included in management reports 
reviewed by the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker (the Board).  
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 

 $'000 $'000 
Road 218,358  191,094  
Street Furniture and Rail (1) 197,688  196,520  
Retail 145,227  142,913  
Fly 43,712  33,822  
City & Youth 17,656  17,445  
Other (2) 11,270  10,829  
Revenue from continuing operations            633,911             592,623  

 
(1) Street and Rail revenue includes advertising, production, sale of street furniture, and cleaning and maintenance revenue. 
(2) Other revenues include subsidiary entity Cactus. 

 
With regards to the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, 78% (2022: 77%) of the Group’s revenue was recognised over 
time and 22% (2022: 23%) was recognised at a point in time.  

 
Other income 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 

 $'000 $'000 
Gain on lease modification 270  2,136  
Gain on sale of assets 230  -    

Other income                  500                  2,136  

 

Accounting policy: Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of the amount of goods and services tax. 
Revenue from core operating activities consists of Out Of Home advertising revenues based on fixed price contracts. Revenue from 
Out Of Home advertising is recognised equally on a pro rata basis over the period in which the advertising is on display. Revenue for 
media production work is recognised on completion of the assignment. Revenue is recognised on a gross basis with commissions 
payable to advertising and media agencies recognised as expenses in 'Cost of media sites and production'. 

In accordance with AASB 15, the Group has applied the exemption not to disclose revenue from unfulfilled performance obligations, 
as performance obligations form part of a contract that has an original term of one year or less. 

 
Contract balances 

The timing of revenue recognition, invoicing, and cash collections results in accounts receivable, un-invoiced receivables (contract 
assets), and customer advances (contract liabilities) on the consolidated statement of financial position. Media contracts are all 
billed in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms and pricing, either upfront, at periodic intervals (e.g. lunar period) or upon 
achievement of contractual milestones. These assets and liabilities are reported on the consolidated statement of financial position 
on a contract-by-contract basis at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the contract asset and liability balances were not 
materially impacted by any other factors during the year ended 31 December 2023.  

Revenue recognised in 2023 that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year was $10,031,000. 
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6. Rent concessions 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 

 $'000 $'000 
Fixed rent abatements - COVID-19 practical expedient (1) -    10,850  
Variable rent -     (3,528) 
Net rent abatement                    -                   7,322  

   
Net cost reduction                    -                   7,322  

 

(1) Following the IFRC decision, the Group have taken up the practical expedients detailed under AASB 16 Lease (para 16A), allowing the Group not 
to assess whether eligible rent concessions that are a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications.  

 
Rent abatements – COVID-19 practical expedient 

No fixed rent abatements were received during 2023.  In 2022, commercial partners provided rent relief due to the impact of COVID-
19, either as a waiver, or as a conversion to variable rent.  

 

7. Other expenses 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Office expenses 2,417  2,355  
Information technology and communications expenses 10,068  9,055  
Taxes and charges 2,098  988  
Insurances 3,378  3,775  
Loss on disposal of assets 3,159  231  
Travel and entertainment 3,875  3,510  
Other expenses 20  189  
Other expenses 25,015  20,103  

 

8. Net finance costs 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 

 $'000 $'000 
Finance income  (1,185)  (481) 

 
  

Interest expense on bank borrowings 9,802  9,976  
Amortisation of debt facility establishment costs 685  735  
Interest expense on lease liabilities 34,448  33,382  
Hedge ineffectiveness  (626)  (990) 
De-designation of cash flow hedges -     (1,376) 
Finance costs 44,309  41,727  

   
Net finance costs  43,124  41,246  

 

Accounting policy: Finance income and finance costs 

 
i) Finance income 

Finance income is recognised as income in the period in which it is earned. Finance income includes interest income, which is 
recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

 
ii) Finance costs 

Finance costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred using the effective interest method. Finance costs 
include interest on bank borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with arrangement of borrowings, and interest expense on 
lease liabilities. Refer to Note 18 Loans and borrowings.  
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9. Share-based payments  
 
Description of the share-based payment arrangements 

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had the following share-based payment arrangements: 
 

a) Short term incentive plan (STIP) 

For the year ended December 2023, the Group introduced an equity-based deferral scheme reflecting market practice and to 
enhance alignment of the STIP with shareholder expectations. The plan applies to the Executive leadership team and CEO, whereby 
33% of each executive’s annual STI outcome will be deferred in lieu of cash payment and converted into rights to receive oOh! 
shares with a vesting date of 18 February 2025; specifically in 1-year Restricted Shares. Participants may voluntarily elect for the 
deferred portion to be subject to post-vesting disposal restrictions for up to 15 years from commencement of the annual 
performance period. The number of rights to be granted will be determined based on a 10-day volume weighted average price 
(VWAP) of a share following the release of the Group’s annual financial results. All rights are redeemable on a one-for-one basis for 
oOh! shares, subject to the achievement of performance hurdles. 

As at 31 December 2023, no rights had been issued as these only crystallised when the Board ratified the recommendation by the 
Talent and Culture Committee on 19 February 2024. 
 

b) Long term incentive plan (LTIP) 

Generally, participation in the LTIP is limited to a defined set of senior leaders of the Group. All rights are redeemable on a one-for-
one basis for oOh! shares, subject to the achievement of performance hurdles. 

Performance rights granted to senior executives that existed during the period are as follows: 
 

 Grant date Vesting date  Number granted  
Tranche #7 30 Nov 20 28 Feb 23 3,453,482  
Tranche #8 10 May 21 28 Feb 24 1,344,890  
Tranche #9a 05 May 22 28 Feb 25 988,395  
Tranche #9b 16 May 22 28 Feb 25 443,892  
Tranche #10a 11 May 23 28 Feb 26 518,238  
Tranche #10b 22 May 23 28 Feb 26 976,226  
Total performance rights   7,725,123  

 

Vesting conditions for the performance rights are as follows: 

Tranche #7: Three LTI performance hurdles, each measured over a 3-year performance period ended 31 December 2022 and each 
representing 1/3 of the target award: 

- Free Cash Flow per share (FCF), achievement of 6.33 cents per share, calculated as: (operating cash flow less capital 
expenditure and lease liabilities paid in CY22) / weighted number of issued shares. 

- Return on Invested Capital (ROIC), achievement of 12.9%, calculated as CY22 Adjusted Underlying EBITDA / invested capital. 
- Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) assessed against the ASX200 index (excluding Financials, Industrials, Materials and Oil, 

Gas and Consumable Fuels). 

Tranche #8: Three LTI performance hurdles, each measured over a 3-year performance period ending 31 December 2023 and each 
representing 1/3 of the target award: 

- Free Cash Flow per share (FCF), achievement of 12.7 cents per share, calculated as: (operating cash flow less capital 
expenditure and lease liabilities paid in CY23) / weighted number of issued shares. 

- Return on Invested Capital (ROIC), achievement of 15.3%, calculated as CY23 Adjusted Underlying EBITDA / invested capital. 
- Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) assessed against the ASX200 index (excluding Financials, Industrials, Materials and Oil, 

Gas and Consumable Fuels). 

Tranche #9a&b: Three LTI performance hurdles, each measured over a 3-year performance period ending 31 December 2024 and 
each representing 1/3 of the target award: 

- Cumulative Free Cash Flow per share (CFCF), achievement of 24.8 cents per share, calculated as (operating cash flow CY22-
CY24 less capital expenditure and lease liabilities paid over CY22-CY24) / weighted number of issued shares. 

- Return on Invested Capital (ROIC), achievement of 16.5%, calculated as CY24 Adjusted Underlying EBITDA / invested capital. 
- Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) assessed against the ASX200 index (excluding Financials, Industrials, Materials and Oil, 

Gas and Consumable Fuels). 
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Tranche #10a&b: Three LTI performance hurdles, each measured over a 3-year performance period ending 31 December 2025 and 
each representing 1/3 of the target award: 

- Cumulative Free Cash Flow per share (CFCF), achievement of 34.0 cents per share, calculated as (operating cash flow CY23-
CY25 less capital expenditure and lease liabilities paid over CY23-CY25) / weighted number of issued shares. 

- Return on Invested Capital (ROIC), achievement of 20.3%, calculated as CY25 Adjusted Underlying EBITDA / invested capital. 
- Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) assessed against the ASX200 index (excluding Financials, Industrials, Materials and Oil, 

Gas and Consumable Fuels). 

 
Long-term incentive plan - performance rights 

A total of 3,191,012 of Tranche #7 performance rights vested in 28 February 2023, as all vesting conditions were satisfied. The 
performance rights of Tranche #7 vested at 92% based upon the Board’s determination of the achievement of the ROIC at 127%, 
FCF at 150% and TSR at nil versus the set targets. The share price on the vesting date was $1.56. Details in relation to grants issued in 
the year ended 31 December 2023 are detailed in the table below. As the performance rights entitle the holder of the rights to 
receive a share for no consideration at a future date, the exercise price is considered to be nil.  

Tranche #10a and #10b were issued in May 2023. 
 
 
Reconciliation of performance rights 

The number of performance rights on issue during the year ended 31 December 2023 are illustrated below:  
 

    Number of rights Face Value 
 # $'000 

Outstanding at 1 January 2023 6,230,659  10,852  
Exercised during the period  (3,191,012)  (4,116) 
Granted during the period 1,494,464  1,319  
Forfeited  (88,778)  (121) 
Lapsed  (262,470)  (339) 
Outstanding at 31 December 2023        4,182,863                 7,595  
Exercisable at 31 December 2023                    -                         -    

 

Measurement of fair values 

The fair value of the share-based payment plan was measured based on the Monte Carlo and Binomial models. The inputs used in 
the measurement of the fair values at grant date were as follows: 
 

Fair value of performance rights and assumptions Tranche #7 Tranche #8 Tranche #9a Tranche #9b Tranche #10a Tranche #10b 
Share price at grant date $1.74 $1.62 $1.67 $1.52 $1.26 $1.26 
5-day VWAP at grant date $1.70 - - - - - 
20-day VWAP at 31 Dec 20 - $1.76 - - - - 
20-day VWAP at 31 Dec 21 - - $1.69 $1.69 - - 
10-day VWAP at 3 Mar 23 - - - - $1.59 $1.59 
Fair value at grant date (EPS hurdle) - - - - - - 
Fair value at grant date (TSR hurdle) $0.58 $1.01 $1.01 $0.86 $0.69 $0.70 
Fair value at grant date (FCF hurdle) $1.64 $1.58 - -   
Fair value at grant date (ROC hurdle) - - $1.54 $1.40 $1.11 $1.12 
Fair value at grant date (ROIC hurdle) $1.64 $1.58 $1.54 $1.40 $1.11 $1.12 
Exercise price Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Expected volatility 60.0% 50.0% 40.0% 45.0% 45.0% 45.0% 
Expected life 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 
Expected dividends 1.00% 1.00% 3.00% 3.00% 4.50% 4.50% 
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 0.11% 0.11% 2.96% 2.84% 3.05% 3.29% 

 

Accounting policy: Employee benefits 

 
i) Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be 
paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
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ii) Long service leave   

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of 
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected 
unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and 
periods of service. 

Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on corporate bonds with terms to maturity and 
currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. Benefits falling more than 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period are classified as non-current. 

iii) Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee 
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably 
committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of 
withdrawal or to providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due 
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value and classified as non-current. 
 

iv) Defined contribution plans 

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are 
recognised as an asset to the extent a cash refund or reduction of future payments is available. 

Employee benefits expense includes contributions to defined contribution plans of $8,974,000 for the current reporting period (2022: 
$8,732,000). 
 

10. Income tax 
 

a) Tax recognised in profit or loss 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Current tax expense   
Current tax expense 28,462  22,423  
Adjustment for prior periods 1,230   (548) 
Total current tax expense 29,692 21,875 
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense   
Origination and reversal of temporary difference  (12,093)  (7,236) 
Total deferred tax benefit (12,093) (7,236) 
Total income tax expense 17,599 14,639 

 

 
Tax recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) 
 
 

        2023 2022 

  Before  tax   Tax (expense)/ 
benefit   Net of tax   Before  tax  

 Tax 
(expense)/ 

benefit  
 Net of tax  

 $'000 $'000  $'000   $'000  $'000  $'000  
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (1,592) 477 (1,115) 8,203 (2,461) 5,742 
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Reconciliation between income tax expense and pre-tax profit 
 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
  $'000 $'000 
Profit after income tax for the year 34,617  31,516  
Total income tax expense 17,599  14,639  
Profit before income tax             52,216                46,155  
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 30% (2022: 30%) 15,665  13,847  
Effect of tax rate in foreign jurisdictions  (193)  (219) 
Non-deductible expenses 879  1,681  
Non-assessable income -     (119) 
Effect of share of loss / (profit) of equity-accounted investees 18   (3) 
Effect of prior year adjustment for upfront payments for street furniture contracts (1) 1,871  -    
Over provided in prior years  (641)  (548) 
Total income tax expense 17,599 14,639 

 

(1) Effect of non-deductible upfront payments on street furniture contracts recognised in the profit or loss of prior periods and discussed further in this 
note under Contingent liability below. 

 
 
The effective tax rate is calculated as Company income tax expense divided by profit before income tax, adjusted for post-tax share 
of results of equity-accounted investees. 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Profit from ordinary activities before income tax 52,216  46,155  
Add / (less): Post-tax share of results of equity-accounted investees 59   (11) 
Profit before income tax 52,275  46,144  
Income tax expense 17,599  14,639  
Effective tax rate 33.7% 31.7% 

 

b) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 

 
 2023 

 Balance 
1 Jan 23 

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

Recognised in 
OCI 

Balance 
31 Dec 23 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Property, plant and equipment 1,389  2,278  -    3,667  
Right-of-use asset (1)  (194,933) 19,831  -     (175,102) 
Cash flow hedges  (1,640) 117  477   (1,046) 
Capital costs deductible over 5 years  1,112   (770) -    342  
Accrued expenses 3,421  854  -    4,275  
Provisions 4,042  432  -    4,474  
Employee benefits provision 3,446  102  -    3,548  
Licences acquired  (35,231) 5,452  -     (29,779) 
Other intangibles  (2,416)  (1,926) -     (4,342) 
Unearned revenue 2,122   (183) -    1,939  
Leases 215,686   (14,094) -    201,592  
Total tax assets / (liabilities)             (3,002)               12,093                    477                 9,568  

 
(1) The Company has reversed a deferred tax liability of $2,577,000 previously recognised for the unamortised balance of upfront payments on street 

furniture contracts and disclosed under right-of-use assets. This is discussed further in this note under Contingent liability. 
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 2022 

 Balance 
1 Jan 22 

Recognised in 
profit or loss 

Recognised in 
OCI 

Balance 
31 Dec 22 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Property, plant and equipment 2,394   (1,005) -    1,389  
Right-of-use asset  (216,233) 21,300  -     (194,933) 
Cash flow hedges 1,530   (709)  (2,461)  (1,640) 
Capital costs deductible over 5 years  2,245   (1,133) -    1,112  
Accrued expenses 4,095   (674) -    3,421  
Provisions 5,101   (1,059) -    4,042  
Employee benefits provision 3,171  275  -    3,446  
Licences acquired  (40,573) 5,342  -     (35,231) 
Other intangibles  (3,198) 782  -     (2,416) 
Unearned revenue 819  1,303  -    2,122  
Leases 232,872   (17,186) -    215,686  
Total tax assets / (liabilities)  (7,777) 7,236   (2,461)  (3,002) 

 

 
 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
Recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows: $'000 $'000 
Deferred tax assets 13,232  2,008  
Deferred tax liabilities  (3,664)  (5,010) 
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 9,568   (3,002) 

   
Unrecognised deferred tax assets   
Deductible temporary differences 62,586  62,586  

 
 
Contingent liability 

There are no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2023.  The prior year’s contingent liability related to historic upfront payments 
which created an uncertain tax position. This crystalised in the current period in a settlement with the Australian Taxation Office 
(ATO). The Company previously treated upfront payments for street furniture contracts as deductible when paid. For accounting 
purposes, the payments are amortised over the terms of the contracts. During the year, the Company reached an agreement with 
the ATO to treat a proportion of the payments as non-deductible. The Company has recognised a current tax liability of $4,448,000 
payable to the ATO in 2024. The Company has recognised tax expense of $1,871,000 for non-deductible amortisation included in the 
profit or loss of prior periods and has reversed a deferred tax liability of $2,577,000 for the unamortised balance of these payments at 
31 December 2022. 
 

Accounting policy: Income tax 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a 
business combination or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (OCI).  

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the 
tax amount expected to be paid or received. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Current tax also includes any tax arising from dividends. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are 
recovered, or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantially enacted for each jurisdiction. The 
relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred 
tax asset or liability. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 
investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and 
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
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With regards to measuring deferred tax consequences on licences and brands, management considers the tax consequences of 
recovery through use and then disposal separately. Under this approach the tax base from use (nil as the licences and brands are 
not depreciable for tax) is considered separate from the tax base from disposal (capital gains tax value). This results in a taxable 
temporary difference (deferred tax liability) on revenue account and a deductible temporary difference (deferred tax asset) on 
capital account. As it is not currently probable that future capital gains will be made, the deferred tax asset has not been 
recognised. 
     
 
Tax consolidation legislation 

oOh!media Limited and its wholly owned Australian controlled subsidiaries apply the tax consolidation legislation. 

The deferred tax balances recognised by the parent entity and the consolidated entity in relation to wholly owned entities joining the 
tax consolidated group are initially measured and remeasured based on the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of those 
entities at the level of the tax consolidated group and their tax values, as applicable under the tax consolidation legislation. 

oOh!media Limited, as the head entity in the tax consolidated group, recognises current and deferred tax amounts relating to 
transactions, events and balances of the controlled entities in this group as if those transactions, events and balances were its own, in 
addition to the current and deferred tax amounts arising in relation to its own transactions, events and balances. Amounts receivable 
or payable under a tax funding agreement with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as tax-related amounts receivable or 
payable. Expenses and revenues arising under the tax funding agreement are recognised as a component of income tax (expense) 
/ benefit. 

In accordance with Urgent Issues Group Interpretation 1052 "Tax Consolidation Accounting", the controlled entities in the tax 
consolidated group account for their own deferred tax balances, except for those relating to tax losses. 

 

11. Trade and other receivables 
 

    31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Trade receivables 117,925  114,187  
Allowance for impairment of receivables  (709)  (1,144) 

 117,216  113,043  
Other receivables -    1  
Total trade and other receivables 117,216  113,044  

 

Information on the Group's exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade and other receivables are included in 
Note 24 Financial risk management. 
 

Accounting policy: Trade receivables 

All trade debtors are recognised at the amount receivable as they are due for settlement no more than 45 days from the date of 
recognition. Recoverability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are 
written off. A provision for doubtful receivables is calculated using an expected credit losses provision matrix. The provision matrix is 
based on the Group's historical observed default rates, adjusted for forward looking estimates. The historical observed default rates 
are updated to reflect current and forecast credit conditions on each reporting date. Provisions for specific receivables are 
recognised in addition to the general provision originating from the expected credit losses matrix.  

The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position with a corresponding charge 
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
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12. Property, plant and equipment  
 

Reconciliation of carrying amount 

 2023 
 Leasehold 

improvements Plant & equipment Total 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Cost    
Balance as at 1 January 2023 13,016  387,182  400,198  
Additions 375  33,069  33,444  
Disposals -     (22,514)  (22,514) 
Reclassification 78   (1,433)  (1,355) 
Effects of movement in exchange rates  (2)  (177)  (179) 
As at December 2023 13,467  396,127  409,594  

    
Accumulated depreciation    
Balance as at 1 January 2023  (9,695)  (239,144)  (248,839) 
Depreciation for the year  (447)  (32,656)  (33,103) 
Disposals -    21,818  21,818  
Effects of movements in exchange rates -    91  91  
As at December 2023  (10,142)  (249,891)  (260,033) 

    
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 3,325  146,236  149,561  

    
 2022 

 Leasehold 
improvements Plant & equipment Total 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Cost    
Balance as at 1 January 2022 12,753  383,445  396,198  
Additions 481  23,471  23,952  
Disposals  (19)  (13,018)  (13,037) 
Reclassification  (185)  (5,829)  (6,014) 
Effects of movement in exchange rates  (14)  (887)  (901) 
As at December 2022 13,016  387,182  400,198  

    
Accumulated depreciation    
Balance as at 1 January 2022  (8,985)  (218,787)  (227,772) 
Depreciation for the year  (703)  (32,480)  (33,183) 
Disposals 28  11,621  11,649  
Reclassification  (39) 99  60  
Effects of movements in exchange rates 4  403  407  
As at December 2022  (9,695)  (239,144)  (248,839) 

    
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 3,321  148,038  151,359  

     

 
Accounting policy: Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical 
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in 
which they are incurred. 
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Within the Group, depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write-off the cost of each item of plant and equipment over its 
estimated remaining useful life (less the estimated residual value). Estimates of remaining useful lives are made on a regular basis for 
all assets, with annual reassessments for major items. The expected useful lives are as follows: 

- Leasehold improvements 2-10 years; and 
- Plant and equipment 2-20 years. 

 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

 
Accounting policy: Maintenance and repairs 

Certain plant and equipment are required to be overhauled on a regular basis. This is managed as part of an ongoing major cyclical 
maintenance program. The costs of this maintenance are charged as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to the 
replacement of a component of an asset, in which case the costs are capitalised and depreciated over their useful lives. Other 
routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals are charged as expenses as incurred. 

   

13.  Right-of-use assets 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Balance as at 1 January 652,306 723,862 
Depreciation for the year (123,804) (143,885) 
Additions, modifications and remeasurements 74,417 74,299 
Disposals (3,367) (1,970) 
As at 31 December           599,552             652,306  

 

Based on the total number of active leases, 89% of right-of-use assets are property leases where the Company has site structures. The 
remainder are warehouses, offices, and miscellaneous leases. 
 
Accounting policy: Right-of-use - intangible assets 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially 
measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for certain 
remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term using the straight-line method.  

Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was not part of its original terms and 
conditions. Common lease modifications include, for example: increasing the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or 
more underlying assets; decreasing the scope of the lease by removing the right to use one or more underlying assets or shortening 
the contractual lease term; increasing the scope of the lease by extending the contractual lease term; and changing the 
consideration in the lease by increasing or decreasing the lease payments. Changes that result from renegotiations and changes to 
the terms of the original contract are lease modifications.  

When the right to use one or more underlying assets is removed, a corresponding adjustment is made to decrease the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the lease. The Group shall then recognise in profit or loss (if any) relating to the termination 
of the lease and making corresponding adjustments to the lease liabilities.  
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14. Intangible assets  
 
Reconciliation of carrying amount 
 

 2023 
 Brands Goodwill Licences Software Total 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Cost      
Balance as at 1 January 2023 9,000  614,362  258,144  44,504  926,010  
Additions -    -    -    6,305  6,305  
Disposals -    -     (4,492) -     (4,492) 
Effects of movement in exchange rates -    -     (98)  (2)  (100) 
As at December 2023 9,000  614,362  253,554  50,807  927,723  

      
Accumulated depreciation and impairments      
Balance as at 1 January 2023  (6,456)  (7,179)  (143,713)  (23,248)  (180,596) 
Amortisation for the year  (525) -     (18,384)  (7,027)  (25,936) 
Disposals -    -    2,417  -    2,417  
Effects of movements in exchange rates -    -    25  1  26  
As at December 2023  (6,981)  (7,179)  (159,655)  (30,274)  (204,089) 

      
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 2,019  607,183  93,899  20,533  723,634  

      
 2022 

 Brands Goodwill Licences Software Total 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Cost      
Balance as at 1 January 2022 9,000  614,362  258,774  42,375  924,511  
Additions -    -    -    3,085  3,085  
Reclassification -    -     (81)  (968)  (1,049) 
Effects of movement in exchange rates -    -     (549) 12   (537) 
As at December 2022 9,000  614,362  258,144  44,504  926,010  

      
Accumulated depreciation and impairments      
Balance as at 1 January 2022  (5,951)  (7,179)  (125,409)  (18,664)  (157,203) 
Amortisation for the year  (505) -     (18,488)  (4,604)  (23,597) 
Reclassification -    -    14  -    14  
Effects of movements in exchange rates -    -    170  20  190  
As at December 2022  (6,456)  (7,179)  (143,713)  (23,248)  (180,596) 

      
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 2,544  607,183  114,431  21,256  745,414  

 
 
Accounting policy: Intangible assets 

 
i) Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill 
acquired in business combinations is not amortised. Instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is 
allocated to cash generating units for impairment testing. Refer to Note 15 Goodwill for further information. 

ii) Brands 

Brands represent acquired business names, trade marks, trade names, domain names and logos. Brands are amortised over their 
expected useful life.  

iii) Licences 

Licences represent the rights and relationships associated with acquired site leases and the associated new business revenue 
streams. Licences are amortised over their expected useful life.   
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iv) Software 

Software that is acquired by the Group and has a finite useful life is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 
 

v) Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write-off the cost of intangible assets less estimated residual values using the straight-line method over 
their estimated useful lives and is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income. The 
estimated useful lives are as follows: 

- Brands 2-15 years; 
- Licences 11-15 years; and 
- Software 3-7 years.  

 
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.   
 
 

15. Goodwill 
 
Cash generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of goodwill impairment testing have been identified as follows for the year ended 31 
December 2023: Australia, New Zealand and Cactus. The independence of cash inflows is assessed in identifying CGUs. 

Goodwill is allocated to CGUs as shown below: 
 

 Australia New Zealand Cactus Total 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Goodwill 527,389  76,877  2,917  607,183  

 
The recoverable amount of the goodwill allocated to the Group’s CGUs was determined using the value in use approach. This was 
determined by discounting five years of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continuing use of the units followed by 
a terminal value. 
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the carrying value of assets allocated to each CGU is supported by their recoverable 
amount and no impairment loss was recorded. 
The key assumptions of the impairment testing are: 

• Annual revenue based on the latest management forecast of continued share gains from other media over the forecast 
period, resulting in normalised compound annual growth rates from 2024 to 2028 for Australia of 7.8% (2022: 7.6%), New 
Zealand of 10.1%, (2022: 10.0%) and 6.4% for Cactus (2022: 6.2%); 

• EBITDA margins improving based on revenue growth assumptions, offset by lease renewal outcomes, and other cost 
increases in line with expected CPI; 

• Terminal growth rate: Australia and New Zealand 3.0%, and Cactus 2.0% (unchanged from 2022); 
• Discount rate post-tax: Australia 10.3% (2022: 10.1%), New Zealand 11.1% (2022: 11.6%), Cactus 11.2% (2022: 11.9%) 

Management’s best estimate of the impact of future trends in the media industry are based on historical and projected data from 
both external and internal sources. These assessments include assumptions for structural growth in the Out of Home industry, which is 
in line with the OMA’s January 2023 published projection of industry revenue growth of 9% CAGR over this period, and a stretch goal 
of 11% CAGR. 

Sensitivity analysis undertaken on the assumptions mentioned above indicate that no reasonably possible change would result in an 
impairment. 

 
Accounting policy: Impairment of assets 

Non-financial assets    

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually 
for impairment.  

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use 
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to 
CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on 
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.  
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An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. 

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to 
the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. 

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

The carrying value of assets allocated to each CGU is supported by their recoverable amount. 
 

16.  Inventories  
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Gross value of inventories 3,061  6,746  
Provision for obsolescent stock  (421)  (652) 
Net value of inventories               2,640                 6,094  

 

Cost of inventory recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as cost of sales in 2023 was $3,239,000 (2022: 
$3,899,000). This includes write downs or reversals of inventory in 2023 of $741,000 (2022: $290,000). 

 
Accounting policy: Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of original cost and replacement cost. The cost of inventories are based on a first in first out 
methodology. 

 

17.  Other assets 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Current   
Prepayments 11,280  4,531  
Contract assets 1,987  9,510  
Other assets 247  249  
Total current other assets              13,514                14,290  

   
Non-current   
Other assets 4,979  3,874  
Total non-current other assets               4,979                 3,874  
Total other assets             18,493                 18,164  

 
 

18.  Loans and borrowings 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Current   
Interest bearing lease liabilities 125,357 145,255 
Total current borrowings           125,357              145,255  

   
Non-current   
Bank loan 117,000 75,000 
Unamortised borrowing costs (1,585) (2,101) 
Interest bearing lease liabilities 566,068 609,742 
Total non-current borrowings           681,483              682,641  
Total loans and borrowings           806,840             827,896  
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Bank loans represent debt facilities from a syndicate of lending banks, with a facility limit of $350,000,000. The banking syndicate has 
security over all assets of the Company and its subsidiaries. The debt facilities expire in June 2026. 

Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in Note 24 Financial risk 
management. 
 

Accounting Policy: Borrowings  

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over 
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as 
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is 
deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn 
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

Borrowings are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference 
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration 
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months after the reporting period. 

 
Lease liabilities 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Within one year 133,264 148,399 
Later than one year but not later than five years 411,762 410,104 
Later than five years 287,982 325,213 
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December (1)           833,008              883,716  
Current  125,357 145,255 
Non-current 566,068 609,742 
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at 31 December 691,425 754,997 

 
(1) Lease terms range from 1 to 20 years, with the assumption that all options will be taken up. The average lease term option is  5 years. The weighted 

average incremental borrowing rate applied is 5.15%. 

 
Variable rent payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilities listed above for the year ended 31 December 2023 
were $58,542,000 (2022: $46,477,000). Variable rent payments relate to advertising revenue booked onto sites as required under the 
contracts. 

 
Lease liability rollforward 

  Restated (1) 
 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Balance as at 1 January 754,997 828,171 
Additions to lease liabilities 69,639 72,221 
Lease payments (164,166) (173,742) 
Derecognition of lease liabilities (3,637) (4,106) 
Interest for the year 34,448 33,382 
Effect of movements of exchange rates 144 (929) 
As at 31 December 691,425  754,997  

 
(1) The Group has reclassified amounts between movement categories for the comparative period which has resulted in changes to the amounts 

previously disclosed for additions to lease liabilities, lease payments and derecognition of lease liabilities to align to the current year presentation. 
There has been no impact to the opening and closing lease liabilities balances previously reported for the comparative period. 

 
Accounting policy: Interest bearing lease liabilities 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The lease liability is initially 
measured at the present value of the lease payments at the commencement date, discounted using the Group’s incremental 
borrowing rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability (recognised in Finance costs on 
the income statement) and decreased by lease payments made.  
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Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was not part of its original terms and 
conditions. Common lease modifications include, for example: increasing the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or 
more underlying assets; decreasing the scope of the lease by removing the right to use one or more underlying assets or shortening 
the contractual lease term; increasing the scope of the lease by extending the contractual lease term; and changing the 
consideration in the lease by increasing or decreasing the lease payments. Changes that result from renegotiations and changes to 
the terms of the original contract are lease modifications. Changes in the assessment of whether an extension option is reasonably 
certain to be exercised is a lease modification and the Group has applied judgement to determine whether it is reasonably certain 
to exercise an extension option.  

When the right to use one or more underlying assets is removed, a corresponding adjustment is made to decrease the carrying 
amount of the lease liabilities to reflect the lease modification. The Group shall then recognise in profit or loss (if any) relating to the 
termination of the lease and making corresponding adjustments to the right-of-use asset.  

 

19.  Trade and other payables 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Trade payables 123 2,096 
Accrued expenses 50,133 35,209 
Contract liability 6,323 10,031 
Other payables 4,951 2,600 
Total trade and other payables             61,530               49,936  

 
Information about the Group's exposure to currency and liquidity risks is included in Note 24 Financial risk management.  
 
     
Accounting policy: Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year, which are 
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Contract liabilities are recognised within 
trade payables where invoices are issued in advance of the period in which the revenue is earned.  

       

20. Provisions 
 

 Make good  
 $'000 

2023  

Balance as at 1 January 2023 11,844 
Provisions used during the year (1,101) 
Provisions made during the year 3,514 
Provisions released during the year (288) 
Effects of movement in exchange rates (4) 
As at 31 December 2023             13,965  

 
 

Current provisions 4,541 
Non-current provisions 9,424 
As at 31 December 2023             13,965  

  
2022  

Current provisions 3,420 
Non-current provisions 8,424 
As at 31 December 2022              11,844  

 
 
Accounting policy: Make good provisions 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of 
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost. 
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A make good provision is recognised for the costs of restoration or removal in relation to plant and equipment and site leases where 
there is a legal or constructive obligation. The provision is initially recorded when a reliable estimate can be determined and 
discounted to present value. The unwinding of the effect of discounting on the provision is recognised as a finance cost. At the time 
of initial recognition of the make good provision, a corresponding asset is recognised as part of plant and equipment. During 
subsequent remeasurement, any reassessment to the make good provision is adjusted to plant, property and equipment. 
 

21. Derivative assets and liabilities 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Interest rate derivative asset 3,488 5,466 
Total derivative assets               3,488                 5,466  

 

Information about the fair value of derivative instruments is included in Note 23 Fair values.     
   

22. Capital and reserves  
 

a) Contributed equity 

 
 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 

 number number $'000 $'000 
Opening balance as at 1 January 581,083,960 598,645,873 864,104 886,468 
Share buyback (42,302,674) (17,561,913) (60,055) (22,364) 
Issued and paid up share capital 538,781,286 581,083,960 804,049 864,104 
Weighted average  number of shares    551,772,084        595,353,161    

 
 
Ordinary shares 
 
The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares. All issued shares are fully paid. The holders 
of these shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general 
meetings of the Company. 

 
b) Reserves 

 
Nature and purpose of reserves 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Foreign currency translation reserve (1,245) (988) 
Other equity reserve 16,608 16,608 
Cash flow hedge reserve 952 2,067 
Share-based payments reserve 10,638 15,798 
Total reserves             26,953               33,485  

 
 
Foreign currency translation reserve - The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of 
the financial statements of foreign operations in New Zealand. Refer to Note 3 Material accounting policies.  

           
Other equity reserve - The other equity reserve mostly represents the difference between the issued capital in Outdoor Media 
Investments Limited (OMI) and the consideration paid to acquire OMI on 18 December 2014. The transaction was accounted for as a 
common control transaction as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014. The other 
equity reserve reflects the share price movements for former OMI owners who remained as oOh!media Limited (OML) owners.  

     
Cash flow hedge reserve - The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of 
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition in profit or loss as the hedged cash flows affect profit 
or loss. Refer to Note 23 Fair values.  
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Share-based payments reserve - The share-based payments reserve is used to record the value of share-based payments provided 
to employees as part of their remuneration and the expense relating to cancelled shares under the legacy share-based payments 
plan. The current balance relates to unexercised rights issued to senior executives and managers. A portion of this reserve may be 
reversed against contributed equity if the underlying rights are exercised and results in shares being issued. 
 

c) Non-controlling interest (NCI)  
 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
Non-controlling interest $'000 $'000 
Balance at 1 January (905) (905) 
Balance at 31 December                (905)                  (905) 

 

d) Equity – dividends 

 Amount per share 
cents Total value ($) 

Dividends paid during 2023 (1)   
Interim 2023 dividend 1.75 9,428,658 
Final 2022 dividend 3.0 17,432,519 
Total reserves          26,861,177  

   
Dividends paid during 2022 (1)   
Interim 2022 dividend 1.5 8,935,744 
Final 2021 dividend 1.0 5,986,459 
Total reserves         14,922,203  

 

(1) All dividends were fully franked. 

 
After the reporting date, a final dividend of 3.5 cents per qualifying ordinary share amounting to $18,857,000 has been declared by the 
Board of directors. The dividends have not been recognised as liabilities and there are no tax consequences in 2023.  

 31 Dec 23  
31 Dec 22 

 $'000 $'000 
Adjusted franking account balance 82,089 60,599 
Impact on franking account balance of dividends proposed after the reporting date but not recognised 
as a liability (8,082) (7,471) 

Franking credits available to shareholders of the Company for subsequent financial years based on a tax 
rate of 30%             74,007                53,128  

 

The ability to utilise franking credits is dependent upon the ability to declare dividends. In accordance with the tax consolidation 
legislation, the Company, as the head entity in the tax-consolidated group, has assumed the benefit of the $74,007,000 (2022: 
$53,128,000) franking credits. 

 
e) Capital management policy 

The Board's policy is to retain a strong capital base relative to normal trading conditions including media advertising industry cycles 
to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of share capital, 
retained earnings and the non-controlling interest of the Group. 

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the 
advantages and security afforded by a capital position.  

 
Accounting policy: Share capital 

Ordinary shares 

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. Income tax relating 
to transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with AASB 112 Income Taxes.  
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23. Fair values  
 
Accounting classifications and fair values 

 
a) Fair values vs carrying amounts 

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities equals the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position. The fair value 
of interest rate derivatives is determined as the present value of future contracted cash flows and credit adjustments. 

b) Interest rates used for determining fair value 

The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are based on the government yield curve at the end of 
the reporting period plus an appropriate credit spread, and were as follows:  

 
 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
Interest rate derivatives 1.8% - 2.8% 1.8% - 2.8% 
Bank loan interest calculated as BBSY + margin 5.996% - 6.6507% 2.065% - 5.5647% 
Leases 1.60% - 9.78% 1.45% - 9.78% 

 
 

c) Fair values hierarchy 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 
follows: 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by the levels in the fair value hierarchy. The different levels have 
been defined as below. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 
 
 

Consolidated 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 Carrying 

value Level 2 Level 3 Carrying 
value Level 2 Level 3 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Financial liabilities measured at fair value       
Interest rate derivatives 3,488 3,488 - 5,466 5,466 - 
Interest rate derivatives (liability)/asset 3,488  3,488  -    5,466  5,466  -    

 
 

d) Valuation techniques         

The fair value of Level 2 interest rate derivatives is determined as the present value of future contracted cash flows and credit 
adjustments. Cash flows are discounted using standard valuation techniques at the applicable market yield, having regard to the 
timing of the cash flows. 

 

24. Financial risk management  
 
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit 
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such 
as interest rate swaps to hedge certain risk exposures. Derivatives are exclusively used for hedging purposes, i.e., not as trading or 
other speculative instruments. The Group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These 
methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rates, foreign exchange and other price risks and aging analysis for credit 
risk. 

 
(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. 
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i) Management of credit risk 

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and 
deposits with banks, as well as credit exposures to agency and direct clients, including outstanding receivables and committed 
transactions. The interest rate derivative financial instruments are contracted with credit worthy counterparties that are large banks, 
primarily members of the Group’s syndicated debt facility. 

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk because the advertising agencies carry the majority of customer default 
risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of media and services are made to customers with appropriate credit 
histories based on enquires through the Group’s credit department. Ongoing customer credit performance is monitored on a regular 
basis. 

Under the Company’s leasing arrangements financial guarantees are given to certain parties. Such guarantees are provided under 
the Group’s banking facilities. 
 

ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of $31,647,000 at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: $40,048,000). The cash and 
cash equivalents are held with credit worthy counterparties that are large banks, primarily members of the Group’s syndicated debt 
facility. 
 

iii) Derivatives 

Interest rate derivatives are subject to credit risk in relation to the relevant counterparties, which are large banks and members of the 
Group’s syndicated debt facility. The credit risk on derivative contracts is limited to the net amount to be received from 
counterparties on contracts that are favourable to the consolidated entity. 

 
iv) Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 
reporting date was: 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Cash and cash equivalents 31,647 40,048 
Trade receivables 117,216 113,043 
Contract assets 1,987 9,510 
Other receivables - 1 
Total financial assets           150,850              162,602  

 

v) Receivables 

The aging of trade receivables at the end of the reporting date that were not impaired was as follows:  
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Neither past due nor impaired 111,328 110,141 
Past due 0-30 days 2,729 1,264 
Past due 31-60 days 1,547 336 
Past due 61-90 days 567 180 
Past due 91+ days 1,045 1,122 
Trade receivables              117,216               113,043  

 
 
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows: 
  31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 

 $'000 $'000 
Balance at 1 January 1,144 1,145 
Impairment loss recognised 399 488 
Amounts written off (834) (489) 
Balance at 31 December                  709                   1,144  
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Other than those receivables specifically considered in the above allowance for impairment, the Group does not believe there is a 
material credit quality issue with the remaining trade receivables balance. 
 

(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that, as far as possible, 
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.  

 
i) Management of liquidity risk 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring 
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

 
ii) Financing arrangements 

The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting date: 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Facility 350,000 350,000 
Less: Bank debt 117,000 75,000 
Less: Bank guarantees 38,066 36,380 
Undrawn revolving facility           194,934             238,620  

 

iii) Maturities of financial liabilities 

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities, net and gross settled derivative financial instruments in relevant maturity 
groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table 
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For interest rate derivatives, the cash flows have been estimated using forward interest 
rates applicable at the reporting date. 
 

 2023 
 Carrying 

amount 
Contractual 

cash flows 
12 months or 

less 
Greater than 1 

year 
 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Non-derivatives     
Bank debt 117,000 (129,577) (5,031) (124,546) 
Lease liabilities 691,425 (833,008) (133,264) (699,744) 
Trade and other payables 61,530 (61,530) (61,530) - 
Total non-derivatives 869,955 (1,024,115) (199,825) (824,290) 

     
Derivatives     
Interest rate derivatives used for hedging (3,488) 4,005 2,280 1,725 

     
 2022 

 Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

12 months or 
less 

Greater than 1 
year 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Non-derivatives     
Bank debt 75,000 (95,020) (4,449) (90,571) 
Lease liabilities 754,997 (954,515) (155,580) (798,935) 
Trade and other payables 49,936 (49,936) (49,936) - 
Total non-derivatives 879,933 (1,099,471) (209,965) (889,506) 

     
Derivatives     
Interest rate derivatives used for hedging (5,466) 5,598 1,961 3,636 
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The contractual cashflows for the bank debt includes commitment fees for undrawn debt and fees for active bank guarantees. The 
Group's banking facilities loan agreement includes a change of control clause that triggers a review in the event of a change of 
control. The banking syndicate could cancel the facility as a result of such review. As at 31 December 2023 balance date, no 
change of control event is anticipated and therefore the bank debt is assessed as non-current in line with the existing maturity dates 
of the facility. 

 
(c) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the 
Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and 
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 

 
i) Management of currency risk 

The Group operates in New Zealand and therefore is exposed to foreign exchange transaction risks with respect to the New Zealand 
dollar. Foreign exchange transaction risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are 
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency and through net investments in foreign operations. The risk is 
measured using cash flow forecasting. The Group has an accounting exposure to movements in the AUD/NZD exchange rate in 
consolidating the NZD net assets of oOh!media Street Furniture New Zealand, and its subsidiaries at each balance date. Any such 
movements are booked to the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR). 

Based on the exposure, the Group has not deemed it necessary to hedge this exposure in the period or the prior period.  

 
ii) Interest rate risk 

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable interest rates expose the Group to 
cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. 

The Group’s interest rate policy is to fix estimated interest rate risk exposure at a minimum of 50% for a period of at least 12 months or 
as otherwise determined by the Board. 

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating to fixed interest rate derivatives. Such interest rate derivatives have 
the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group raises long-term borrowings at 
floating rates and hedges them into fixed rates using a mixture of swaps and options. Under the interest rate derivatives, the Group 
agrees with other parties to exchange, monthly or quarterly, the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest 
amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. 

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of 
the Group was as follows: 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Fixed rate instruments   
Financial liabilities (1) 691,425 754,997 
Variable rate instruments   
Financial assets (2) 31,647 40,048 
Financial liabilities (3) 117,000 75,000 

 

(1) Fixed rate instruments are leases 
(2) Financial assets are cash 
(3) Financial liabilities are borrowings 

 
Cash flow hedges 

The amounts at the reporting date relating to items designated as hedged items were as follows:  
 

 Change in value used for calculating 
hedge ineffectiveness 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
Interest rate risk $'000 $'000 
Variable rate instruments (1,978) 10,568 

 
See also Note 23 Fair values where we have stated the designated portion of the derivative and see contractual cash flows on 
profile and timing of interest rate derivatives. 
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In accordance with AASB 9 Financial Instruments, there has been a rebalancing of the interest rate derivative (hedging instrument). 
$90,000,000 of the hedging instrument remains effective, with $60,000,000 designated as ineffective as at 31 December 2023. 

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and hedge ineffectiveness are as follows: 
 

 31 Dec 23 During the period - 2023 

 Carrying amount Changes in the value 
of the hedging 

instrument 
recognised in OCI 

Hedge 
ineffectiveness 

recognised in profit 
and loss  Nominal 

amount Assets Liabilities 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Interest rate derivatives 90,000 3,488 - 1,592 (626) 

 

 

iii) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by 
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables and foreign currency rates remain constant. The analysis was 
performed on the same basis as 2022. 

 
 2023 

 Profit or loss Equity 
 100 BP 

increase 
100 BP 

decrease 100 BP increase 100 BP 
decrease 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Variable rate instruments (1,170) 1,170 (1,170) 1,170 
Interest rate derivatives - - 1,500 (1,500) 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (1,170) 1,170 330 (330) 

     
 2022 

 Profit or loss Equity 
 100 BP 

increase 
100 BP 

decrease 100 BP increase 100 BP 
decrease 

 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 
Variable rate instruments (750) 750 (750) 750 
Interest rate derivatives - - 1,500 (1,500) 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (750) 750 750 (750) 

 
 
Accounting policy: Financial instruments 

 
(a) Initial recognition and measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognised when they are originated. Other financial assets/liabilities are 
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price. Financial assets / liabilities are initially measured at fair value 
(together with any transaction costs which are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset, or cost of the liability). 

 
Classification and subsequent remeasurement 

Three principal classification categories for financial assets exist: 

i) measured through amortised cost; 
ii) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and 
iii) fair value to the consolidated statement of profit or loss (FVTPL). 

Financial assets are classified according to the business model in which the asset is managed and according to its contractual cash 
flow characteristics. They will not subsequently be reclassified unless the Group changes its business model for managing financial 
assets. If the business model changes, all financial assets would be reclassified on the first day of the reporting period after which the 
change took place. 

Annual Report 2023   •   oOh!media   •   146



 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows and contractual terms give rise to cash flows of principal and interest on specific dates. When assessing 
whether cash flows represent solely principal and interest, the Group considers factors which may affect the timing and amount of 
the cash flows, such as contingent events, contractual terms and prepayment or extensions features. 

All derivative financial assets are measured as FVTPL. At inception, the Group may also irrevocably designate that a financial asset 
be measured as FVTPL, even though it would otherwise be measured as amortised cost or FVOCI, if such an election eliminates (or 
significantly reduces) an accounting mismatch which would otherwise occur. 
 

Subsequent 
remeasurement of Remeasured at Gains / Losses Other considerations 

Financial assets at 
FVTPL Fair value Profit or loss Does not apply to hedging 

instruments (refer to (d) below) 
Financial assets at 

amortised cost 
Amortised cost using the 
effective interest method Profit or loss Amortised cost is reduced by 

any impairment losses 
Financial liabilities at 

FVTPL Fair value Profit or loss Does not apply to hedging 
instruments (refer to (d) below) 

Financial liabilities at 
amortised cost 

Amortised cost using the 
effective interest method Profit or loss - 

 
 

(b) Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Group will de-recognise a financial asset when any of the following occur: 

- expiration of the contractual right to receive cash flow from the asset; or 
- a transaction occurs which results in the Group transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset 

and therefore it also transfers the right to receive cash flows from the asset; or 
- although the Group does not transfer the risks and rewards of ownership, it no longer retains control of the asset. 

 

Financial liabilities 

The Group will derecognise a financial liability when any of the following occur: 

- contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire; or 
- the terms are modified, such that the cash flows are also modified. In this situation, a new financial liability would be 

recognised, at fair value, based on the modified terms. 

 
(c) Offsetting 
 

The Group may only offset financial assets and liabilities (or present them on a net basis) in circumstances where there is a legally 
enforceable right to do so and the Group intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis, or simultaneously. 

 
(d) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

 
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk exposure. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. 
Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in OCI. 
 
The Group designates certain instruments as cash flow hedges to minimise the variability in cash flows associated with highly 
probable forecast transactions arising from changes in interest rates. 
 
The risk management objective and strategy for undertaking a hedge, are documented at the inception of the hedging relationship. 
The Group also documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument (including whether the 
changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected to offset). 
 
The accounting policy for cash flow hedges is as follows: 
 

- When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the 
derivative is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair 
value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

- The amount accumulated in equity is retained in OCI and reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods during 
which the hedged item affects profit or loss. 
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If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the 
designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to 
occur, then the amount accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. 
 

25. List of subsidiaries and equity accounted investees 
 

Subsidiaries and equity accounted investees 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in accordance with the 
accounting policy described in Note 3(a): 

     

                                                   Ownership % 
Name of entity  Country of 

incorporation 
2023 2022 

Outdoor Media Operations Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Group Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Street Furniture Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Operations Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Produce Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Assets Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Factor Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Digital Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Retail Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Lifestyle Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Shop Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Roadside Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media MEP Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Regional Pty Limited   Australia 100% 100% 
Red Outdoor Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Closebuys Pty Limited  Australia 83% 83% 
oOh!media Café Screen Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Corp Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Corp Australia Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Fly Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Drive Sydney Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Outdoor Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Mall Media Pty Limited   Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Drive Melbourne Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Study Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Outdoor Plus Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Eye Shop Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Homemaker Media Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Office Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Inlink Office Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Inlink Café Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Inlink Fitness Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Executive Channel International Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Executive Channel Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
InTheMix dot com dot au Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Thought By Them Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
QJump Australia Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Fasterlouder Pty Limited  Australia 100% 100% 
Sound Alliance Nominees Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Cactus Imaging Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
Cactus Holdings Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Locate Pty Ltd  Australia 100% 100% 
oOh!media Street Furniture New Zealand Limited  New Zealand 100% 100% 
oOh!media New Zealand Limited   New Zealand 100% 100% 
oOh!media Retail New Zealand Limited  New Zealand 100% 100% 
oOh!media Study New Zealand Limited  New Zealand 100% 100% 
Calibre Audience Measurement Limited  New Zealand 33.3% 33.3% 

 

26. Capital commitments 
 
The Group entered into contracts to purchase plant and equipment in 2023 for $18,023,000 (2022: $17,721,000). 
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27. Contingencies 
 

Contingent liabilities 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Bank guarantees (1) 38,264 36,584 
Bank guarantees             38,264               36,584  

 

(1) Bank guarantees of $198,000 (2022: $204,000) are not included in and do not form part of the debt facility per Note 24 Financial risk management. 

 
Bank Guarantees are issued to lessors as part of the Group’s commercial lease obligations.  

 
Contingent assets and liabilities 

There are no material contingent assets or liabilities as at 31 December 2023. 
 

28. Related parties  
 
 

(a) Parent entity and ultimate controlling party 

As at 31 December 2023, the parent entity of the Group is oOh!media Limited. 

 
(b) Subsidiaries 

Interest in subsidiaries is set out in Note 25 List of subsidiaries and equity accounted investees. 

 
(c) Transactions with Key Management Personnel 

 
i) Key Management Personnel compensation 

The Key Management Personnel compensation comprised: 

 
    31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 

 $ $ 
Short term employee benefits 3,096,286 3,207,193 
Termination benefits - - 
Post-employment benefits 123,153 118,287 
Share-based benefits 708,164 805,108 

        3,927,603           4,130,588  
 

 
 
Key Management Personnel also participate in the Group’s share plans, details of which are discussed in Note 9 Share-based 
payments. Included in the above is Non-executive Director compensation of $1,070,846 (2022: $1,009,386) and post-employment 
benefits of $70,461 (2022: $66,192). 
 
 

ii) Directors' related party transactions 

No director related party transactions occurred during the period.  

 
  

149   •   oOh!media   •   Annual Report 2023



 

29. Earnings per share 
 

The table below shows the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for 2023 and 2022. 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 34,617 31,516 
Net profit after income tax attributable to equity holders of the parent             34,617                 31,516  

   
   
 Number of shares 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic   
Opening issued ordinary shares balance 581,083,960 598,645,873 
Unallocated treasury shares (2,380,714) - 
Share buy back (29,311,876) (3,292,712) 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December - basic    549,391,370        595,353,161  

   
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - diluted   
Weighted average number of shares outstanding - basic 549,391,370 595,353,161 
Effect of performance rights on issue 1,538,280 4,941,319 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December - diluted    550,929,650      600,294,480  

   
   
 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 cents cents 

Basic profit earnings per share 6.3 5.3 
Diluted profit earnings per share 6.3 5.3 

 
 

30. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities 
 

   

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Cash flows from operating activities   
Profit after income tax for the year 34,617 31,516 
Adjustments for:   
  Depreciation 156,907 177,068 
  Amortisation 25,936 23,597 
  Hedge ineffectiveness 626 (2,366) 
  Borrowing costs 1,211 1,289 
  Share of loss / (profit) of equity-accounted investees, net of tax 59 (11) 
  Covid-19 Fixed rent abatements - (10,850) 
  Net exchange differences 662 2,925 
  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (182) 4,009 

 219,836             227,177  
   

Changes in:   
Trade receivables  (4,172) (13,217) 
Deferred tax balances (12,570) (4,775) 
Other operating assets 2,451 11,500 
Trade payables 11,594 (204) 
Other provisions 2,459 (2,496) 
Provision for income taxes payable (2,579) 13,657 
Other operating liabilities (6,021) (8,954) 
Net cash inflows from operating activities 210,998            222,688  
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Accounting policy: Cash and cash equivalents 

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial 
institutions and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to cash on 
hand and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

 

31. Auditor’s remuneration 
 
 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $ $ 

Audit and assurance services   
KPMG Australia   
Audit and review of financial statements 871,261 673,770 
Other assurance services 2,050 131,087 
Total audit and assurance services  873,311  804,857  

   
Other services   
KPMG Australia   
Taxation compliance and advisory services 158,447 473,978 
Total other services 158,447  473,978  
Total auditor's remuneration  1,031,758  1,278,835  

 
 

32. Parent entity disclosures  
 
As at and throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2023, the parent entity of the Group was oOh!media Limited (2022: 
oOh!media Limited).  
 
 

(a) Financial position 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Financial position of parent entity at year end   
Current assets 117,512 99,641 
Non-current assets 828,085 888,140 
Total assets 945,597 987,781 
Current liabilities 20,305 22,884 
Non-current liabilities 103,944 72,536 
Total liabilities 124,249 95,420 
Net assets           821,348              892,361  
   
Total equity of parent entity comprising of:   
Contributed equity 804,049 864,104 
Treasury shares (4,683) - 
Reserves 21,982 28,257 
Total equity           821,348              892,361  

 

(b) Comprehensive income  

 
Result of parent entity   
Profit for the year:   
Dividends received from subsidiary 26,861 14,922 
Other comprehensive (loss) / income (1,115) 5,742 
Total comprehensive income for the year             25,746               20,664  
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(c) Parent entity capital commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment 

The parent entity did not have any capital commitments for the acquisition of property, plant or equipment as at 31 December 2023 
(2022: Nil). 
 

(d)  Guarantees and contingent liabilities 

Please refer to Note 27 Contingencies, for information on the guarantees and contingent liabilities of the parent entity. 

 

33. Deed of cross guarantee 
 
On 20 April 2018, the wholly owned subsidiaries listed below entered into a Deed of Cross Guarantee with oOh!media Limited in 
accordance with ASIC Corporations (Wholly Owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785 thereby relieving them from the Corporations 
Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement of financial reports, and Directors’ reports.  

The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt of the others.  

The subsidiaries subject to the Deed are:  
 
Outdoor Media Operations Pty Ltd 
oOh!media Group Pty Limited 
oOh!media Operations Pty Limited 
oOh!media Produce Pty Limited 
oOh!media Assets Pty Limited 
oOh!media Factor Pty Limited 
oOh!media Digital Pty Limited 
oOh!media Locate Pty Ltd 
oOh!media Retail Pty Limited 
oOh!media Lifestyle Pty Limited 
oOh!media Shop Pty Limited 
oOh!media Roadside Pty Limited 
oOh!media MEP Pty Limited 
oOh!media Regional Pty Limited 
Red Outdoor Pty Ltd 
Eye Corp Pty Limited 
Eye Corp Australia Pty Ltd 
oOh!media Fly Pty Limited 
Eye Drive Sydney Pty Ltd 
Eye Outdoor Pty Limited 
Eye Mall Media Pty Limited 
Eye Drive Melbourne Pty Ltd 
oOh!media Study Pty Limited 
Outdoor Plus Pty Limited 
Eye Shop Pty Limited 
Homemaker Media Pty Ltd 
oOh!media Office Pty Ltd 
Inlink Office Pty Ltd 
Inlink Café Pty Ltd 
Inlink Fitness Pty Ltd 
Executive Channel International Pty Ltd 
Executive Channel Pty Ltd 
Cactus Imaging Holdings Pty Ltd 
Cactus Imaging Pty Ltd 
oOh!media Café Screen Pty Limited 
oOh!media Street Furniture Pty Limited  
Fasterlouder Pty Limited  
Thought By Them Pty Ltd  
QJump Australia Pty Limited  
Sound Alliance Nominees Pty Ltd 

InTheMix dot com dot au Pty Ltd 
 

A consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of financial position, 
comprising the Company and controlled entities which are a party to the Deed, after eliminating all transactions between parties to 
the Deed of Cross Guarantee, for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out as follows: 
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and retained earnings 

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
 $'000 $'000 

Revenue 579,920 540,545 
Cost of sales (188,765) (145,418) 
Gross profit 391,155  395,127  
Other income 269 2,136 
Operating expenses, depreciation and amortisation (304,789) (320,527) 
Finance income  - 415 
Finance costs and foreign exchange costs (43,733) (41,725) 
Profit before tax 42,902  35,426  
Tax expense (15,441) (11,782) 
Profit after tax 27,461  23,644  
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax (1,115) 7,118 
De-designation of interest rate derivatives to the Consolidated Income Statement, net of tax - (1,376) 
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the period, net of tax  (1,115) 5,742  
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 26,346  29,386  

 
 
Consolidated statement of financial position  

 31 Dec 23 31 Dec 22 
Assets  $'000 $'000 
Cash and cash equivalents  23,424 28,532 
Trade and other receivables  98,639 57,002 
Inventories  2,466 5,937 
Other current assets 9,985 14,634 
Current assets             134,514               106,105  
Property, plant and equipment  131,850 135,000 
Right-of-use asset 590,494 641,112 
Intangible assets 634,647 653,887 
Investments 129,152 129,152 
Derivative assets 3,488 5,466 
Deferred tax asset 16,896 2,008 
Other non-current assets 5,011 3,847 
Non-current assets           1,511,538           1,570,472  
Total assets         1,646,052           1,676,577  

   
Liabilities    
Trade and other payables 53,846 44,490 
Interest bearing lease liabilities 121,487 141,570 
Provisions  4,191 3,117 
Employee benefits 9,465 9,225 
Income tax payable 18,827 20,184 
Current liabilities            207,816              218,586  
Loans and borrowings  115,415 73,513 
Provisions  7,929 6,975 
Employee benefits 2,270 2,140 
Interest bearing lease liabilities 558,696 599,729 
Deferred tax liabilities 3,664 - 
Non-current liabilities            687,974             682,357  
Total liabilities            895,790             900,943  
Net assets            750,262             775,634  

   
Equity    
Share capital  804,049 864,104 
Reserves  23,040 34,638 
Minority interest 10 10 
Accumulated losses (76,837) (123,118) 
Total equity            750,262             775,634  
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34. Subsequent events 
 
Since the end of the financial year, and after the approval of these consolidated financial statements, the Board has declared a fully 
franked dividend of 3.5 cents per ordinary share, amounting to $18,857,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 (31 
December 2022: $17,433,000). This dividend is payable on 21 March 2024. The financial effect of this dividend has not been brought 
to account in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and will be recognised in subsequent 
financial reports.  

No other matter or circumstance at the date of this report has arisen since 31 December 2023 that has significantly affected or may 
affect: 

(a) the operations of the Group; 

(b) the results of those operations in future financial years; or  

(c) the Group's state of affairs in the future financial years.  
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In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of oOh!media Limited (‘the Company’), we state that: 

1.	 In the Directors opinion: 

a.	 the consolidated financial statements and notes of the Group that are set out on pages 60 to 101, for 
the year ended 31 December 2023, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), including:

i.	 giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2023 and of its 
performance for the year ended on that date; and

ii.	 complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001(Cth); and 

b.	 there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when 
they become due and payable.

2.	 There are reasonable grounds to believe that oOh!media Limited and the controlled entities will be able 
to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of 
Cross Guarantee between oOh!media Limited and those controlled entities pursuant to ASIC Corporations 
(Wholly-owned companies) instrument 2016/785 (Instrument).  

3.	 The Directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) 
from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer for the financial year ended  
31 December 2023. 

4.	 The Directors draw attention to Note 2(a) to the consolidated financial statements, which includes a 
statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

On behalf of the Board

  

 
 
 
Tony Faure 
Chairman 
 
19 February 2024
Sydney

Directors’ 
Declaration
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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This is the original version of the Independent Auditor’s Report over the Financial Report signed by the Directors on 19 February 2024. Page 
reference 40 to 57 with respect to the audit of the Remuneration Report, should be updated to read 59 to 76. The page reference has been 
updated to reflect the correct references now that the financial statements have been presented in the context of the Annual Report.
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Voting rights

The voting rights attaching to each class of equity securities are set out below:

Ordinary shares: On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one 
vote and upon a poll each share shall have one vote. There are no other classes of equity securities.

Performance Rights: holders of Performance Rights do not have any voting rights on the Performance Rights 
held by them.

Unless otherwise stated, the shareholder information set out below is current as at 15 February 2024.

Distribution of equity securities 

Analysis of number of equity security holders by size of holding:

Range
# of 

holders
% of 

holders
# of shares

% of 
shares

1-1000 2,253 37.88% 1,157,997 0.22%

1,001-5000 2,276 38.26% 5,743,173 1.07%

5,001-10,000 671 11.28% 5,065,697 0.94%

10,001-100,000 690 11.60% 17,830,004 3.31%

100,001 and over 58 0.98% 508,984,415 94.47%

Total number of security holders 5,948 100.00% 538,781,286 100.00%

Holders holding less than a marketable parcel of shares  
(being a parcel of 301 shares based on a closing price of  
$1.665 on 15 February 2024)

591 9.94 61,539 –

Shareholder 
Information
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Restricted securities or securities subject to voluntary escrow

As at the date of the Annual Report, there are currently no restricted securities on issue or securities subject to 
voluntary escrow.

On-market buy back

There is no current on-market buy back.

Securities purchased on-market 

During FY2023, oOh!’s Employee Share Trust purchased a total of 6,045,000 shares at an average price  
of $1.5955.

Performance rights

For the purposes of ASX Listing Rule 10.15.11, Cathy O’Connor was issued with 518,238 Performance Rights as 
approved by Shareholders on 11 May 2023.

Unquoted equity securities

Range
# of 

holders
# of 

securities
% of 

securities

1-1000 0 0 0

1,001-5000 0 0 0

5,001-10,000 0 0 0

10,001-100,000 4 256,918 6.14%

100,001 and over 11 3,925,945 93.86%

Total 15 4,182,863 100.00%
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Twenty largest quoted equity security holders

20 largest holders (registered holder)
# of ordinary 
shares held

% of ordinary 
shares held

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 188,556,349 35.00%

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Pty Limited 136,548,940 25.34%

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 99,680,857 18.50%

National Nominees Limited 22,036,983 4.09%

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 11,351,135 2.11%

BNP Paribas Nominees Pty Ltd 9,631,091 1.79%

UBS Nominees Pty Ltd 6,075,398 1.13%

BNP Paribas Noms Pty Ltd 5,894,831 1.09%

BNP Paribas Noms Pty Ltd 4,190,159 0.78%

Pacific Custodians Pty Limited 3,875,399 0.72%

Pacific Custodians Pty Limited 2,853,988 0.53%

BNP Paribas Nominees Pty Ltd 2,319,507 0.43%

Neweconomy Com Au Nominees Pty Limited 1,846,598 0.34%

Masfen Securities Limited 1,600,000 0.30%

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 1,438,082 0.27%

BNPP Noms Pty Ltd  + Hub24 Custodial Serv Ltd 1,076,896 0.20%

Mr John Gerard Bell 821,463 0.15%

Mrs Sharmini Kunasingam + Mr Juvarajan K Sivalingam 800,050 0.15%

Mr Barry Martin Lambert + Mrs Joy Wilma Lillian Lambert 500,000 0.09%

Seymour-Newton Pty Ltd 474,583 0.09%

Total Held By Top 20 Largest Holders 501,572,309 93.09%

Other 37,208,977 6.91%

Total 538,781,286 100.00%
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Substantial holders as at 20 February 2024 (as disclosed in substantial holding 
notices given to the Company in accordance with the Corporations Act)

Holder
# of ordinary 
shares held

% of ordinary 
shares held

Yarra Funds Management Limited 40,022,351 7.43%

Perpetual Limited 38,153,106 7.08%

Fisher Funds Management 34,011,707 6.31%

Harris Associates 34,661,170 6.15%

Virtus Group 28,434,675 5.28%

Australian Retirement Trust 27,128,994 5.04%
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Term Meaning/definition

AASB Australian Accounting Standards Board

AGM Annual General Meeting

ASIC Australian Securities and Investments Commission

ASX Australian Securities Exchange, as operated by ASX Limited ABN 98 008 624 691

AUD, A$, $ or Australian dollar The lawful currency of the Commonwealth of Australia

Auditor KPMG

Australian Accounting Standards
Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements issued by 
the Australian Accounting Standards Board and Urgent Issues Group Interpretations

Board or Board of Directors The board of Directors of oOh!media Limited

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

CGU Cash Generating Unit

Company oOh!media Limited ACN 602 195 380

Company Secretary The Company Secretary of oOh!media as appointed from time-to-time

Constitution The constitution of the Company

Corporations Act Corporations Act 2001 (Cth)

CY18 Financial year ended 31 December 2018

CY19 Financial year ended 31 December 2019

CY20 Financial year ended 31 December 2020

CY21 Financial year ended 31 December 2021

CY22 Financial year ended 31 December 2022

CY23 Financial year ended 31 December 2023

Digital revenue Revenue from digital advertising display panels

Director Each of the Directors of oOh!media as appointed to the position from time-to-time

EBIT Earnings before interest and taxation

EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

EPS Earnings Per Share

Escrow
An ‘escrow’ is a restriction on sale, disposal or encumbering of, or certain other 
dealings in respect of, the shares concerned for the period of the escrow, subject to 
exceptions set out in the escrow arrangement

FAR Fixed annual remuneration

FCTR Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

FMCG Fast moving consumer goods

Group oOh!media Limited and its subsidiaries

GST Goods and services or similar tax imposed in Australia and New Zealand

IASB International Accounting Standards Board

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

KMP Key Management Personnel

KPI Key Performance Indicator

KPMG KPMG ABN 51 194 660 183

Glossary
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Term Meaning/definition

Listing The admission of oOh!media to the Official List of the ASX

Listing Rules The Official Listing Rules of ASX

LTI Long term incentive as payable under the LTI Plan

LTI Plan oOh!media’s long-term incentive plan, as amended by oOh!media from time-to-time

Management The management of oOh!media

MD Managing Director

MOVE
Measurement of Outdoor Visibility and Exposure, Australia’s national Out of Home 
audience measurement system

n/a Not applicable

NCI Non-controlling Interest

NED Non-executive Director

NPAT Net profit after tax

NPATA Net profit after tax before amortisation of acquired intangibles

NZD New Zealand Dollars

OCI Other Comprehensive Income

OFR Operating and Financial Review

OMA
Outdoor Media Association, the peak national industry body that represents most of 
Australia’s traditional and digital outdoor media display companies and production 
facilities, as well as some media display asset owners.

Officer An Officer of the Company

OMI Outdoor Media Investments Limited ABN 32 156 446 187

OML oOh!media Limited ACN 602 195 380

oOh! oOh!media Limited ACN 602 195 380

oOh!media oOh!media Limited ACN 602 195 380

Out of Home
Out of Home, also commonly referred to as out of home or outdoor advertising, 
represents the media sector of the advertising industry that communicates with 
people when they are out of their home

Registry Link Market Services Limited ABN 54 083 214 537

Rights Rights to shares granted pursuant to the LTI Plan

Senior Executive The senior executive management of oOh!media

Share of security A fully paid ordinary share in oOh!media

Share registry Link Market Services Limited ABN 54 083 214 537

Shareholder The registered holder of a Share

SMI Standard Media Index

STI Short term incentive payable under the STI Plan

STI Plan oOh!media’s short term incentive plan, as amended by oOh!media from time-to-time

TSR Total Shareholder Return

VWAP Volume weighted average price

WHS Workplace health & safety

WHSE&S Work, health, safety, environment & sustainability

WSE Wellbeing, safety & environment
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oOh!media Limited ACN 602 195 380

Directors: 		 Tony Faure
		 Chair and Independent Non-executive Director

		 Cathy O’Connor
	 Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director

	 Philippa Kelly
	 Independent Non-executive Director

	 Tim Miles
	 Independent Non-executive Director

	 Joanne Pollard
	 Independent Non-executive Director

	 Andrew Stevens
	 Independent Non-executive Director

	 David Wiadrowski
	 Independent Non-executive Director

Company Secretaries: 	 Melissa Jones
	 Chris Roberts

Principal registered Office: 	 Level 2, 73 Miller Street
	 North Sydney NSW 2060
	 Ph: +61 2 9927 5555

Share register: 	 Link Market Services Limited
	 Level 12, 680 George Street
	 Sydney NSW 2000
	 Ph: 1300 554 474

Auditors: 	 KPMG
	 Tower 3, International Towers Sydney
	 300 Barangaroo Avenue
	 Sydney NSW 2000

Bankers: 	 Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
	 Commonwealth Bank of Australia
	 ING Bank (Australia) Limited
	 National Australia Bank
	 Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
	 Westpac Banking Corporation

Stock exchange listing: 	� The shares of oOh!media Limited are listed by ASX Ltd on the 
Australian Securities Exchange trading under the ASX Listing 
Code “OML”.

Website: 	 www.oohmedia.com.au
	 https://investors.oohmedia.com.au/investor-centre/

Corporate 
directory
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